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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Longhui International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) (together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | hereby present to you the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are principally engaged in the hotpot restaurant business in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group’s revenue
decreased by approximately 11.7% from approximately RMB184.4
million in 2020 to approximately RMB162.9 million in 2021. Loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company for 2021 was
approximately RMB34.0 million (2020: approximately RMB69.1
million). Basic loss per share for 2021 was approximately RMB5.50
cents (2020: approximately RMB20.9 cents.

The decrease in loss for the period was mainly attributable to the
closure of underperformed restaurants during the year, resulting in
significant decrease in food and beverage and other materials
consumable need, employee benefit and related expenses and
property rentals, in response to the coronavirus pandemic
("COVID-19"). The Group expects that the COVID-19 pandemic will
continue to impact the catering industry in the following months.
Accordingly, the management will pay close attention to operate the
restaurants and explore solutions to maintain the brand value.

The Board would like to assure the potential investors and the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) that the Board
is committed to (i) supervising the management of the Group and to
maintain sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets; and (ii)
continuously and proactively strengthening the corporate governance
of the Company to establish a solid foundation for the operation
and future growth in order to maximise the value of the Company
and hence the return to the Shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement
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APPRECIATION
Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere appreciation to our staff for their dedication
and commitment as well as to our valued shareholders, customers,
suppliers and other business partners for their support and
encouragement to the Group in the past years.
Chairman
Hung Shui Chak
Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the hotpot restaurant business in
the PRC with the brands of Faigo ("} EF") and Xiao Faigo Hotpot
("/NIBEFNHA ). The target customers of the restaurants operating
under the brand of Faigo (“}#&F”) are mainly high-income group
while those under the brand of Xiao Faigo Hotpot (“/|N# & A ")
are mainly middle-income group.

The Group specializes in seafood hotpot cuisine with a signature
menu which is characterised by the aromatic soup base and a wide
range of selection of seafood and beef. The Company started its
first restaurant in Shanghai in 2004 under the brand Faigo and
gradually expanded its restaurant network to other major cities in
the PRC including Beijing, Shenzhen, Nanjing and Hangzhou since
2010.

In 2013, Sina Weibo, a popular social media in the PRC, chose the
brand Faigo as one of the most popular restaurants amongst
foodies QOBEEXLCEEENARERE" In 2014, the
Company was named as a five-star merchant by dianping.com, a
widely used search engine for restaurants in the PRC. The brand
Faigo was named as one of the top 10 hotpot brand in 2016 by the
China Hotel Association. In 2018, Xiao Faigo Hotpot (“/NEEF A $8")
was awarded “China’s Top 100 Hotpot Enterprises in 2017 (20174
EhEABEMRDE) by China Cuisine Association.

In 2020, the Group continued to rank among the Top 20 Hotpot
Restaurants in China 2020 (<2020 B /A $8Top 20)) in the Annual
Report on Catering Industry of China in 2020 ({2020 B & &f % 4=
JE¥R ) ) co-published by China Hotel association and Xinhuanet.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWEDAN

Set forth below are certain key performance indicators of the
restaurants operating under the brands of Xiao Faigo Hotpot (“/|\}&
S AH") and Hong Yuanwai ("3t 8 ") in different regions in the
PRC. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group closed
the restaurants operated under the brand of Hong Yuanwai (" 8

Sh") for better reallocation of resources.

TXHEHERBR TR E A BET AR R
[HREINMECENRIENE TEEEBUE
Z o BE—T-—F+_A=F+—RHLEFE"
AEBCDBEEANDEEIIN REEENRIE
LAMEFE T D REIR ©

Year ended 31 December

BEt+=-A=+t—BLEE

2021 2020

— B —E-TH
Revenue (in RMB’000) KBz (ARET T
Shanghai lapic} 62,779 77,133
Beijing Bl — 3,684
Wuxi £ 15 6,631 9,688
Other cities H A 10,183 16,066
Nationwide ES 79,593 106,571
Number of restaurants as at 31 December R+=-BA=+—BHRIEHE
Shanghai 8 10 18
Wuxi 2 55 1 2
Other cities E g m 1 4
Nationwide £ 12 24
Average number of customers per day per EER¥EZREE (K1)

restaurant (note 1)
Shanghai £B 1M1 92
Beijing = — 58
Wuxi & 15 117 113
Other cities E 94 74
Nationwide £ 109 89
Seat turnover rate per day per restaurant EEHEEAE=E (MfF2)
(note 2)

Shanghai lapic} 1.1 0.9
Beijing Bl — 0.5
Wuxi 7 55 1.2 1.1
Other cities E 11 0.8
Nationwide £ 1.1 0.9
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDM

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1T—HLFE

2021 2020

—E-—F —EZFF

Average daily revenue per restaurant BEEFAYHE(ARE TR
(in RMB’000) (note 3) (Bt £3)
Shanghai £8 11,874 9,330
Beijing b= — 7,659
Wuxi £ ) 13,504 12,681
Other cities H i 10,072 8,320
Nationwide S 11,724 9,313
Average spending per customer (in RMB’000) EEE A EHEB(ARM T )
(note 4) (Bt 5£4)
Shanghai apic! 107 102
Beijing = — 132
Wuxi S 115 112
Other cities H A 107 112
Nationwide T [ 108 105
Notes: B 3
1. Calculated as total customer traffic for the year divided by total restaurant 1. HEFE AFEERELRBIUFARIEEE
operation days during the year. HiEg -
2. Calculated as total customer traffic for the year divided by total restaurant 2. FEAEA 2FHEEREAEBRUFARIESLE
operation days and average seating capacity per restaurant during the year. HAEZBERAEEFIRES -

3. Calculated as revenue for the year divided by total restaurant operation days 3. ATERE  FARGEHRUFARIESERBE -

during the year.

4. Calculated as revenue before business tax/value added tax for the year divided 4. ATEAE FERNIBREER I E T AT 5 BRIA

by total customer traffic for the year.

FABEERBHEK -

2021 ¥ mEEBRZERBRXT 9



Management Discussion and Analysis
EERE W E DN

Set forth below are certain key performance indicators of the TTR&RFEERE TR MR ABEET ] A& L
restaurants operating under the brand of Faigo (“#88F") in different BJEMNE TE BABIEE o
regions in the PRC.

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EETF
Revenue (in RMB’000) KBR(ARE T
Shanghai = 81,440 72,769
Beijing Bl — 2,692
Other cities E bk 1,850 2,346
Nationwide £a 83,290 77,807
Number of restaurants as at 31 December R+=-A=+—BHNRIEHE
Shanghai b= 4 4
Other cities E 1 1
Nationwide £ 5 5
Average number of customers per day per EJEAHIEEFE (K1)
restaurant (note 1)
Shanghai lais! 59 57
Beijing = — 21
Other cities E 9 11
Nationwide e 35 33
Seat turnover rate per day per restaurant EEHIFEEAE=E (M F2)
(note 2)
Shanghai £8 0.5 0.5
Beijing b= — 0.5
Other cities E by 0.1 0.2
Nationwide S 0.3 0.3
Average daily revenue per restaurant BEERYHEHE(ARETTI(M
(in RMB’'000) (note 3) £%3)
Shanghai Hupic} 55,781 52,884
Beijing b= — 14,875
Other cities E by T 5,068 7,542
Nationwide £ 32,208 30,088

LONGHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Year ended 31 December
BZE+-A=+—BLEE
2021 2020
—F=—F —T_FF
Average spending per customer (in RMB'000) BEEAHYEE (AR T T)
(note 4) (Bt 5£4)
Shanghai £8 939 928
Beijing Bl — 709
Other cities H Al ™ 567 659
Nationwide S 925 907
Notes: B 5%
1. Calculated as total customer traffic for the year divided by total restaurant 1. HERE 2FERERELEBRUFARESE
operation days during the year. =FE e
2. Calculated as total customer traffic for the year divided by total restaurant 2. HFEAE 2FERERELERUFARELEE
operation days and average seating capacity per restaurant during the year. HEEBERAEEFES -
3. Calculated as revenue for the year divided by total restaurant operation days 3. HERE FARERAFARIELEERAY -
during the year.
4. Calculated as revenue before business tax/value added tax for the year divided 4. STERE FRMBREER L EBT AR BRI
by total customer traffic for the year. FRNEERELH -
2021 3% EEEBREZERERLIA 11
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERE W E DN

2021 was a challenging year for the Group, the outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic continuously affected people’s lives and catering
industry. Although the control measures were taken by the local
government effectively and the COVID-19 vaccination program was
launched successfully in the PRC, the consumer sentiment still
dropped materially as compared to pre-COVID. The Group
responded rapidly to launch and actively promote takeaway services
and re-examine the operating performance of all restaurants and
close down 12 underperformed restaurants for better reallocation of
resources. The Group expects that the COVID-19 pandemic will
continue to impact the catering industry in the following months.
Accordingly, the management will pay close attention to operate the
restaurants and explore solutions to maintain the brand value.

The concern of food safety in the PRC from the consumers is an
issue that each and every restaurant chain in the PRC needs to
respond. The Group realizes that the reputation which takes years to
build and protect can be ruined by one single food safety incident
and therefore the Group attaches paramount importance to the
safety and quality of food and has in place a reliable procurement
system which ensures visibility and traceability of food ingredients
throughout the catering service industry value chain. The staff of the
Group also receives comprehensive training to minimize the risk of
contamination during the preparation of foods before they are
served at the table. The relevant protocol was further strengthened
during 2021 given that takeaway orders accounted for a larger
proportion.

Looking forward to 2022 taking product quality as our lifeline and
upholding the philosophy of “seizing market opportunities through
reform and gaining market shares by transformation and upgrade”,
we will continue to overcome challenges ahead and introduce more
innovative ideas to consolidate our leading position in the catering
industry, with an aim to develop into the brand with the highest
market capitalization in the Asia-pacific catering industry. With our
commitment to transformation and product quality, we are confident
to build the Company as the leader of the casual restaurants in
China.

LONGHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

ZE I FHASEBRRFR R RKE N —
F - COVID-19Z BHEH ARMEEMER
RERTE - BATEM BT EIE N
TH IR W AKIHRIECOVID-19& @ @ &t
B MHBEBEDASZ BRI AR NE - K
EEAERE - L REGHERINE RS
VTEHFERMBEENRR  BHANRRER
RIEMEBE  UEITFHWEFROIERER - K&
B8 0 COVID- 19 BR AR AKEE S
BEGE L EEEBSEYBEIEEN
EER YIRS HEREEENRE RS

—
e

TFEHEERIRMRLEHE  EHREHLE
W —REEREH VAU EREYE
Mo REERE  —XENNRERETEEM
BUBRFLEE BLOEENZRBEL N —
B ARAEERAERRRL2EES -
VERIZAEZMNREGNE  BREEKRR
BEEXEEBEENTEHESERE  ATEH
RMRR - AEEBRELSEIT2EEN
BHRmEEAMZEBEPHNSEARBEE &
Ko ERINEFTEATRELEHIE KX - BT
R —FEBE—TEHE-

RE-ZT-_—F NEREEEAREMOE
O RAERERICEMSHE  EEA
FRPEITSEOHEINES  RMOBEE
RS BEAIH  ZEERMRERTE
BN  HMBERK AL KERITER
EREMEMNMEZRE #ARBARIRE
ARREEREE  BHMEEIAARKE
PEAKRBEEBEEETMmELD



Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue decreased by approximately 11.7% from
approximately RMB184.4 million in 2020 to approximately RMB162.9
million in 2021. The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic materially
impacted the operations of the restaurants and the number of
restaurants dropped from 29 to 17 as at 31 December 2021.

Foods and beverage and other materials consumables
used

The Group’s foods and beverage and other materials consumables
costs mainly represents the costs of food ingredients for the hotpot
business, and were the largest component of the Group’s operating
expenses. The foods and beverage and other materials consumables
costs decreased by approximately 30.9% from approximately
RMB84.5 million in 2020 to approximately RMB58.4 million in 2021,
which was mainly due to the decrease in number of restaurants.

Employee benefit and related expenses

The Group's employee benefit and related expenses, being one of
the largest components of the operating expenses of the Group,
consist of wages and salaries, labour outsourcing expenses, defined
contribution plan, other social security costs and housing benefits
and other employee benefits.

The employee benefit and related expenses decreased by
approximately 12.2% from approximately RMB66.2 million in 2020
to approximately RMB58.1 million in 2021, mainly attributable to the
closure of several restaurants. A portion of outsourcing staff were
laid-off therefore labour outsourcing expenses decreased by
approximately 16.4% from approximately RMB47.7 million in 2020
to approximately RMB39.9 million in 2021.

The Group entered into an agreement with a third party agent who
provides catering outsourcing services. Pursuant to the agreement,
the Group outsources a portion of its low-level positions, such as
waiter or waitress, kitchen assistants etc. The Group pays annual
service fee and other related cost, such as training and social
welfare.

EERENWEDAN

5t % B B8
Uy 35
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWEDAN

Property rentals and related expenses

Following the closure of those underperformed restaurants, the
Group’s property rentals and related expenses decreased by
approximately 30.8% from approximately RMB19.5 million in 2020
to approximately RMB13.5 million in 2021.

Depreciation, amortisation, impairment and written-off
of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible asset

The Group’s depreciation, amortisation, impairment and written-off
of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
asset decreased by approximately 26.4% from approximately
RMB70.1 million in 2020 to approximately RMB51.6 million in 2021.

Following the closure of those underperformed restaurants during
the year, the Group’s impairment and written-off of property, plant
and equipment and impairment of right-of-use assets amounted to
approximately RMB14.1 million (2020: approximately RMB6.4 million)
and approximately RMB7.7 million (2020: approximately RMB7.3
million) respectively in 2021.

Other operating expenses

The Group's other operating expenses, which mainly consist of
professional service expenses; repair and maintenance fee; and
promotion and marketing expenses, decreased by approximately
5.8% from approximately RMB17.1 million in 2020 to approximately
RMB16.1 million in 2021, which was mainly attributable to the
decrease in repair and maintenance fee resulted from closure of
restaurants.

Other income, other gains and losses, net

The Group’s other income, gains and losses, net decreased by
approximately 47.5% from approximately RMB17.9 million in 2020 to
approximately RMB9.4 million in 2021, which was mainly attributable
to the decrease in both of gain on rental concession and gain on
lease modification following the closure of those underperformed
restaurants.
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Finance expenses, net

The Group's finance expenses mainly represent interest expense on
borrowings, imputed interest on convertible bonds and interest
expense on lease liabilities.

The Group’'s net finance expenses decreased by approximately
45.5% from approximately RMB6.6 million in 2020 to approximately
RMB3.6 million in 2021. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in interest expense on lease liabilities following the closure
of restaurants.

Loss for the year

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company for 2021
was approximately RMB34.0 million (2020: approximately RMB69.1
million). Basic loss per share for 2021 was approximately RMB5.50
cents (2020: approximately RMB20.9 cents). The decrease in loss for
the period was mainly attributable to the closure of underperformed
restaurants during the year, resulting in significant decrease in food
and beverage and other materials consumable need, employee
benefit and related expenses and property rentals, in response to the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation,
amortisation, impairment and written-off (“Adjusted
EBITDA")

The Company also assesses its operating performance based on the
adjusted EBITDA as additional financial measures. The adjusted
EBITDA for 2021 was approximately RMB22.0 million (2020:
approximately RMB7.7 million), representing an increment of
186.9%.
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PROSPECTS

The Group plans to open more restaurants in order to expand and
develop the business of the Group in the coming financial years as
intended. However, due to the uncertainty over the impact of the
COVID-19 outbreak, it is prudent for the Board to slow down the
planned expansion. The Group will continue to closely monitor the
operating performance of the existing restaurants and take
appropriate actions to strive the returns of the Group.

The Group is also trying to develop a new style hotpot restaurant in
the prime locations to achieve better operating performance. In the
beginning of 2022, a hotpot restaurant with a new brand named
“HUN" (“JE") was opened in Shanghai. The hotpot restaurant was
renovated in a more fashionable style with alcohol and beverage
serving after dining hours in order to attract more customer traffic.

Targeting the High-End Segment

Hotpot restaurants offering meat as their major food ingredient have
a lower customer’s average spending compared with those serving
seafood. Therefore, more hotpot restaurants begin to offer more
diversified food materials to target different customer segments.
Seafood has been introduced in hotpot restaurants recently, which
will attract more customers from the high-end segment. The Group
will continue to target more high-end food ingredients as additional
drive for the growth of revenue of our restaurants. The new
restaurant under the brand of “HUN” also targets high-end
customers who pursue good quality of food materials and drinks.

Inclusive of New Food Ingredients and Flavors

New food ingredients will be added to hotpot dining. As hotpot is
more inclusive than other styles of cooking, new food ingredients
can be easily introduced to hotpot dining. Hotpot restaurants are
more willing to stay appealing to customers by offering new food
ingredients in their menus rather than stick to their own
understanding of hotpot stereotype.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Growth of Delivery Business

Delivery food service is growing fast in the PRC. The Group will
continue to strengthen our competitiveness in the delivery segment
to fully utilize the business hours of rush hours in a day such as
lunch and dinner time to improve our revenue density. The Group
will closely cooperate with online ordering and delivery platforms to
promote the delivery business, especially during the COVID-19
pandemic.

DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded cash and cash
equivalents amounting to approximately RMB2.2 million (2020:
approximately RMB3.2 million) and the net current liabilities value
was approximately RMB168.2 million (2020: approximately RMB204.3
million).

The net liabilities value per share of the Company was approximately
RMBO0.22 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately RMBO0.45).
The net liabilities value per share was computed based on
617,148,208 and 330,563,109 weighted average number of ordinary
shares as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 respectively.

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately 0.09 (2020: approximately 0.04), being a ratio of total
debts, including borrowings and convertible bonds, of approximately
RMB8.0 million (2020: approximately RMB6.0 million) to the total
assets of approximately RMB90.5 million (2020: approximately
RMB161.5 million).
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE

The Company completed the Rights Issue on 22 February 2021, &2
pursuant to which the Company has issued an aggregate of
318,680,121 ordinary Shares of HK$0.0004 each as rights shares at
HK$0.142 per rights share on the basis of one rights share for every
The net proceeds from the
Rights Issue (after deducting the expenses) were approximately
HK$43.25 million. The net subscription price per rights share after

one Share held on 26 January 2021.

deducting the
approximately HK$0.136.

related expenses of
Further

Company’s announcements dated 27 October 2020,

2020, 8 December 2020,

the Company’s circular dated 24 December 2020 and the Company’s

prospectus dated 27 January 2021.

The intended and actual use of the net proceeds from the Rights

Issue is stated as below:

details were set out

12 January 2021 and 19 February 2021, H
TZERZEZ

Issue was
in the
17 November

the Rights
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Amount of the

BIAR

Balance of the
net proceeds

net proceeds unutilised

Intended use utilised as at as at

of the net 31 December 31 December

proceeds 2021 2021
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FERERER CEAME ABARE
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(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)

(BE%T) (BEET) (BEET)
Repayment of the existing indebtedness of BEREBLE=ANALEHE

the Group from independent third parties BEEH 25.88 25.88 —

Repayment of bank loan BERITER 375 375 —
General working capital of the Group, induding ~ AEE—KZEES - BIEY
the rental payment of the Group's restaurants RNAEERRHEZENES
located in the PRC, staff costs and settlement of EIRANENKRERRS

the Group's day-to-day operating expenses =5 13.62 13.62 —

Total @t 43.25 43.25 —
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had no charges on its assets
(2020: Nil).

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Johnson Wan has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 31 August 2021.

Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 31 August 2021.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 14 January 2021, the Company implemented the Share
Consolidation on the basis that every twenty (20) issued and
unissued Shares of HK$0.00002 each were consolidated into one
consolidated share of the Company of HK$0.0004 each.

On 22 February 2021, the Company allotted and issued 318,680,121
Shares under the Rights Issue on the basis of one (1) rights share for
every one (1) Share held on 26 January 2021.

On 6 September 2021, the Company allotted and issued 44,615,200
Shares pursuant to the exercise of the Share Options.

Save as disclosed, the Company had no changes in capital structure
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Subsequent to the year end, on 21 January 2022, the Company
allotted and issued 19,120,800 Shares pursuant to the exercise of
the Share Options.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Upon the effective of the Share Consolidation on 14 January 2021,
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the convertible bonds (the
“Convertible Bonds") issued by the Company on 4 July 2018, the
conversion price of the Convertible Bonds and the number of Shares
falling to be allotted and issued upon conversion of the Convertible
Bonds shall be adjusted as follows:

o2 RS 2

e —_T-_—F—ATHBAE®RR
REARFTNR-_Z-N\FLAWBETHA
B E S (TR EZS]D O ER L& 7
BREFNERRE R REBRATRRES R
TEERETORNBESHARNT

Immediately before Immediately after
the effective of the effective of
the Share Consolidation the Share Consolidation
BERGEHENA EERBEHENR
Adjusted
Number of number of
Shares to be Shares to be
allotted and allotted and
issued upon issued upon
exercise of all exercise of all
the conversion the conversion
rights under the Adjusted rights under the
Conversion Convertible conversion price Convertible
price per Share Bonds per Share Bonds
RITETERK
RITETRR BHET
BHET FRERAER
FEEBRER BFRER
BIEER RAE BONERE
SEREKRE BOVROHA SRERE R4G#E
Convertible Bonds in the amount of S EBA414937BTTH

HK$4,414,937 AR E HK$0.10257% 7 43,072,563 HK$2.05/% ¢ 2,153,628
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Further upon the completion of the Rights Issue on 22 February
2021, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Bonds, the conversion price of the Convertible Bonds and the
number of Shares falling to be allotted and issued upon conversion
of the Convertible Bonds shall be adjusted as follows:

Immediately before
completion of the Rights Issue

EERENWEDAN

RN T —F_A=Z+ZHZTKE 7
BRESHBRBRE NSRBI RRESES
FEREERBETHRGEE  BRIEAJRRE
FRERREESITHENT

Immediately after completion
of the Rights Issue

SEMERTHA SREERTEAE
Adjusted
Number of number of
Shares to be Shares to be
allotted and allotted and
issued upon issued upon

exercise of all
the conversion

exercise of all
the conversion

rights under the Adjusted rights under the
Conversion Convertible conversion price Convertible
price per Share Bonds per Share Bonds
RTETERR
RTETRR B5ET
BHET FEERER
FEERER BFEER
BIRER B EEE
BRERE BONROEE SRESRARE RH#E
Convertible Bonds in the amount of SEBLMNARTETH AR
HK$4,414,937 B HK$2.05% 7 2,153,628 HK$1.757% 7T 2,522,821
INVESTMENT POSITION AND PLANNING RE MR K= E

Rights Issue on the basis of one (1) rights share for
every one (1) existing Share held on 26 January 2021

On 22 February 2021, the Company completed the Rights Issue on
the basis of one (1) rights share for every one (1) existing Share held
on 26 January 2021 at the subscription price of HK$0.142 per rights
share and allotted and issued 318,680,121 Shares. The net proceeds
raised from the Rights Issue were approximately HK$43.25 million.
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Details were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 27
October 2020, 17 November 2020, 8 December 2020, 12 January
2021 and 19 February 2021, the Company’s circular dated 24
December 2020 and the Company’s prospectus dated 27 January
2021.

Save as disclosed, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiary and associated company or significant investments of the
Group, which would have been required to be disclosed under the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company acquired the entire equity interest in the Longhui
International Catering Management Limited on 4 July 2018 was
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements as reverse
acquisition of the Company by the Accounting Acquirer. The Group
recognised deemed listing expenses of approximately
RMB399,670,000 upon the application of the Reverse Acquisition on
the Acquisition Date.

On the Acquisition Date, the Group applied the Reverse Acquisition
method of accounting and recognised the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the Company as at that date, including the recorded
accrued expenses and other payables of approximately
RMB37,578,000 as disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements in the annual report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019.

These recorded accrued expenses and other payables do not include
any of the unknown liabilities of the Company brought forward
from 1 January 2018, which included the amount due to a
deconsolidated subsidiary of approximately RMB882,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,028,000) and unknown other payables of
approximately RMB15,182,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$17,694,000).

The Company had used its best effort to identify the nature of the
Unknown Liabilities including publishing a public notice which invited
any potential creditors to inform the Company of any debts or
claims.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

With the legal advice provided to the Company, according to
Section 4(1)(a) of Cap. 347 provides that actions founded on simple
contract shall not be brought after the expiration of 6 years from
the date on which the course of action accrued whereas s.4(3)
states that an action upon a specialty shall not be brought after the
expiration of 12 years from the date on which the cause of action
accrued.

The directors of the Company considered that the origin of the
Unknown Liabilities is unlikely to be created under a deed and
among other reasons, given actions founded on simple contract shall
not be brought after 6 years from the date on which the cause of
actions accrued pursuant to the Limitation Ordinance (Laws of Hong
Kong Chapter 347), any potential creditors would be statutorily
barred from taking action against another person 6 years after the
date when the liabilities were due, unless such liabilities was created
under deed, in which case, the limitation period shall be 12 years
from the date of the liabilities were due. As the Unknown Liabilities
were incurred during the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2013,
if the amount was created under simple contract the payment
obligation is expired as at 31 December 2019, if the liabilities was
created under deed, the payment obligations will be expired as at
31 December 2025.

Besides, the Company had entered into a debt assignment
agreement with Global Courage, pursuant to which Global Courage
agrees to undertake all outstanding Unknown Liabilities.

Subject to the above matters, the possibility of outflow of economic
resources in the settlement of Unknown Liabilities by the Group is
not probable.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, save as disclosed elsewhere in this
announcement, the Group had no other significant capital
commitments.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi and settled in Renminbi, which is the
functional currency of respective group companies. The Group's
exposure to currency risk is minimal. The Group has not entered into
any instruments on the foreign exchange exposure. The Group will
closely monitor exchange rate movement and will take appropriate
activities to reduce the exchange risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2021
was 429 (2020: 754). Employees’ remuneration is commensurate
with their job nature, qualifications and experience. Salaries and
wages are normally reviewed annually based on performance
appraisals and other relevant factors. The Group continues to offer
competitive remuneration packages and bonus to eligible staff,
based on the performance of the Group and the individual
employee.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung Shui Chak (“Mr. Hung”) (formerly known as Hung Pan),
aged 52, was appointed as the chairman of the Board, an executive
Director, a member of the nomination committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”) and an authorised representative of
the Company on 6 July 2018. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Hung is primarily responsible for formulating the overall
development strategies and business plan of the Group. Mr. Hung
has engaged in the investment and operation of trading of raw
materials in food and catering and automobile business in Hong
Kong prior to 1990. He has vast experiences of investments in
various businesses in the PRC and commenced in investments in the
PRC. He has now accumulated over 18 years of experience in the
management of food and catering industry in the PRC.

Mr. Hung took the overall business development of the Group and
continues to oversee the management of the operations and
business of the Group. He has guided the operations and business
of the Group in adhering to quality and innovation in the operations
since he took up the business development of the Group.

Mr. Hung held a controlling interest in Carsone Car Detailing Service
Company Limited* (E/St#FEBE REHERERAA]) (“Carsone”),
a company which principally engaged in motor detailing business in
the PRC, and Mr. Hung disposed of his interest in Carsone to an
independent third party in 2012 and now retains a minority interest
of approximately 5.4% in Carsone. Mr. Hung also remains as a
director of a holding company of Carsone.
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In 2011, Mr. Hung and Dragonfair International Limited
("Dragonfair”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and the entire issued share capital of which was
held by Mr. Hung, were investigated by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong and subsequently charged for failure to
perform a duty of disclosure within the specific period without
reasonable excuse contrary to sections 310(1)(a), 313(1)(b), 316(2)(a),
324, 325(1)(@) and 328(a)(ii) of the SFO, which arose from certain
transactions involved the dealing in shares of Kaisun Energy Group
Limited ("KEG") (now known as “Kaisun Holdings Limited”), a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8203).
Such dealings happened on 11 December 2009 when Dragonfair
disposed of 7,000,000 shares of KEG, and the shareholdings in KEG
of Mr. Hung (being the sole shareholder of Dragonfair) and
Dragonfair fell to below 5%, hence ceased to have a notifiable
interest. However, pursuant to sections 310(1)(a), 313(1)(b), 324 and
325(1)(a) of the SFO, Mr. Hung and Dragonfair came under a duty
to disclose to the Stock Exchange and KEG the cessation of his/its
notifiable interest as a result of such disposal within the specific
period under the SFO, but due to miscommunication with agents
who were asked to prepare the disclosure forms for Dragonfair and
Mr. Hung, such disclosure of interest notifications were not filed
with the Stock Exchange and KEG until 31 August 2010. The
summonses were heard at the Eastern Magistracy and Mr. Hung and
Dragonfair pleaded guilty to the relevant charges, and each of them
was fined HK$4,000 and ordered to pay legal costs of HK$6,396,
which had been fully settled by Mr. Hung and Dragonfair.

Mr. Hung is the sole shareholder and the sole director of Shui Chak
Group Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and the controlling Shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules). Mr. Hung is deemed, by virtue of his interest in
Shui Chak Group Limited, to be interested in 452,564,624 shares of
the Company (the “Shares”) under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), representing
approximately 64.55% of the issued share capital of the Company.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. So Kam Chuen (“Mr. So”), aged 41, was appointed as an
executive Director on 6 July 2018. He is also a director of a
subsidiary of the Company and the supervisor of a subsidiary of the
Company.

Mr. So is responsible for overseeing the overall management, day-
to-day operation and production of the Group. He joined the Group
in 2004 and is serving as the Executive Chef and Brand General
Manager of Faigo (¥ &) and Xiao Faigo (/¥ %F) and has over 20
years of experience in the catering industry and operations
management. He joined the catering business in Hong Kong after
finishing school education in Hong Kong in 1997. During his service
with the Group, Mr. So is responsible for overseeing the operations
of all the restaurants of the Group, developing new cuisine,
controlling the quality of food and services of Faigo (¥#=F) and Xiao
Faigo (/N SF) to ensure the upscale of food and services.

Mr. So is personally interested in 9,482,330 shares and 872,999
underlying shares of the Company, representing approximately
1.35% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Mr. Yuan Mingjie (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 42, was appointed as an
executive Director and an authorised representative of the Company
on 6 July 2018.

Mr. Yuan is responsible for overseeing the overall financial
management and reporting and corporate finance matters of the
Group. He has over 20 years of experience in auditing and
accounting in various industries. He was the Vice President and
Corporate Secretary of CY Oriental Holdings Ltd., a company listed
on the Toronto Stock Exchange (stock code: CYO:APH), from 2004
to 2008. He also served as an auditor at PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company from 2001 to 2003. Mr. Yuan
served as the Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of
Carsone from 2012 to 2018. Mr. Yuan was awarded a Bachelor
Degree in English Language and Literature from Shanghai
International Studies University (_E/85MNEIERZ8) in 2001 and a
Master Degree in Business Administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University (/88 AZ) in 2012

Mr. Yuan is personally interested in 6,833,600 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 0.97% of the issued share
capital of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson (“Mr. Tam”), aged 58, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1 March
2019. He is the chairman of the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and a member of the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the Company.

Mr. Tam is a member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. He holds a Master of Science degree from
University of Oxford and a Bachelor of Science (Engineering) degree
in civil engineering from Imperial College of University of London.

Mr. Tam is the founder and chief executive officer of Venturous
Group, China’s first Citytech™ Group with a mission to make cities
smarter, since April 2019. From 2002 to 2012, he was a partner of
Fidelity Growth Partners Asia (formerly named Fidelity Asia
Ventures), an Asian venture capital firm with a principal focus on
China. Prior to joining Fidelity Growth Partners Asia, Mr. Tam was an
investment banker and a private equity investor in Europe and Asia
with leading financial institutions. He is currently a director of
several private companies. Mr. Tam is an independent non-executive
director of Yeahka Limited (stock code: 9923), the issued shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is an independent
director of Hello Group Inc. (stock symbol: MOMO), the shares of
which are listed on the NASDAQ Stock Exchange. Mr. Tam is also a
director of Podinn Hotel Zhejiang Co., Ltd (NEEQ: 839121), the
shares of which are listed on the National Equities Exchange and
Quotations.

Mr. Cheung Ting Pong (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 42, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 30 June 2020. He is
the chairman of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Cheung has over 15 years of experience in financial operations.
He obtained a bachelor's degree in business administration
(accountancy) from the City University of Hong Kong and a master’s
degree in business administration from the University of Manchester
in the United Kingdom. He has been a fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and a
fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Cheung is currently an independent non-executive director of
Hope Life International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1683). He was
a joint company secretary of Future Data Group Limited (stock code:
8229) from July 2021 to August 2021, the finance and investor
relations director and a joint company secretary of Dalipal Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1921) from September 2021 to December 2021,
an executive director and a non-executive director of Sanbase
Corporation Limited (stock code: 8501) from July 2017 to May 2018
and from May 2018 to October 2019, respectively, the company
secretary of Munsun Capital Group Limited (now known as Bay Area
Gold Group Limited) (stock code: 1194) from November 2016 to
January 2017 and an executive director, chief financial officer and
company secretary of Modern Dental Group Limited (stock code:
3600) from March 2011 to October 2016. The issued shares of
these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel (“Mr. Shum”), aged 42, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 31 August 2021. He is
a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Shum holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration from
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He is a
Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA), a Fellow Chartered and Certified
Accountant (FCCA) and a Financial Risk Manager (FRM). Mr. Shum is
a responsible officer of Sunfund Securities Limited, a licensed
corporation which carries out Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type
4 (advising on securities) regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”). He is also a responsible officer of
Sunfund Fund Management Limited, a licensed corporation which
carries out Type 9 (asset management) regulated activity under the
SFO. Mr. Shum has extensive experience in corporate finance,
financial and accounting fields.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Bi Jia (£&F 1) ("Ms. Bi”), aged 41, is the Public Affair
Manager of the Group. She is primarily responsible for managing the
public and external affairs, coordination between departments and
handling brands related matters of the Group. Ms. Bi joined the
Group on 1 September 2012. She has over 7 years of experience in
secretarial duties. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Bi served as the
Chairman Assistant at Carsone from 2010 to 2012. Prior to it, she
was the Finance Manager of Carsone from 2005 to 2010. She
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Financial Management (/7% & 12)
from East China University of Science and Technology* (ZEHRIET X
£ in January of 2008.

Mr. Yu Jun (R %&4%) (“Mr. Yu”), aged 39, is the Manager of
Information Technology of the Group. He is primarily responsible for
managing IT related matters of the Group. Mr. Yu joined the Group
on 18 October 2013. He has over 10 vyears of experience in
managing IT operations. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yu served as
IT Manager at Shanghai Longbong Clothing Company Limited* (1=
G E PR AR A E]) from 2012 to 2013. He was the IT Manager
at Shanghai Baishihao Electronic Business Company Limited* (/8 H
i E T KB MRAR]) from 2007 to 2012. He obtained a Bachelor
degree in Mathematics and Applied Mathematics from Donghua
University (3 # KX£2) in 2005.

*  For identification purposes only
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is
Suite 301, 3/F, Hale Weal Industrial Building, 22-28 Tai Chung Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 92 and 93.

The Board resolved not to pay any final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021 is set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 6 and pages
7 to 24 of this report respectively. Those sections form part of this
“Directors’ Report”.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, as a restaurant chain, the
Group has a large and diverse customer base. The revenue derived
from the top five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of
the total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the purchases of food
ingredients and other supplies from the Group’s top five largest
suppliers together accounted for approximately 47.13% (2020:
approximately 38.1%), with the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 24.71% (2020: approximately 19.4%) of the Group’s
total purchases for the year.
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None of our Directors, any of their close associates or any
Shareholders that, to the knowledge of our Directors, own more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company had any
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year are set out on page 203.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2021, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution (2020: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 208.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Shui Chak (Chairman)
Mr. So Kam Chuen
Mr. Yuan Mingjie

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson
Mr. Cheung Ting Pong
Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel
(appointed on 31 August 2021)
Mr. Johnson Wan
(resigned on 31 August 2021)

Pursuant to article 84 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. So Kam Chuen and Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson shall retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

Pursuant to article 83(3) of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel, who has been appointed with
effect from 31 August 2021, shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director a confirmation of his independence pursuant to the
independence guidelines under the Listing Rules, and considers that
all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, are appointed for
a specific term and are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service agreement with the Company
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provision of the SFO) or which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or which
were required, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 (the “Model
Code"), were as follows:
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Name of Director Capacity shares held shares held shares held the Company
FEHE Fi & FERER HGARREEFT
ESfE 5% RH#E RH#E ERRGEY REASHEIL
(Note 3)
(P 513)
Mr. Hung Shui Chak Interest of controlled — 433,504,624 (L) 433,504,624 (L) 63.57%
IR L L corporation (Note 1)
REHERER (M3t
Mr. So Kam Chuen Beneficial owner 872,999 (L) 8,609,331 (L) 9,482,330 (L) 1.39%
HBELE ERBEEA (Note 2)
(M &E2)
Mr. Yuan Mingjie Beneficial owner — 6,373,600 (L) 6,373,600 (L) 0.93%
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Note 1: These 433,504,624 shares were held by Shui Chak Group Limited. Shui Chak

Group Limited was wholly-owned by Mr. Hung. Thus, Mr. Hung was deemed
to be interested in the 433,504,624 shares held by Shui Chak Group Limited
pursuant to the SFO.

Note 2:  These underlying shares represented a maximum of 14,904,875 then Shares

to be issued to Mr. So upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds which
were issued to Mr. So on 4 July 2018. Upon completion of the Rights Issue,
the conversion price has been adjusted to HK$1.75 per Share, and based on
the conversion price of HK$1.75 per Share, the number of Shares which fall
to be issued upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds held by Mr. So
has been adjusted to a maximum of 872,999 Shares.

Note 3: The percentage is calculated on the basis of 681,975,442 Shares of the

Company in issue as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

Save as disclosed above and other than the share option scheme of
the Company, at no time during the financial year was the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors and
chief executives of the Company (including their spouses and
children under 18 years of age) to hold any interest or short
positions in the shares, or underlying shares, or debentures, of the
Company or its associated corporations (with the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons or corporations
(other than Directors or chief executives of the Company) were
interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company which were recorded in the register of interests required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or
to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO and the Listing Rules:

TERRRARS  HBRORE
EENEZRAR

RZBE-Z—F+-A=+—8 U FAL=HL
A BEFERARTEZITHRABRINEAR
AIIREBEFESRBEIRAFEI6KETENE
BELMATR KR BIEES R EIEHE
XV EBEE2 K35 3 A ik XX & = AR Bl 78 % B
MARBIEETRAPHES %A L

Approximate

Total number percentage of

Number of of shares and  the issued share
underlying Number of underlying capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held shares held shares held the Company
Jiig=T ] Fi& FEROR WGARAFACEF
REEE 5% Ko #E RH#E ERRGEY RASHEIL
(Note 2)
(Mitk2)
Shui Chak Group Limited Beneficial owner — 433,504,624 (L) 433,504,624 (L) 63.57%
mEEERRAR ERBEEA (Note 1)
(MEE1)
(L): Long position ) A
Note 1:  These 433,504,624 Shares were held by Shui Chak Group Limited. Shui Chak  Hi3F1: 433,504,624 R D DB 2 EE AR A &4
Group Limited was wholly-owned by Mr. Hung. Thus, Mr. Hung was deemed Bo-mEEEBERATBHELEELERE - W
to be interested in the 433,504,624 Shares held by Shui Chak Group Limited W BB EESEREBEEM - HEEEWHE ARG
pursuant to the SFO. EEEARARFTEA 433,504,624 195
BHRER -
Note 2:  The percentage is calculated on the basis of 681,975,442 shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2021. 2 BEEILEIUR=ZZE=—F+=_A=+—H
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company had
not been notified by any person or company, other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company whose interest are set out in the
section headed “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES” in this report, who had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in
the register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2 June
2021, the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of
the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The relevant
listing approval was granted by the Stock Exchange on 3 June 2021.
A summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
as follows:

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to selected eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The eligible participant(s) of the Share Option Scheme is/are, full
time or part time employees of the Company (including any
directors, whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not, of the Company); and any consultants or
advisers of the Company who, in the sole discretion of the Board,
has contributed or may contribute to the Company.
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Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in
aggregate, exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the
approval of the Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each eligible participant or grantee (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any twelve (12)-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Time of exercise of options

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, an option may be
exercised in whole or in part at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee thereof at
the time of making an offer provided that such period shall not
exceed the period of ten (10) years from the date of the grant of
the particular option but subject to the provisions for early
termination but subject to the early termination of the Share Option
Scheme.

There is no specified minimum period under the Share Option
Scheme for which an option must be held or the performance
target which must be achieved before an option can be exercised
under the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

Acceptance of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made to eligible
participants in writing (and unless so made shall be invalid) in such
form as the Board may from time to time determine and shall
remain open for acceptance by the eligible participant concerned for
a period of twenty-one (21) days inclusive of, and from the offer
date provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance after
the earlier of the termination date or the termination of the Share
Option Scheme.
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A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee upon
acceptance of an option. An offer of the grant of an Option shall be
deemed to have been accepted by an eligible participant concerned
in respect of all Shares which are offered to such eligible participant
when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly
signed by the eligible participant with the number of Shares in
respect of which the offer is accepted stated therein, together with
a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof is received by the Company.

Exercise price

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme
may be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, provided
that it shall not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of
the Shares on the Stock Exchange as shown in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the
five (5) consecutive business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share on the offer date.

Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall continue in force for the period
commencing from the adoption date and expiring at the close of
business on the tenth anniversary thereof, after such period no
further options will be granted but the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in respect of any
options granted before its expiry or termination but not yet
exercised.
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Movements relating to the share options granted during the year #HE-Z-—F+-_A=+—HILFE -

ended 31 December 2021 were as follows: BMERHEREZZFHOT

Number of share options
BREHA

At At

1 January 31 December

Date of grant Capacity 2021 Granted  Exercised  Lapsed  Cancelled 20231
i ZB>-f

Z8--f T8

RiAH gt -B-H BEHL BfTE  BAX 2 =t-H

Validity period

BHA

B

Exercise

price

T%E
HKS
BT

20 July 2021 Employees — 6,373,600 6,373,600 — — —
“E--%+A-1H EE

- 6,373,600 6,373,600 - - -

- 6,373,600 6,373,600 - - -

- 6,373,600 6,373,600 - - -

- 6,373,600 6,373,600 - - -

Executive director

BIEE

— Mr. So Kam Chuen — 6,373,600 6,373,600 — — —
—HEBFLE

Exe/gu}ive director

BIES

— Mr. Yuan Mingjie — 6,373,600 6,373,600 — — —

—RBERE

19 October 2021 Employees — 6,373,600 - - — 6,373,600
ZEC-F+ATNA B8
- 6,373,600 - - - 6,373,600

- 6,373,600 - - - 6,373,600

20 July 2021 to

19 July 2031
ZEZ-FtAZTHE

“E=-FtA+tNA
20 July 2021 to

19 July 2031
“F--f+A-tHE

=%+ E+thA
20 July 2021 to

19 July 2031
ZRC-FtrAZtHE

ZE=-FtATNA
20 July 2021 to

19 July 2031
ZEZ-FtAZTHE

“E=-FtAtNA
20 July 2021 to

19 July 2031
“E--%+A-tHE

=%+ E+hA

20 July 2021 to
19 July 2031
“5--F+A-tAZ
ZE-—F+AtNA

20 July 2021 to
19 July 2031
“E--%+A-tHE
“E=-FtAtAR

19 October 2021 to 18
October 2031
“E--F+A+NAE
—2=-%+A+)\R
19 October 2021 to 18
October 2031
—E2--%+AtNHE
ZE=-%+A+)NA
19 October 2021 to 18
October 2031
ZREZ-5+ATNAE
“E=-%+At)\H

01110

01110

01110

01110

01110

01110

01110

0.1014

0.1014

01014

63,736,000 44,615,200 19,120,800
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, no Directors or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which any of the Company’s subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the year or at the end of
the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company, or existed during the year under
review.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Code Provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance Code
set out under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and subject to the
provisions of the Companies Ordinance, the Company has arranged
for appropriate insurance cover for directors’ and officers’ liabilities
in respect of any losses or liabilities incurred, or any legal actions
brought against the directors and senior management of the Group
which may arise out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the directors as required by
section 470 of the Companies Ordinance.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole and any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or in existence during the year.

—

"
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed, the Company did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to the reporting requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2021.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

There was no material breach of or non-compliance with applicable
laws and regulations by the Group during 2021 that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS

The emolument policy of the senior employees of the Company is
set and recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Board
on the basis of the employees’ merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are formulated and recommended
by the Remuneration Committee to the Board, having regards to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance of the Directors
and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees of the Company, details of
which are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
above.

Details of the Company’s retirement benefit plans are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets.
Thus the Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.
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The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners to achieve its long-term goals.
Accordingly, our management have kept good communication,
promptly exchanged ideas and shared business update with them
when appropriate. During the year, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its business partners.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company has reviewed the possible risks and uncertainties
which may affect its operations, financial position and prospects.
The following are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Company that may materially and adversely affect the Group: (i)
future growth of the Group depends on its ability to open and
profitably operate new restaurants; (ii) historical financial and
operating results of the Group are not indicative of future
performance and the Group may not be able to achieve and sustain
the historical level of growth for revenue and profitability; and (iii)
results of operations of the Group may fluctuate significantly due to
low awareness of potential change in the business environment
under outbreak of contagious diseases, such as novel coronavirus
pandemic, which causes a significant economic downturn.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
shown below which are not known to the Company or which may
not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
financial year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Full details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out on pages 45 to 61.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference which are in line with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and the
Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company had maintained the public float as required
under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited ("HLB"”) who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Hung Shui Chak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Corporate Governance Report

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating the
elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Group so as to
achieve effective accountability to the shareholders of the Company
as a whole. Thus, the Company adopted the principles and the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code that were in force
during the year as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its
code of corporate governance (the "CG Code”).

Throughout the year, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
except for the deviation from the code provisions which are
explained below.

Code Provision A.2.1

The role of the chairman of the Board is performed by Mr. Hung
Shui Chak who possesses essential leadership skills and has extensive
knowledge in the business of the Group. The Board believes that
vesting the role of the chairman in Mr. Hung provides the Company
with strong and consistent leadership, facilitates effective and
efficient planning, implementation of business decisions and
strategies, and ensures the generation of benefits to the
shareholders of the Company.

Although the appointment of the chief executive officer of the
Company remains outstanding, the overall management of the
Company is performed by the executive Directors and the senior
management of the Group whom have extensive experience in the
business of the Group. Their respective areas of profession
spearhead the Group’s overall development and business strategies.

The Company will apply and comply with the applicable code
provisions as set out in the new CG Code (came into effect on 1
January 2022), the requirements under which shall apply to the
Corporate Governance Report of the Company in the forthcoming
financial year ending 31 December 2022.
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for securities
transactions by directors (the “Required Standard of Dealings”).
The prohibitions on securities dealing and disclosure requirements in
the Required Standard of Dealings apply to specified individuals
including the Group’s senior management and also persons who are
privy to price sensitive information of the Group.

All Directors have confirmed, following the specific enquiry by the
Company, that they complied with the Required Standard of
Dealings throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to
the date of this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board currently has six Directors, comprising three executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hung Shui Chak (the Chairman), Mr. So Kam
Chuen and Mr. Yuan Mingjie; and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson, Mr. Cheung Ting
Pong and Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the changes to the composition of the Board were:

—  Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 31 August 2021,

—  Mr. Johnson Wan has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 31 August 2021.

The Board possesses a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the businesses
of the Group. The Directors with a variety and a balance of skills
and experience in restaurant management, business development,
auditing, accounting, financial management and corporate finance
which is relevant in managing the businesses in which the Group
is engaged. The biographical details of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Board of Directors and Senior
Management” in this Report. Updated list of Directors identifying
their role and function are maintained on the websites of the
Stock Exchange at http://www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at
http://www.cre8ir.com/longhui/.
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To the best of the knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships between
Board members and the Chairman.

Appropriate liability insurance for the Directors has been arranged
for indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. Hung Shui Chak is the Chairman of the Company. The Chairman
is primarily responsible for leading the Board and ensuring that the
Board functions effectively.

Up to the date of this Report, the Board has not appointed any
individual to the post of Chief Executive Officer. The responsibilities
of the Chief Executive Officer have been performed by all executive
Directors, including the Chairman and the senior management of the
Group.

The reasons for the deviation from the code provision A.2.1 under
the CG Code are set out in the section head “Compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code”.

Functions of the Board

The principal function of the Board is to consider and approve
strategies, financial objectives, annual budget, investment proposals
of the Group and to assume the responsibilities of corporate
governance of the Group. The Board delegates the authority and
responsibility for implementing day-to-day operations, business
strategies and management of the Group’s businesses to the
executive Directors, management of the Company and certain
specific responsibilities to the Board committees.

Board Meetings and Board Practices

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board held four
board meetings. The Directors can attend meetings in person or
through other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. All Directors may access
the advice and services of the company secretary who regularly
updates the Board on governance and regulatory matters. All
Directors will also be provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties, and upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense. All minutes of board
meetings were recorded in sufficient detail of the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, four board meetings, one HE-_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HILtFE T
annual general meeting and one extraordinary general meeting were SE{ITHAEEZEE &  —ARREFRSR
held. Details of the attendance of Directors are set out below. The — X EFR A G - EFZ HEFHBUOT -
attendance of a Director is stated by reference to the number of MEBRFERNEZT HEESZHEHED
meetings held during his tenure if he was appointed part way ZSBETHAMEBTHEZEELRY -
during the year.

Extraordinary

Board Annual General General
Name of the Directors Meetings Meeting Meeting
EEHR EEZEER REBFAE REEHIKXE
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Hung Shui Chak 3/4 7 11
iRk &
Mr. So Kam Chuen 4/4 i Al
BIRTFEAE
Mr. Yuan Mingjie 4/4 71 11
RPAREEE
Independent Non-executive Directors
BIkHITES
Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson 3/4 11 1/1
ERALE
Mr. Cheung Ting Pong 3/4 11 11
REHSLE
Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel (appointed on 31 August 2021) 11 N/AT 3 A 11
MEREE(R=ZF=Z—FNA=F—HEZL)
Mr. Johnson Wan (resigned on 31 August 2021) 3/3 il IVAl

EpEhEE(R=FE=—F/\ A=+ —HEFF)
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

For the vyear ended 31 December 2021, the Directors have
participated in the following continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills:

TRERKS

ESCREERER

REE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—RHILtFEE "
BEECQ2HENUTHETERRE  UBERENK
WS MR e

Attending seminars
or giving talks of
seminars/webinars/

Reading materials
relating to directors’
development and

Name of the Directors conferences/forums  duties
LERBEREHRTE
WEmMIE /88 RNETHESZRE

E=pns WEEBRER KRB 2w R

Mr. Hung Shui Chak — v

W Im # 5 4

Mr. So Kam Chuen — 4

#8175 4

Mr. Yuan Mingjie v v/

REPAERAE

Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson v v

BRAKE

Mr. Cheung Ting Pong v 4

REHEE

Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel v v

L H R e A

Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal

By virtue of article 83(3) of the articles of association of the
Company, the Directors shall have the power from time to time and
at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board.
Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of Shareholders after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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tTEERFTS

In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG Code all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. Furthermore, pursuant to the article 84(1) of the articles
of association of the Company, at each annual general meeting one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years.

Each of Mr. Hung Shui Chak, Mr. So Kam Chuen and Mr. Yuan
Mingjie, the executive Directors, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of 3 years and shall continue
thereafter until terminated by either party by giving three (3)
months’ notice in writing at any time after such initial term to the
other. Moreover, each of Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson, Mr. Cheung
Ting Pong and Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel, being the independent
non-executive Directors, has entered into an appointment letter with
the Company for an initial term of 3 years which may be terminated
by either party by giving three (3) months’ notice in writing at any
time after such initial term to the other.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company complied and fulfilled with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and
3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the number of independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the board
and that at least one of the independent non-executive directors has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the current independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of their
independence to Rules 3.13 of Listing Rules and the Board considers
them to be independent during the year under review.
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Delegation of Powers

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to
executive Directors and management of the Company responsible for
different aspects of the business/functions, while reserving certain
key matters in making strategic decision for its approval. When the
Board delegates aspects of its management and administration
functions to management, it gives clear directions as to the powers
of management, in particular, with respect to the circumstances
where management need to report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 10 October 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. As at the date of this annual
report, the Audit Committee comprises all three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Ting Pong (Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson and Mr. Shum Kei
Yiu Daniel, with written terms of reference which are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. At least one
of the members of the Audit Committee possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualification as defined under the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, inter alia, to
provide the Board with an independent review of the effectiveness
of the financial reporting process, internal control and risk
management systems of the Group, to oversee the audit process and
to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the
Board.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
held two meetings to review, among other things, the financial
reporting process, internal controls and risk management systems of
the Group, the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the
Group, the Company’s reports and accounts including the interim
and annual results of the Group and provide advice and
recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee also met with
the external auditor to discuss the financial reporting process and
internal controls of the Group during the year and reviewed the
interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June
2021 and the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020. The Audit Committee also received the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee. The attendance records of the
members of the Audit Committee are set out below:

BE-_ZE-—H+-A=+—BILEE &
REESETTMASH UEHN(HFB
FIASENHBRARERF  AFEERRA
BEERS  NEBE NI EZB LR -
AARBMEREE  BREASEGRHEFE
¥E O URPNEZgREEANEZR - B
ZEeNEITZBMEeHE  UildwmAEE
FAMTBEAREFEAANINES  TEFEH
ARNBHE-_ZT -_—F-~A=+BItNEA
MPBRENARAHE-_ZT-_TF+_-A
ST HILEFENTR BEZRZEQHUE
ERZECNBERE  EBEXZEEREN
HERR R

Audit Committee

Meeting(s)

Members of the Audit Committee attended/held

BHE ETERZ
EREBENE ZE2E83
Mr. Cheung Ting Pong (Chairman) 2/2
REMEE(ERE)
Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson 2/2
BREEE
Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel (appointed on 31 August 2021) N/AA 38
MEREERZZEZ—FNA=+—HEZE)
Mr. Johnson Wan (resigned on 31 August 2021) 2/2

BEEER-BE-—FN\AS+—BEE)

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10 October 2010
with written terms of reference in compliance with code provision
B.1.2 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. As at the date to this annual report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Cheung Ting Pong and Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel,
with written terms of reference which are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Company has adopted
the model to delegate the determination of the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors to the Remuneration
Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
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include (but without limitation): (a) making recommendations to the
Directors on the policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policies on such
remuneration; (b) determining the terms of the specific remuneration
package of the Directors and senior management; (c) reviewing and
approving performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Directors from time
to time; and (d) considering and approving the grant of share
options to eligible Participants under the Share Option Scheme.

The remuneration of the Directors is based on the performance and
experience of individuals and is determined with reference to the
Group's performance, the remuneration benchmark in the industry
and the prevailing market conditions. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting and
had one written resolutions done to review, among other things, the
remuneration policy and structure of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company and the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee and make recommendations to the Board.
The Remuneration Committee also considered and recommendated
to the Board the remuneration of a newly appointed independent
non-executive Director. The attendance records of the members of
the Remuneration Committee are set out below:
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Remuneration

Committee
Meeting(s)
Members of the Remuneration Committee attended/held
B E 1T 5
FMZEEERE EE2g83
Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson (Chairman) 11
BREEE(ERFE)
Mr. Cheung Ting Pong 1/1
REHEE
Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel (appointed on 31 August 2021) N/A 38

TEREE(RZZE-_—FNA=Z=+—"HEZMT)
Mr. Johnson Wan (resigned on 31 August 2021)
ERELXE(R_E_—FN\A=+—H&T)

11
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Remuneration Policy for Directors and Senior
Management

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended and determined
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the corporate
goals and objectives resolved by Directors from time to time.
Directors are entitled to an aggregate annual basic salary. In
addition, each of the Directors is also entitled to a discretionary
bonus as determined by the Remuneration Committee by reference
to the performance of the Group.

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 2 June 2021.
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to selected eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 10 October 2010
with written terms of reference of the Company in compliance with
code provision A.5.2 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. As at the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Ting Pong
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Hung Shui Chak and
Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel, with written terms of reference which are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, inter alia, to
formulate the nomination procedures and standards for candidates
for Directors and senior management, to conduct preliminary review
of the qualifications and other credentials of the candidates for
Directors and senior management and to recommend suitable
candidates for Directors and senior management to the Board.

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”). A summary of this policy is disclosed as below.
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Criteria

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall consider the
following criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorships:

o Character and integrity.

o Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company'’s business and corporate strategy.

o Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a Board member and other directorships and
significant commitments.

o Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

o Diversity policy and any measurable objectives adopted by
the Company for achieving diversity on the Board.

o Such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

Nomination Process
2.1 Appointment of New Director

2.1.1 The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of
new director and the biographical information (or
relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out in
section 1 to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

2.1.2 If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company and reference
check of each candidate (where applicable).
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213

The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendation to the Board in respect of the
appointment of appropriate candidate for
directorship.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder
for election as a director at the general meeting of
the Company, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board shall evaluate such candidate based on
the criteria as set out in section 1 to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board shall make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.

2.2 Re-election of Director at General Meeting

2.2.1

2.2.2

2.2.3

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director including his/her
attendance of Board meetings and, where
applicable, general meetings, and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall
also review and determine whether the retiring
director continues to meet the criteria as set out in
section 1.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall
then make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of director at
the general meeting.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting and had a written resolutions done to
review, among other things, the structure, size and composition of
the Board; to assess the appropriate mix of skills, experience,
knowledge, expertise and diversity on the Board; to review the
Board Diversity Policy (as defined below) and the terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee; to review the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; to recommend the
appointment of a newly appointed independent non-executive
Director; and to consider the qualifications of the retiring Directors
standing for election at the annual general meeting of the
Company. The attendance records of the members of the
Nomination Committee are set out below:
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Nomination Committee

Meeting(s)
Members of the Nomination Committee attended/held
BHE ETRA
REZEEENE EZEEEE
Mr. Cheung Ting Pong (Chairman) 1/
REMEE(ERE)
Mr. Hung Shui Chak 1/1
A E k&
Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel (appointed on 31 August 2021) N/A 38

MERBEE(R-_ZE-_—FNA=Z+—BHEZT)
Mr. Johnson Wan (resigned on 31 August 2021)
BEEEER_B-— 5\ A=+ BB

Since 31 March 2016, the Board has adopted a board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the Board’s
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects including, but not limited to, educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
financial statements for each financial period to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash
flows for that period. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are
responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities.

Auditors’ Remuneration
The remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services for the

year ended 31 December 2021 provided by the auditors of the
Company, HLB, are as follows:

B8 & F &
EERGBOMBEMBERRNEE

EFRNTREAREASE SV ERAEN
BBHRE  NEEMAAMEINAEEZH
BOMBEMRAREERRSRE - REBE
TEC-F+ A=t —BUEFENHBR
xR EFGCEIERASFTBRRLEME
R XRIE - RAME MR A B R EE
UREFERKEELRRYBGHRE -EFH
BEEELE-—UAEMUENTR - REAK
BoEE YEHLEREERFREMBTIE
BB -

BB B =

BRARBAZEMBEAREBEE_T _—F+
“R=t—RIEFERHEZERS K IFRE
RGBT :

Type of Services RMB’000
BR 7% %8 5l AR®T T
Audit services % B AR 1 1,200
Non-audit services IEAZ AR 75 366
Total @st 1,566
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS T EERBAE

The Board has the following responsibilities: EEERENT:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations from time to

time;
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the

Group;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and the
employees of the Group; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility to maintain
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems. Internal control designs are implemented to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss. Such controls cover major areas such as
corporate governance, revenue and receipt cycle, expenses and
payment cycle, financial reporting and compliance management. The
Audit Committee evaluates the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems of the Group on behalf of the Board.

The Group’s risk management process includes identification,
evaluation, implementation of mitigation measures and review. In
order to further ensure compliance with relevant statutory
requirements, the Group engages external professional advisers, such
as consultancy firms, auditors and external legal advisers to render
professional advice so as to comply with statutory requirements
(including PRC rules and regulations and the Listing Rules) as
applicable to the Group from time to time. The Group had provided
Directors with training, development programs and/or updates
regarding the legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the
business operations of the Group.

During the year, the Group engaged a professional internal control
consultant to conduct a review of the Group’s internal control
design effectiveness, including the compliance risk management
control, financial reporting and disclosure control, and controls and
procedures over revenue and receipt cycle and cash management
and treasury cycle of the Group.

The internal control consultant reported directly and primarily to the
Audit Committee and assist the Board in monitoring and managing
the risks and internal controls of the Group. Internal control design
weaknesses and recommendations for areas of improvements have
been reported to the Audit Committee. The Group has established
management action plan to implement the internal control
enhancement measures recommended by the internal control
consultant.
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The Audit Committee concluded that there were no significant
internal control failings, weaknesses or significant areas of concern
identified during the year which might affect our shareholders. It
opined that an adequate and effective internal control system is
maintained to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
Group's assets.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Chun Kit was the company secretary of the Company (the
"Company Secretary”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

On 21 January 2022, Ms. Hau Hei Man Sonya has been appointed
as the Company Secretary in place of Mr. Wong. Both Mr. Wong
and Ms. Hau was engaged and appointed by the Company from an
external secretarial services provider as its Company Secretary. The
primary corporate contact person of the Company is Mr. Yuan
Mingjie, an executive Director. Each of Mr. Wong and Ms. Hau
confirmed that he/she has received 15 hours professional training
under the requirement of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the
year under review.

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely
and effective communication with the Shareholders and investors.
The Board also recognises that effective communication with
investors is the key to establish investor confidence and to attract
new investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining a
high degree of transparency to ensure that the investors and the
Shareholders receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely
information of the Group by the publication of annual reports,
interim reports, announcements and circulars. The Company also
publishes all documents on the Company’'s website at
http://www.cre8ir.com/longhui/. The Board continues to maintain
regular dialogues with institutional investors and analysts to keep
them informed of the Group’s strategy, operations, management and
plans. The Directors and the committee members are available to
answer questions at annual general meetings of the Company.
Separate resolutions would be proposed at general meetings of the
Company on each substantially separate issue.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the Company’s memorandum and articles of association,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general
meetings. Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Shareholders may put forward their proposals or inquiries to the
Board by sending their written request to the principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

AMENDMENT OF THE COMPANY'S
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There have been no changes in the Company’'s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2021. The
consolidated version of the memorandum of association of the
Company and the articles of association of the Company is available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the dividend policy adopted by the Company with effect
from 1 January 2019, dividends may be declared and paid to the
Shareholders by way of cash or by other means that the Board
considers appropriate. It is the policy of the Board, in
recommending dividends, to allow the Shareholders to participate in
the Company’s profits, and at the same time, to ensure the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The
Company'’s decision to declare or to pay any dividends in the future,
and the amount of such dividends will depend upon, among other
things, the current and future operations, financial condition,
liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group, as well as
dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries and associates,
which in turn will depend on the ability of those subsidiaries and
associates to pay a dividend. In addition, any final dividends for a
financial year will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders.
The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is also
subject to any restrictions under the laws of the Cayman Islands, the
laws of Hong Kong, the Company’s articles of association and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board will continue to
review the dividend policy from time to time and the Board may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the dividend policy at any time as it deems fit and
necessary.
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CONCEPTS AND PRINCIPLES

Reporting period of this section covers the period from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2021 with certain content beyond such
period.

Longhui International Holdings Limited (“Longhui International”)
issues its ESG report regularly on an annual basis.

Report content covers the business performance of Longhui
International’s headquarter and its subsidiaries, including the 24
restaurants under the brand of Faigo (“#£5F") and Xiao Faigo Hotpot
("/INEBEFAEA") across different provinces and cities in China, as well
as its administration office.

This section is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) set out in Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
("HKEx"). This report covers the same period as the Group’s fiscal
year.

The figures and data in this section are from our archived files,
records and statistics. If you have any feedback about this section,
please email to jyuan@faigo.com.cn, to help us improve and keep
abreast of the times.

OUR COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABILITY

As a renowned hotpot chain in the PRC, Longhui International has
always upheld the right business operation and business ethics. We
are committed to replicating the successful business model into
various regions of China to become an outstanding hotpot
restaurant chain in the PRC.

We believe that outstanding environmental, social and governance
management is the cornerstone of sustainable development. The
continuous outbreak of the novel coronavirus pandemic
("COVID-19") in the past two years has shed light on the profound
impact of climate change on people around the world, which
undoubtedly placed the catering and tourism industries at the
epicenter. Due to the uncertainty of the pandemic, Longhui
International, as a catering enterprise, actively engaged in the fight
against the pandemic at the call of the Central Government and
maintained its brand competency through cost control. In 2021, we
reassured impacted staff and offered priority employment pledges
when the Group shuttered several restaurants. We are deeply aware
of the effects that climate change brings to every person, business,
and country.
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We have taken preemptive measures to nearly switch to all low-
carbon and clean induction stoves in response to climate change. In
the future, the Group will gradually replace other energy
consumption with cleaner energy, such as using electric vehicles in
transportation to reduce overall carbon emission.

After communication within the Group, with employees, suppliers
and other stakeholders, the most important issues for the Group in
2021 were still the health and safety of employees and the food
safety and quality management. Therefore, in 2021, the Group had
been concerned about the health and safety of its employees and
the provided reassurance for the employees from the closed
restaurants. Meanwhile, the Group enhanced the quality
management of restaurants and the supplier management to
improve the efficiency and quality of our operation.

Longhui International is committed to sustainable development by
continuously renewing its environment, society and governance
practices.

First, in terms of environmental responsibility, we actively respond to
climate change, continuously monitor energy consumption, explore
the use of clean energy, strictly cooperate with waste control, and
raise the awareness of environmental protection among our
employees.

Second, in terms of social responsibility, during the pandemic, we
place priority to employees’ safety and care for our employees; we
combine customer needs and quality management to create
“efficient and high quality” restaurants; at the same time, we keep
community needs in mind and continue to give back to the
community on a regular basis to help each other and build a
harmonious community.

Third, in terms of corporate governance responsibilities, we strictly
comply with all laws and ethical standards; strictly monitor our
suppliers and establish long-term amicable relationships; establish a
fair and effective employment system to ensure the rights and safety
of employees and retain talents; manage quality and build mutual
trust with customers.

Longhui International promises that in the future, while striving for
steady development, the Group will focus on sustainable
development plan that contributes to the long-term sustainability of
the world.

HTERERBRS

BPRERHERRELEEEMS LT 2E
BREHFENEE - KK - EEMBEER
BRESTE  AKRESELRERZNERAK
BoPImMRAEHELETERS  AREE
BB PEIK -

KBAEERNR BT  HEFEKEMEFHD
EFWER —T-—F HAEBEMmMES ' &
BENZE KRR BIRFELZE2NAM
MEZE2MmEEE At  AEEE_T—_—
FHREMRIBTRE BIL2TEUEY
BIEEINRZEIE: RN ASEMMET
EENDEEENMHESNER <2EF
BMMEEE -

EEBRAERE H@MREAR=ZAKTETH
HBEH  BRAUFSEER -

E— BBEAHE BEEHAFESEL:
SEE SN BREREENER
BERARENES LIRSETHERE
-

EF_oHesEEITH ERBENHE B
REEIREE L BEEL HEERS
KRB ERBGEATERRMEEERIM
B RE . ARHRER  HEMFERET
O EEER KRITEMBELR -

F= EEXERECHE  BRETEEA
BURERBETREE BREEEAIIFHE
B RAREYRMAFEERE BT
BRHNERHE BEREINEN LKL 2
TREAS mBEER HBETREYEEH
1% e

EEBRARE KRR EERKRETERNA
B AEBESMEAISEERAE 2K
MAREERNDEREREBFELE D -

2021 3 EEBKRZERERAF

63



64

Environment, Social and Governance Report

BE - HBREARS

PERFORMANCE IN 2021

Despite various meticulous and thoughtful efforts to prevent the
outbreak of COVID-19 in Mainland China, intermittent closures due
to the pandemic and the public’'s concern about eating out have
made 2021 a difficult year for the catering industry. On the premise
of maintaining its own specialty hot pot, Longhui International
closed a number of restaurants under pressure to retain the entire
brand and maintain the normal operation of the Group.

By the end of 2021, Longhui International reduced its scale to 24
outlets, but still ranked among Top 20 Hotpot Restaurants in China
2021, recognizing its characteristics and services.

Despite the tough market conditions, safety and quality remained a
top priority for Longhui International. The Group took food safety
and quality management seriously and insisted on putting customers
first. During the pandemic, the Group strived to innovate services
and menu items, empowered food safety management with
technology, and utilized special services such as digital ordering to
meet different customer requirements and enhance customer
satisfaction.

As the pandemic continues, the health and safety of employees
particularly concerns us. Lunghui International has taken effective
measures to protect the health and safety of employees and to meet
their daily needs. The Group’s emphasis on safety not only protects
employees, but also provides a safe, clean, tidy and secure dining
environment for customers. It is one of the manifestations of a
catering enterprise’s social responsibility that employees are offered
a secured job while the enterprise can grow healthily and provide
services to the community. The Group’s persistence has distinguished
Longhui International from other hot pot restaurants and made it
popular among customers.
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Environmental Responsibility

As a food and beverage enterprise, the Group always adheres to the
principle of environmental protection. To cater for the needs of
environmental protection, the Group has used induction stoves in
daily operation, which greatly reduced greenhouse gas emissions as
compared to gas stoves. Meanwhile, we strictly comply with and
adhere to the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China ((hZEARLMEREREE)), Energy Conservation Law
of the People’s Republic of China ({4 & A R MBI & 49 88 )R %))
and other relevant laws to conserve energy and restrain from
wastage as well as promote the recycling of resources in an effort
to protect and improve our environment. Pursuant to relevant laws,
the Group has put in place strict supply chain management
processes and strengthened its management of daily operation.

During the reporting period, given the nature of the Group's
business, hotpot catering service, which does not involve any
production or processing business, the Group’s greenhouse gas
emission mainly derived from the carbon footprint of electricity,
water, gasoline and natural gas consumption in its 24 restaurants
and delivery vehicles throughout Mainland China.

Longhui International encourages resource conservation among
employees. The total greenhouse gas emissions in 2021 amounted
to 1,628.72 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent, similar to that of
2020; the CO2 equivalent (tonnes) per million HK$ of revenue in
2021 was 9.36 (2020: 8.32).
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Greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes BEREHKE 2021 2020

of carbon dioxide equivalent) (Mg HREE) —E-—-F T E
Scope 1 (Direct Emissions) HE-(EEER 328.82 314.62
Fuels in stationary sources & 72 R 292.26 271.22
Combustion of fuels for automobiles BRI R 36.57 43.40
Scope 2 (Indirect Emissions) E = (BEHm 1,299.90 1,219.66
Purchased electricity BE 1,299.90 1,219.66

Energy consumption
Gasoline

Electricity

Natural gas

Waste disposal’
General waste (Food waste) disposal
(daily average of each restaurant)

Hazardous waste disposal

! The general waste generated by the Group is mainly food waste. As the official !
amount of food waste that are collected is currently not available, the industry
norm (two barrels of food waste per day) is used in data disclosure. We will try
to make more systematic disclosures when more relevant statistics are

established in the future.

* The data shown above are from the self-operated restaurants under the *
respective brands of “Faigo” (“#%f") and “Xiao Faigo Hotpot” ("/NE@EF A ")
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16,188.00 litres #
1,603,184.02 kWh F K B
133,691.62 cubic metres
MK

An amount equivalent to
two full designated
rubbish bins (240 litres
per bin)
MEERIRBNEE
(82402 7)

No hazardous waste was
treated or generated
during the course of
business
ERHPIREEREEEM
BEERY

of the Group across various provinces and cities in Mainland China, as well as

our administration office.

On top of greenhouse gas emissions, the Group also attaches great
importance to the discharge of non-hazardous waste. Our strict and
proactive waste monitoring highlights the Group’s outstanding
which established pride among our
employees and trust among our customers, as well as pushed our

management capabilities,

suppliers to be more attentive.
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Reduce Food Waste and Strive for Zero Wastage BE BT RE

Longhui International is committed to reducing food waste. We have
taken action in two directions in our daily operation management:
restaurant customers and strict internal supervision.

Regarding restaurant customers, we have adopted a three-step
approach, namely promotion, reminder and suggestion. For
promotion, we have signs posted on eye-catching spots in the
restaurants, reminding customers to order food based on their
actual needs and not to waste food. For reminder, once customers
are seated, we will inform them the portion of each serving as well
as remind them there are various choices on the menu with small
portion, such as platter etc. For suggestion,
customer’s orders and suggest them to reduce the portion if they
have over-ordered; we also serve certain dishes at a later time and
if necessary, so as to avoid excessive serving and the subsequent
wastage.

we will review

In terms of strict internal supervision, we will standardize the
amount of food plated, aiming to standardize the services at each
restaurant and reduce food waste as much as possible. At the same
time, in order to meet customers’ desire to try new foods while
preventing food waste, we add on our menu a variety of platters to
cater for their demands. Moreover, we provide trainings for our
employees to ensure that they know the amount of food in each
dish of the restaurant, so that they can provide customers with
appropriate instructions and suggestions, preventing customers from
misestimating the amount of food and the subsequent wastage.

REBBRNFHRESRTIRE  EEERTE

e BPSMEE: BEEENABESE
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Strict Monitoring on Food Waste

In respect of food waste management and disposal, we have
established strict internal guidelines and staff codes, which strictly
comply with the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China, ensuring that employees deal with and dispose
food waste and other waste in accordance with the requirements of
the local governments and shopping malls. Meanwhile, we comply
with the measures on kitchen waste, for instance the Measures on
the Disposal of Kitchen Wastes in Shanghai ({_ /8 & & 57 3 Bz 12
B PL)). Restaurants in Shanghai has reached an agreement
with the shopping mall on the disposal of food waste: complying
with relevant provisions, our staff should discard food waste into
special containers and, assuring that the waste does not overflow
the containers, leave them to the shopping mall for collection and
follow-up treatment. The waste will then be transported away by the
environment and hygiene department.

In addition, in respect of the disposal of hotpot soup base, the
Group also strictly adheres to the requirements of the local
governments, such as the Implementation Opinions of the General
Office of the Shanghai Municipal People’s Government on Further
Tightening the Regulatory and Remediation of the Disposal of Waste
Grease from Kitchens in Shanghai ({ E/8TARBT# N EBER#E

— I MEATERFEEHELREERRATIENEMRER)). Waste
grease is separated out from the used soup base in a grease trap in
accordance with the relevant requirements and collected in
designated sealed containers. Then, the waste grease collected will
be transferred to professional recycling service providers for followup
treatment. The treated waste broth will only be discarded after all
these processes. To ensure that our employees fully comply with the
regulatory requirements, each restaurant of our Group is required to
sign relevant documents and contracts, such as Agreement for the
Engagement of Recycling Waste Grease from Kitchens ( (& &5 /i
fg Z 5t B Y 1% %)) and Labour and Services Agreement for
Disposing and Cleaning of Grease Trap (Oil-water Separator) (& i
Ok D BERS) B IR - RIZEBH W) ), under which the penalties
commensurate with the non-compliance cases are specified to ensure
the implementation of the provisions.
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Efficient Use of Water Resources B AE H K E IR

The Group as a food and beverage enterprise utilizes a large
amount of water. We are always concerned about escalating water
shortage around the globe as well as other issues. We are therefore
in the process of establishing a water-saving mechanism aiming for
water conservation. For example, we reuse scouring water in an
effort to reduce washing time with running water without
compromising hygiene.

Making Employees our Priority

The Group has attained remarkable achievements and is well
acclaimed within and outside of the industry. In September 2021,
the Group continued to rank among the Top 20 Hotpot Restaurants
in China 2021 (€2021# B X $BTop 20)) in the Annual Report on
Catering Industry of China in 2021 (Q2021F B EHREFERE))
published by China Hotel association.

Employees are the greatest asset of a food and beverage enterprise,
all of the Group's recent achievements should be attributed to our
outstanding employees for their reliable and high-quality products
and services. Therefore, we always place emphasis on talent
management and consider it an integral part of the long-term
development of the Group. Longhui International offers a fair and
auspicious development platform to the employees through effective
talent acquisition and performance assessment and supervision. To
achieve co-development between employee’s capability and the
Group’s growth, we offer an enticing package to attract talents and
provide various opportunities of training and promotion to make sure
every employee may excel at their position and be properly
remunerated.

2021 was still a prolonged cold winter for food and beverage
enterprises, and the business development of the Group was
severely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. The Group was forced
to close certain restaurants and dismiss the relevant employees in
order to maintain a sustainable operation capability. However, our
employee reduction plan is conducted in full compliance with the
Labor Contract Law. We have retained as many employees as
possible in relation to the size of the restaurants and businesses we
have closed. In addition, we have added new human resources
guidelines so that when our business improves, laid-off employees
will have priority in hiring.
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Employee related data 1E = 15 5 & 1%

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

Total number of employees BEEEITAY 522 754
Proportion of male employees SMHEBEIIHL 40.8% 43.24%
Proportion of female employees B TRt 59.2% 56.76%
Turnover rate BIRKE 7.47% 7.16%
Proportion of male employees SMHETITHE 3.58% 4.24%
Proportion of female employees ZMH BTG 3.89% 2.92%
Age distribution of employees EBIFRIMH
Aged 16-24 16—245% 14.56% 18.44%
Aged 25-40 25-407%% 40.23% 41.38%
Aged 41-59 41-595% 43.30% 39.26%
Aged 60 or above 6075% 3k LA = 1.92% 0.92%

2021 2020
Employees by geographical region EIRMEDH —E-—= —E-F
Beijing = — 0.80%
Changzhou N - 0.13%
Hefei & 6.51% 2.52%
Nanjing [z — 0.13%
Shantou pIGES — 0.13%
Shanghai lapis} 89.66% 84.48%
Shenzhen w= — 0.53%
Suzhou B N — 1.86%
Wenzhou Al — 1.99%
Wuxi S 3.83% 5.31%
Changsha §p72 — 2.12%

2021 2020
Employees by employment type ETREREND M —E-—F —EEF
Full time e 100% 100%
Part time & Bk 0 0
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Employment and Recruitment Practices EEEEEHR

The Group places strong emphasis on compliance and strictly
complies with the national code and regulation of employment in
our talent acquisition procedures. A series of review procedures are
in place to prevent any misstatement and illegalities, such as the use
of child labour and forced labour. We offered fair opportunities to
our employees with a standardized policy, and they are assessed
based on their work attitude and competency for any personnel
affairs, including promotion and re-designation.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
noncompliance in relation to regulations on employment or forced
labour and child labour.

The Group attaches great importance to human resources affairs.
The employment terms and conditions are expressly stipulated in
employment contract, Employee Handbook, Role Description and
Employee Attendance and Absence System, etc., and were explained
to the employee prior to employment. In addition, with a view to
ensuring fair and impartial recruitment of talent, the Group takes the
initiative to create discrimination-free and respectful workplace for
every employee. We guarantee fair treatment to employees and
applicants regardless of their race, colour, gender or religious belief
and adopt the same method in calculating remuneration for all
employees.

In addition, we have a two-way communication mechanism with our
employees, provide maternity leave for women and paternity leave
for men, and offer human rights-related training.
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In order to retain talents, the Group upholds the principle of
fairness and has put in place a polished reward and punishment
mechanism to improve the enthusiasm of our employees and reward
them for their contribution, while further boosting the efficiency and
service quality of our restaurants or departments. The Group has a
series of requirements on remuneration management which are
expressly set out in the Requirements on Employee Reward and
Disciplinary Action. Direct supervisors will report to department
managers or directors on employees who satisfy the reward
conditions for their review, then Reward Application Forms of
relevant employees will be submitted to the personnel and
administration department for final approval. Relevant reward will be
distributed along with salary. Subsequently, such Reward Application
Form will serve as a reference for career advancement of the
employee. At the same time, the Group encourages education,
training and instruction for any employee involved in minor
disciplinary offences. Nevertheless, in more severe cases, instead of
consultation, the employee will be subject to formal disciplinary
actions for the offence and the employment contract may be
terminated if necessary. Relevant employee shall compensate the
Group for the losses suffered by the Group arising from such
disciplinary offence. The system is applicable to every staff.

For job-related injuries or work-related deaths, the Group will pay
social insurance for the employees uniformly, and in case of job-
related injuries, the Group will report, identify, claim, appraise and
settle for the employees. Employee injury matters will be handled by
the human resources department of the Group and will be
supervised and reviewed by the director and manager of the human
resources department at each level, while relevant remuneration and
expenses will be reviewed by the financial department. All
departments and outlets will check their own safety hazards. The
Group will assign experts for inspection, and once a safety hazard is
found, the person involved will be ordered to rectify the situation
and be punished in accordance with specific circumstances.

The Group will keep pace with the times and polish the existing

policies to complement a more comprehensive range of disclosure in
the future.
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Staff Training

Hygiene is essential to food and beverage industry, nonetheless, the
brand image of an enterprise is directly determined by the service
performance of its employees. Employees are provided specific
trainings for each job position upon employment, equipping them
with sufficient knowledge to discharge duties in their respective
position. We also target to explore more potential of employees
through on-the-job training, which enable us to adjust work
assignation accordingly to align with the Group’s sustainable
development.

In 2021, each employee of the Group, including the management,
undertook training. Due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, in
order to avoid gatherings, all trainings in 2021 were carried out by
respective outlets separately. Employees have undertaken on-the-job
training with an average training time of two to three hours per
week. In the future, we will continue to enhance our existing
training system, provide more systematic training for our employees,
enhance the quality of teamwork and promote employees’
emergency handling abilities in daily operation, so as to provide our
customers with services of highest quality and satisfaction.

Recognition and Appreciation to Our Staff

In addition to remuneration, promotion and medical insurance, the
Group offers different kinds of rewards to our staff in recognition of
their dedication and contribution, so as to increase their sense of
belonging to the Group and to encourage our staff to share
happiness with their family and friends. However, due to the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2021, physical team building activities
remained suspended and were replaced by web-based recognition.
Compared to local recognition meetings, web-based meetings allow
employees to receive attention from all branches nationwide, which
further boosted their morale.
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Ensuring Health and Safety of Employees

During the past three vyears,
jobrelated injuries or casualties.

there were no case arising from

Health and safety of employees are of utmost importance. We have
strictly complied with the laws and requirements in the PRC to
ensure our employees work in a safe environment. Pursuant to
existing laws including Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China({##E AR KBS A[EE)), Regulation on Paid Annual
Leave for Employees (B T &5 %7 & /& 1)), Social Insurance Law
of the People’s Republic of China ({FZEAREMBI L SRERE))
and Regulation on Labour Protection for Female Workers ({Z B T
BENRENE)), the Group has formulated a series of measures for
relevant standards, ensuring that all of our employees are protected
in respect of their health and occupational safety.

For job-related injuries or work-related deaths, the Group will pay
social insurance for the employees uniformly, and in case of job-
related injuries, the Group will report, identify, claim, appraise and
settle for the employees. All departments and outlets will check their
own safety hazards. The Group will assign experts for inspection,
and once a safety hazard is found, the person involved will be
ordered to rectify the situation and be punished in accordance with
specific circumstances.

—  Body checks for employees

In terms of employees’ health, we believe that good health
and safety are a prerequisite for our staff to provide the best
service for our customers, therefore we arrange body checks
for staff in the course of recruitment. Moreover, the Group
provides its employees with annual body checks so that they
can understand their own health conditions and the Group can
assign workload accordingly. Additionally, our catering staff is
required to obtain a health card under the Group’s specific
Health Certificate Management System of Employees before
they commence working. Accordingly, all of our restaurants
are required to follow this system and shall require the staff to
review and renew their health card regularly. The Group places
high emphasis on our employee’s body checks during
recruitment and employment as well as annual body checks.
We hope our customers will have a high quality and
exceptional customer service in our restaurants.
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During the COVID-19 pandemic, we placed more emphasis on
the health of our employees by requiring them to conduct
nucleic acid tests and formulating a code of practice for
services during the pandemic, such as wearing masks inside
the restaurants, washing hands frequently, and not travelling to
high-risk areas during non-duty hours for the sake of personal
management.

Safety and protection measures for employees

We ensure a safe workplace for employees to achieve smooth
daily operation for our business. Therefore, we arrange on-the-
job guidance and training on daily operation for newly
recruited employees in relation to understanding the
requirement of their positions with an emphasis on the
prevention of potential damage to their health and safety.
Upon induction, employees also receive regular instruction
aiming to remind them of the importance of occupational
health and safety.

We are in strict compliance with Fire Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({FZEAREFBEEFHE)) to
regulate fire control at our restaurants. In order to set out
regulations and response in a more systematic manner, we
have also formulated the Training Manual on Fire Control over
Safe Food Production (BB R MEEZ ZHHIFM)), which
sets out common causes of restaurant fires such as improper
operation or aging electric circuit. It raises the fire safety
awareness of employees and educates them about firefighting
equipment, standard of use and other points to note. Each
department and outlet conduct its own safety review to
identify loopholes. The Group also assigns a responsible
personnel to conduct restaurant inspection and immediately
rectify any loopholes identified, and impose disciplinary action
on the person in charge of the venue in accordance with the
specific situation. In addition, with a view to improving the
contingency capability of our restaurants, we also arrange fire
drill for employees to become more capable of responding to
any emergency in a timely manner, thereby offering further
safety protection for our customers and employees.
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Insurance coverage for employees

The health of employees is the key to success of an enterprise.
The Group provides medical insurance pursuant to the
regulations of its operating regions, so as to safeguard our
employee’s life effectively. We make contributions to social
insurance for our employees in accordance with the law,
providing protection for our employees at all time. For
example, once an accident occurs, the personnel department
of the Group will approve the work injury report from
employee and calculate the salary and reimburse the medical
expense during convalescence in accordance with the local law.
After the convalescence, the personnel department will assess
capacity for work of the employee and make reasonable work
injury compensation based on respective injury severity.

On top of various insurances, the Group has put in place a
comprehensive set of structures and terms to expressly
stipulate the reasonable protection for employee rights. For
example, Employee Attendance and Absence System clearly
sets out a management guide that complements and protects
employee rights. Overtime work shall be assessed and
recorded by relevant person in charge and the calculation of
overtime work should start after the end of regular work hour
at 18:30. Various policies formulated by the Group require
support by different measures, departments and structures and
Longhui promises to provide continuous protection for each
and every valued employee in an active manner.

The Group strictly complies with the Labor Contract Law and
various local regulations and ordinances, and will take the
following remedial measures in a timely manner if violations
are found: for example, dismissing underage employees;
truthfully informing job seekers of their working hours and
remuneration package and honoring them; returning
employees’ deposits and all kinds of property; revising the
content of job postings so that no discriminatory words (e.g.
gender, ethnicity) are used, etc.
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Sustainable Supply Chain Management AHEERERNHEEREER

Assessment and Recruitment of Suppliers

We are introducing the concept of sustainable development
into our supply chain management, where we explore the
possibility of promoting innovation and reform in business
management as well as reform in industry development by way
of sustainable supply chain innovation and reform, with a view
to building a community where the interests of customers,
enterprises and suppliers are aligned for a more sustainable
future. We will integrate green practices and environmental
protection into our procurement review standards, connecting
them with considerations including safety, environmental
protection, quality and risk management.

Number of suppliers by brands per area in 2021
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Domestic Suppliers WAL FE R 5 36 54

During the Year, the Group had an aggregate of 95 qualified
suppliers, which were all domestic suppliers in the PRC.

As the Group engages in hot pot business, most of our
operating risks lie on the quality of our food. Since we do not
run our own production lines, therefore the Group places
extremely high requirements on supply chains.

Product quality, delivery timeliness, product price, compatibility
and stability are factors that the Group puts strong emphasis
on when considering engagement of suppliers.
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Technology-powered Food Safety Management

The Group's restaurants cover different regions of the country. In
order to unify the quality of our food throughout the country, the
Group has established a set of guidelines and procedures applicable
to restaurants in different regions, enabling each region to identify
available suppliers via standardized approach. Base on this,
adjustments on the assessment process will be made according to
the specific needs of each region, thereby promoting the efficiency
and accuracy of such assessment. The general monitoring process in
each region is as follows:

First, we make comparisons according to the market prices, and also
consider cost factors such as procurement cycle, inventory and
transportation to determine the allocation of orders. For quality
inspection, the receiving department is responsible for the
preliminary acceptance of products with the main duties of checking
the product packaging, quantity and supplier’s inspection report. The
user department is responsible for tracking the use of products. If
the quality is found to be unstable, the department should
investigate the reasons. If such problem is found to be caused by
suppliers, we would first warn the suppliers and request for return,
and then help them conduct acceptance inspection pursuant to our
delivery standard. In addition, the delivery time of suppliers is also of
great importance. Our purchasing department is responsible for
filling out the relevant orders according to the summary statement
of their on-time delivery rate, while the warehouse was responsible
for recording the delivery time and quantity. Each department works
in coordination to achieve the most effective evaluation on the
suppliers.

In addition, we have added indicators on suppliers’ environmental
and social risks. We have incorporated green and environmental
protection into our procurement review standards, combined with
safety, environmental protection, quality and risk management, to
encourage suppliers to use more environmentally friendly products
and focus on recycling, and continuously monitored suppliers’
performance.

In order to assure the quality of our suppliers as well as the stability
of our products, contracts are generally entered into on an annual
basis and will only be renewed if the suppliers have outstanding
performance.
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Under strict supplier management, our product quality maintained
stable over the past year, achieving a satisfying operation
performance. In addition, the quality of our suppliers is remarkable,
which increased from only three suppliers with ISO certification to
16 suppliers with I1SO 9000 certification. In 2021, we had 12
suppliers possessing ISO certification. In the future,
encourage our suppliers to optimize product quality and enhance
their respective availability for further development by collaborating
with suppliers in every respect for mutual prosperity.

we  will

Gain Popularity among Customers with Multiple levels
of Supervision.

During 2021, no product of the Group has been returned for safety
and health reasons.

Customers always come first for the Group. Customer satisfaction is
an important indicator for a restaurant’s performance. We have in
place an Express Hotline for Opinion Feedbacks and online
evaluation platform, allowing customers to make direct conversation
with our senior management and give feedbacks with only a call.
For complaints we will investigate the cause down to employee
level, and for appreciation, we will raise the performance evaluation
of involved employees.

All restaurants under the Group’s brands uphold the principle of
customer orientation, safeguarding the quality of our dishes strictly.
Quality is strictly monitored by kitchen staff and waitstaff so as to
assure that no expired or unhealthy, stale food will be served on
table. During the process of cutting and allocating the dishes by
kitchen staff, the first round of food safety guarantee would be
conducted. Our frontline staff is also responsible for receiving and
checking the dishes before serving them to the customers. Once any
improper quality is identified in a restaurant, the relevant restaurant
staff has the responsibility to inform the receiving department and
the purchasing department, and then investigate the cause of
defections and use it as an evidence for follow-up actions.

Our Fire Prevention and Food Production Safety Training Handbook
sets out explanations of food safety including causes, symptoms and
precautions of food poisoning, as well as specifying the duty and
structure of Safety Committee. It is the responsibility of the
committee to research and solve any problems relating to food
safety, organize and coordinate various departments within the
Group for the inspection and monitor of food safety supervision and
management.
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Further Protection and Respect of Our Customers
— Respect Customer’s Opinion

During the reporting period, the Group did not record any
complaint from our customers in respect of food safety issue or
required follow-up actions for a long period.

In addition to providing quality food in the catering industry,
Longhui International, places special emphasis on customer
experience. Each of our restaurants collect a large amount of
customer opinion in our day-to-day operations. The scope of opinion
is very broad, ranging from quality and taste of food, quality of
service, to dining environment, and we may receive opinion in
various aspects. The Group operates with customer oriented
principle and renders quality service. Once a customer gives
feedback, our restaurant staff would ask for the reason first, and
manage to answer respective questions. If we fail to completely
meet the customer’s requirements, restaurant manager will also help
address the issue, so as to properly handle the customer’s opinion
through discussion and negotiation.

In general, customers give their feedback in our restaurants
immediately, and our staff will also communicate with customers
and manage to satisfy their needs in accordance with our internal
code. For instance, if a customer complains about the appearance or
amount of our food, adhering to our customer-oriented principle, we
will meet the customer’s requirements as fully as possible, including
return of the food or providing refunds. If customers’ opinion is not
well handled, they may contact the customer service department of
the Group for further handling.

We hope to further improve the Group’s policies in the future by
collecting customer’s feedback and complaint, understanding the
inadequacies in different aspects by analysing customer’s opinion, so
as to enhance our service and food quality, which in turn improve
customer satisfaction on our brand.
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Customer Privacy Protection

During the reporting period the Group did not receive any
complaint due to leakage of customer information.

When collecting customer information for the Group’s record
of premium membership, our staff will explain to them the
purpose for which it is collected, and relevant personal
information will only be collected with their prior consent. In
the meantime, it is our policy that only authorized staff can
get access to customer information. For example, modification
of member information or processing of member's
accumulated points are limited to the system administrator,
store manager and cashier. Relevant name lists will be given in
each restaurant and office for record with their respective
authorization of staff expressly stipulated. Our frontline staff
serving in each restaurant should follow our guideline when
collecting personal information, which shall not be disclosed
without authorization. After filing customer information in the
Group's internal database, any access to the database shall be
approved by relevant authorized persons and records thereof
should be kept. We believe that under our close surveillance
of privacy, we are able to protect customer information from
unauthorized access by individual staff, thereby avoid customer
information leakage. Other than that, the employment contract
signed by our staff has set out relevant confidential clauses
which stipulated that no leakage of the Group's information is
allowed. Those who acted otherwise will be subject to
punishment or termination of employment contract, or in
extreme cases, be required to make up any loss incurred by
the Group.
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Anti-Corruption and Building a Culture of Honesty and
Integrity

During 2021,
corruption.

the Group did not record any case in relation to

All employees are required to read and sign the Rules on Staff
Reward and Disciplinary Penalty upon induction, which sets out
various scenarios of non-compliance by employees categorized into
serious or less serious violations, while different degrees of penalties
will be imposed for different levels of violations. Forging or
fraudulent use of the Group’s seal or any document, private
transaction with clients or vendors through job advantages, bribery
or profiteering or other activities detrimental to the Group’s interests
conducted by any employee is considered a serious case of violation.
If any employee is found to violate such rules, upon investigation by
various departments and the personnel and administration
department, the Group shall terminate the labour contract and
demand such employee to compensate for relevant losses of the
Group. The Group wishes to enlarge the scale of group monitoring
and promote overall awareness of anti-corruption in our Group
through internal structure review combining with staff reporting.

In the future, we will further optimize the Group’s anti-corruption
mechanism with established policies, provide anti-corruption trainings
for the Directors and employees and to enhance preventive and
deterrent measures against employees’ non- compliance attempts, in
order to minimize our operating risks and lay a sound foundation for
further business expansion going forward. With such measures, we
hope to strengthen the faith of our management, stakeholders and
the public in Longhui Group.
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CIVIC RESPONSIBILITY PREMF
Community Contribution HEH Rt
The Group has been committed to contributing to society with our AEBMEBFUATLEKTHLS  SELHA
main business and holding various activities annually. However, due #&EE® BN _ZE-_EFM_T——
to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 and 2021, we “COVID-19M ¥ 2 » Al 0 X RZ - B 1M
have suspended activities for these two years in order to avoid EETE2FMNES  METMEHHEN
cross-infection and put the health of our staff and stakeholders first. fE2FE AL - KK - FRBETE @ ZMe#
In the future, once the pandemic has stabilized, we will continue to #EHESEEZH  Adtei— 5
carry out various activities to do our part for the community.
Looking ahead, the Group will continue to fulfil our corporate social REXRK AEBMGHERERBITOELAR
responsibility by investing more resources in charity events and Ef  RAEZERRAZED  BEASE
encourage all employees to participate so as to promote awareness Bl2EET—FLE  HEHHSEENOR
for social care and thereby enhancing the corporate image of our #EMESAEBEMNTEFLR -
Group.
2021 3% mEEEREZERERAT 83



84

Independent Auditors’ Report
Mo B RN OHR S

B #F &3t 66 F 5% 60 A A 3

HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LONGHUI INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Longhui
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to 207,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditors’
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2.1 in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of
approximately RMB34,245,000 during the year ended 31 December
2021 and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by approximately RMB168,224,000. As stated in Note
2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, these events or
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 2.1,
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. In addition to the matter described in the “Material
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

in our

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Refer to Notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

BAEETEE
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The key audit matter
HREESER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENEFTNANEERBSER

The Group recorded property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets approximately of RMB2,898,000 and
RMB13,874,000 respectively as at 31 December 2021,
and impairment loss amounting to RMB11,358,000 and
RMB7,660,000 respectively were recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

NZZE_—F+-A=+—B - EXESHIEFTWE "
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LIEFE DRI TR IR EEE ARK1,358,0007T kAR
7,660,0007T °

We identified the impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as a key audit matter
due to the significance of the balance on the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021 and the significant judgement and
estimates were involved in assessment of the recoverable
amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets based on value-in-use calculations.
EERME BELARBLEREEERERI R
REFER AR _—F+_RA=+—HZ&KEaM
BARRAREEREHRALRBERBEAEFEYE -
BEREEREREEE 2FTKRE € BT ME XA G
KAl at e
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Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment

assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-

use assets included but not limited to:
EEEHEREYME MERRBHETRETHNIE
Fr e 35 B BR R

o Inquiring the management on their identification of
impairment indication and their methodology used
for the impairment assessment of properties, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets;

s THEEEBHREFRNBMNARME  BENMRK
HREREEERBENGRATE:

o Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used in determining the recoverable
amount;

s HHEETEANNRESBEMANMGEESANGENE:

o Assessing the appropriateness of the discount rate
used in determining the recoverable amount and
using our valuation experts;

e HIEEFAIMESEMBNERXRRERAGEER
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The key audit matter
BRETER

Independent Auditors’ Report
B Y & BEHRE S

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENEANAEEERER

o Accessing the appropriateness of other key
assumptions and inputs, including the growth rate of
revenue and major costs (include raw materials,
consumables used and staff costs) to revenue ratio
by comparing to historical performance and relevant
operation plans;

. I HEMEARRZ LB ABENSEN 2R KE
RFEXRKN(BERME FIAEMEE TR A
BREMBWHEERZL  FERERE £ KRR LA
Bl E AT &

o Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

s TWEREMBEABIENEREERBM[IE -

We found the key assumptions used by management in
the impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets were supportable by
available evidence.

EERRNEREETYE BERRBRERAEEER
B HTANERBEREMSEZEIRS -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, but does not include in the consolidated financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of the Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BY & B HRES

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’'s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex

Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEakRHttE2zE R E X

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =—F = —F+=HA=+—HIF FZ

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZEZTHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5% AR® T ARBFT
Revenue g z& 7 162,883 184,378
Foods and beverage and other BRmEKEAREAEME
materials consumables used ) (58,424) (84,501)
Employee benefit and related EEBRAMEIEHERXZ 9
expenses (58,123) (66,205)
Property rentals and related expenses %)% & & 8 BB %2 (13,548) (19,489)
Utilities expenses NEF X (4,078) (7.325)
Depreciation, amortisation, M BERZE SHAE 16, 17,18
impairment and written-off of BEUNRBREER
property, plant and equipment, e - i RE KM
right-of-use assets and intangible
asset (51,605) (70,079)
Other operating expenses EmeERY (16,104) (17,087)
Other income, other gains and losses, E bt A « E Ath Uy =% & &5 18 8
net F R 9,417 17,905
Loss from operating activities RELEETHHNEE 10 (29,582) (62,403)
Finance expenses, net RMERYFEE 11 (3,595) (6,595)
Loss before tax BREATE 18 (33.177) (68,998)
Income tax expenses FrisfiEx 12 (1,068) (716)
Loss for the year FAEE (34,245) (69,714)
Loss attributable to: DATELTEGLEES:
Owners of the Company ViIN/NEIEZ R =N (33,954) (69,058)
Non-controlling interest R ER (291) (656)
(34,245) (69,714)
Loss for the year FABE (34,245) (69,714)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, — Efb 2@ (EE), MWA
net of income tax HMERAER
Item that may be reclassified HEApgEEFN D 2 B
subsequently to profit or loss: HE -
Currency translation differences EEENEZR (184) 2,611
Total comprehensive loss for FRAEZHEREALR
the year (34,429) (67,103)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HeEaRRHEHttE2EE RS X

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F ——F+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2021 2020
— s T oTH
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5 ARBTR ARBFT
Total comprehensive loss UTE&FTEMEZHEER
attributable to: e
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZ SN (34,138) (66,447)
Non-controlling interest FEIE R A (291) (656)
(34,429) (67,103)
Loss per share BREE 13
— Basic (RMB cent) — EXR(ARE D) (5.5) (20.9)
— Diluted (RMB cent) — BE(AR%ED) (5.5) (20.9)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B &R R R

As at 31 December 2021 R=FE=—4F+=-H=+—H

2021 2020
—E=-—F —TTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 AR¥F T AR T
Assets EBE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 16 2,898 22,879
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 17 13,874 48,778
Intangible asset mEEE 18 = 4
Prepayments, deposits and other FENFHIE - e R HMER 20
receivables I8 6,889 10,494
Deferred tax assets IR IR & B 28 24,333 25,389
47,994 107,544
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 21 12,658 14,086
Trade receivables g 5 e W IE 19 2,883 2,269
Prepayments, deposits and other TR FIE - e R H M EW 20
receivables FIE 24,792 34,395
Cash and cash equivalents HehkIReEEY 22 2,196 3177
42,529 53,927
Total assets EERE 90,523 161,471
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital [N 23 230 109
Reserves & 8 (137,274) (147,837)
Equity attributable to owners of ZRATHEEAELER
the Company (137,044) (147,728)
Non-controlling interest FERER (1,637) (1,346)
Total equity R (138,681) (149,074)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB R R

As at 31 December 2021 R=F=—#F+=-H=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZT-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 AR T T ARETT
Liabilities a&
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 15,198 49,186
Convertible bonds AR E S 29 3,178 3,001
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 28 75 116
18,451 52,303
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables H 5 RIE 24 29,551 44,366
Other payables and accruals HtENREREGTER 25 114,600 145,235
Contract liabilities AEHEE 26 45,365 47,822
Lease liabilities HMEARE 17 14,755 16,976
Borrowings BE 27 4,800 3,000
Income tax payables FERTFR1R B 1,682 843
210,753 258,242
Total liabilities BEHAE 229,204 310,545
Total equity and liabilities BEZRERE 90,523 161,471
Net current liabilities REBAEEFH (168,224) (204,315)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 207 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30

March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hung Shui Chak

Director

EF

FNEW/EZHEEBVBHRRTIR_TE ==
FZA-ZTHEEESSH AR EERE I
HUTEERERESE:

Yuan Mingjie

AR
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
n‘/-.r\ |:| *E /\ 'n’“ Eb %%

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ARABAAREES
Share
Convertible based-
bonds payments Statutory Capital Non-
Share Share reserve reserve reserve reserve Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
Capital premium (Note 29) (Note 30) (Note i) (Note ii) reserve losses Sub-total interesting equity
THE URAAER
EERE DES:1 ] EERE N1
BE  RGEE (K29 (K30 (W) (Witi)  ERfH  RHER Mt OEERER g £
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR AR% AR¥% AR AR% AR¥% AR AR% AR¥% AR AR%
As at 1 January 2020 2F—A—-R 109 566,637 1,069 - 10,491 (118,137) 1371 (542,821) (81,281) (690) (81,971)
Loss for the year FAEE - - - - - - (69,058) (69,058) (656) (69,714)
Other comprehensive income: ~ EA 2 EHA -
Currency translation ERERER
difference - - - - - 2,61 - 2,61 - 2,611
Total comprehensive loss for A2 FEAHE
the year - - - - - 2,611 (69,058) (66,447) (656) (67,103)
As at 31 December 2020  W=-F-2%£+-A=+-A
and 1 January 2021 R=B=-5-5-H 109 566,637 1,069 - 10,491 (118,137) 3,982 (611,879) (147,728) (1,346) (149,074)
Loss for the year ERFR = = = = = = (33,954) (33,954) (291) (34,245)
Other comprehensive loss:  Ht2EHE:
Currency translation HBEHER
difference - = = = - (184) - (184) - (184)
Total comprehensive loss ~ FRA2EFBLE
for the year = = = = = (184) (33,954) (34,138) (291) (34,429)
Recognition of BRUAREAEUARBRER
equity-settled oE:S
share-based payments = = = 3,199 = = = 3,199 = 3,199
Issue of shares upon rights #REZTRAFE
issue, net 106 36,937 = = = = = 37,043 = 37,043
Exercise of share options T B R 15 6,768 = (2,203) = = = 4,580 = 4,580
As at 31 December 2021 R-2--f+-A=t-H 230 610,342 1,069 996 10,491 (118,137) 3,798 (645,833) (137,044) (1,637) (138,681)
Notes: B 5% :
(i) Statutory reserve (i) % TE fit 8
In accordance with the Articles of Association of all subsidiaries established in BEMBEFEAREMBE(HE]) KB
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), those subsidiaries are required to NAIZHEHBERMA - ZEHBRRIAEK10%K
transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the statutory reserve until the MEsNBEEEHE BEEZREEEINTME
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be KHI50% AL - BAZFHELBEERAERZFTEA
made before distributing dividends to equity holders. The statutory reserve can IRERBATET - EAEREBEAIARBHNEFE
be used to make up for previous years’ losses, expand the existing operation or HEE BrRELELEBRANBRARENE
convert into additional capital of the subsidiaries. 7 e
(ii) Capital reserve (ii) BEAREE

It represents the difference between the issued share capital and share
premium of the Company and the share capital of Longhui International
Catering Management Holdings Limited (the accounting acquirer) immediately
before the acquisition of Longhui International Catering Management Holdings
Limited.

LONGHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

HEAR TE%GHXZK&fon/mFEﬁ?E#%Im
ﬁ)\”&@? P& PR A R (& 5T U B A ) 20 BB U B e
EERE @ai@?@ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ—lﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂﬂﬁ¢2%§5 °




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEEHERE R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F ——F+=-HA=+—HIFZ

2021 2020
—E2-—-F —ZE_FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B =E AR¥T T AR¥ET T
Cash flows from operating RETHABRERE
activities
Loss before tax B %% A &5 18 (33,177) (68,998)
Adjustments for: ERATIER %
Finance expenses, net BA 75 B S F BR 11 3,595 6,595
Depreciation of property, plant and  #1% - BER REBITE 10
equipment 7,583 13,628
Impairment of property, plant and ME BERREREBE 10
equipment 11,358 3,709
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property HEMEREZHE 8
plant and equipment, (W z) /&8 (205) 706
Written-off of property, plant and MiEmE  BEREE 10
equipment 2,769 2,704
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEAERE 10 22,231 42,598
Impairment of right-of-use assets CREAEERE 10 7,660 7,344
Amortisation of intangible asset B A E#E 10 4 96
(Reversal of allowance for)/ EHEEEE®EE), 10
allowance for expected credit B
loss on trade and other
receivables (1,575) 1,027
Equity-settled share-based VATE %5 45 B LA RR 19 , 30
payments AR 3,199 —
Rental concession HeER 8 (1,808) (4,325)
Gain on lease modification HEET KR 8 (3,908) (12,186)
Operating cash flows before 2 EESEHA 2L
movements in working capital EIEE R 17,726 (7,102)
Decrease in inventories FERD 1,428 13,012
Decrease in trade receivables 25 W E R A 55 1,896
Decrease in prepayments, deposits TERNFIE - me kEM
and other receivables & U 3R I8 R 14,114 28,453
Decrease in trade payables o5 EMNIERLD (14,815) (8,499)
Decrease in other payables and HEMNKIERESER
accruals o (18,502) (15,085)
(Decrease)/increase in contract AXadEOoRY), Emn
liabilities (2,457) 4,998
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEHEERE X

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

2021 2020
—2-—F —T-THF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
hgr=s AR¥T AR FT
Cash (used in)/generated from KESEE)(FTR) B8
operating activities & (2,451) 17,673
Income tax refund/(paid) BiR,(BER)FTEH 785 (46)
Net cash (used in)/generated from K& EE (FFA) FBHEE
operating activities HEE (1,666) 17,627
Cash flows from investing REZHFEBRERE
activities
Purchases of property, plant and BEME BERREB 16
equipment (5,852) (5,027)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BELKHEHZ
plant and equipment Fr 15 5018 4,328 435
Interest received 24 F B 8 14
Net cash used in investing RETEFMARESFHE
activities (1,516) (4,578)
Cash flows from financing RETBFRSAESRE
activities
Proceeds from issue of shares from 1t i% 3 77 f% 17 A 15 7 18
rights issue 37,043 —
Proceeds from exercise of share 1710 B AR ¥ P15 3R 18
option 4,580 —
Proceeds from borrowings BEEMERE 4,800 3,000
Loans from independent third ﬁﬁi%fﬁg\%\
parties 10,247 28,200
Interest expense on borrowings BEMERX 11 (142) (104)
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (3.000) —
Repayment of loans from MEBTE=HER
independent third parties (22,591) —
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEaE 17 (28,681) (46,222)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEEFE B (FTA), B
financing activities =30 2,256 (15,126)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBASEEYRDFE
equivalents (926) (2,077)
Cash and cash equivalents at the £ BRERRESZEEY
beginning of the year 3,177 5,338
Effects of exchange rate changes HE&RBESEEYMNWERS
on cash and cash equivalents ve (55) (84)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FXREERBREZEEY
end of the year 2,196 3,177
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R WA

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2 = F=—4#+=A=+—HIk ¢/§
GENERAL 1. —RES

Longhui International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 15
October 2009, and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. According to the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company as at 31 December
2021, Shui Chak Group Limited (“Shui Chak Group”) is the
substantial corporate shareholder of the Company. The
ultimate controlling party of Shui Chak Group Limited is Mr.
Hung Shui Chak (“Mr. Hung”).

The address of the registered office of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong is Suite 301, 3/F.,, Hale Weal Industrial
Building, 22-28 Tai Chung Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are engaged in restaurants operation located in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated statements has been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB"”). In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(RMB'000) except otherwise indicated. RMB is the Company’s
presentation currency and the functional currency of the
principal operating subsidiaries of the Group. The functional
currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). The
Directors consider the choosing RMB as the presentation
currency best suits the needs of the shareholders and
investors.

The consolidated financial statements at and for the year
ended 31 December 2021 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Going concern basis

The Group reported a consolidated net loss of approximately
RMB34,245,000 (2020: RMB69,714,000) for the current year
and net current liabilities of approximately RMB168,224,000
(2020: RMB204,315,000) at 31 December 2021.

The cash and cash equivalent balance amounted to
approximately RMB2,196,000 (2020: RMB3,177,000) at 31
December 2021. These circumstances may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

During the year, the directors of the Company (“Directors”)
have taken various measures with an aim to improve the
Group's liquidity position. The Directors have prepared a cash
flow forecast of the Group for the next twelve months from
the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements
based on the existing situation, the future events and
commitments of the Group. The Directors considered that the
Group will have adequate working capital to meet its
obligations, therefore the consolidated financial statements of
the Group have been prepared under a going concern basis.
Measures and estimations have been taken into consideration
by the Directors, including but not limited to:

(i)  the substantial shareholders of the Company have given
their consent to provide continuous financial support to
the Group to enable the Group to meets its obligations
when due;

(i) negotiating with banks and other financial institution for
new banking facilities;

(ili)  management has been endeavoring to improve the
Group's operating results and cash flows through various
cost control measures and will slow down the opening of
new restaurants or will close underperforming
restaurants in the future;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

(iv)  negotiating with the landlords for rent concessions due
to the reduced number of customers as overshadowed
by the outbreak of coronavirus (“COVID-19");

(v)  the Group is actively considering to raise new capital by
carrying out fund raising activities including but not
limited to rights issue, open offer and placing of new
shares.

Notwithstanding the above, given the outbreak of COVID-19
coronavirus and the uncertainties to obtain continuous support
by the banks and the Group’s creditors, material uncertainties
exist as to whether management of the Company will be able
to achieve its plans and measures as described above.

Should the Group be unable to continue its business as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the value of assets to their recoverable amount, to
provide for future liabilities which might arise and to reclassify
non-current assets and liabilities to current assets and liabilities
respectively. The effects of these potential adjustments have
not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

2.2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards
and the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
IAS 39, IFRS 7,
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to
IFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021".

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the
International Accounting Standards Board issued in June 2021
which clarified the costs an entity should include as “estimated
costs necessary to make the sale” when determining the net
realisable value of inventories.

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

2.2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRS
Standards

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendment?
Reference to the Conceptual Framework!

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract’

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018—
2020

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The Directors anticipate that the application of all the new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Listing Rules and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in IAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to being their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # &= ?:*i%:ﬁi%*ﬂﬁ FEF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit
or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivables. The
Group's investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment.

LONGHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

3.

EEBRERBMEE)

aOERE(H)

(V=N 2l g Fg N iR
Z%ﬁﬂﬁzﬂ HHXKRBAAA R

w BEEEETERSAEARN  NE
ﬂ%&%%m HENBRARZEE
FE e

K118 2 7]

BB~ A8 XA A A Bk R AR B A
ER(BREBUEER) WAKRBEEBE
SERKETEBMZFENE NG

WIRETWA DR - BAREITHRE
RERETNEAFZERBEOR AKX
SEHEAZERMEHEGIREET
AEBEREEREENHBEETBARE

H) e

MARREEREEEENRRET
SERIBLUEN R AF - BIFEGE
RABEWRETREREENET - K
SEeEEMAMEBEERER 8
¥

@ HRWRETHMREEEEA
BT B

(b)) WREEMENZHAZEBHERN
K

© AEENKRERELEBEEREE-

MEBARMEGEFAARFEZE  UB
WREREERR AEEHKER
AR B ARAE FRE IR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

(i) deferred tax assets or liabilities, and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with IAS 12 “Income Taxes”
and IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

(i) liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment transactions of the acquiree or the replacement
of an acquiree’s share-based payment transactions with
share-based payment transactions of the Group are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” at the acquisition date; and

(iii)  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard.

3.

EZEETBEBEE)

EBa s

EBWBLEBWEEAR - REK
EHBRNORERQFEE  Mmat
BEHAEARARRMBREE A5HE
HBEWBHIREBAEENABRAR
SEP BB IR HI R ETH
PR E BB R FEAM - B8
BEEAENRAREEFEBERTD
HERR o

RIGEBEE  SREOTREER
EABABREATBETUER i
TG EB I

() ELEHREAEEXNBENEEER
MZEBHEMNABEREEDBIR
EEBR G ENEI125R P EH]
kEReEE 195 RERN ]

R Rt E

(i) BB ARMNABERMNRR
ZEROHBEIBRATAEIURK
MAERNRXZEEREES
AP RERNRRZTRIEE
R EERFE2RARMD A
ERNKIFE R

(i) RIFBIFRE T S RS+
FHENERBDEEREKRILEL
EEBIEDABHELENEE
(X h & 8) 1R 1% 2% ] % Rl &

=
B °

2021 3 EEBEEEEZERERAH

107



108

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any noncontrolling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’'s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any noncontrolling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’'s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of noncontrolling interests are measured at
their fair value or another measurement basis required by
another standard.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments being made against goodwill or gain on bargain
purchase. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date. Measurement period does not
exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement”, or IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that
have previously been recognized in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit or
loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for
the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of
that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or a
bundle or goods or services) that is distinct or a service of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control of the asset may be transferred over time or at a point
in time. Control of the asset is transferred over time if:

o The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s performance as the
entity performs; or

o The Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o The Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

If the control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period to the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognized at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the asset.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments”. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

The Group recognised a refund liability if the Group receives
consideration from a customer and expects to refund some or
all of that consideration to the customer. A refund liability is
measured at the amount of consideration received (or
receivable) for which the Group does not expect to be entitled
(i.e. amounts not included in the transaction price). The refund
liability (and corresponding change in the transaction price
and, therefore, the contract liability) is updated at the end of
each reporting period for changes in circumstances.

The Group generates revenues from restaurant operation.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for discounts and sales
related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measure; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

For restaurant operation for which the control of services is
transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised when the
related services have been rendered to customers.

Advance from customers for which the services have not been
rendered are recognised as liabilities until the relevant services
are performed and was classified as contract liabilities.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired
receivables is recognized using the original effective interest
rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =—F = —F+=HA=+—HIF FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate standalone price of the
non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
and are accounted for by applying other applicable standards.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of shops, office and warehouse that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EESTHERMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE(E)

The Group as lessee (Continued) rEFESEAHEANE

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
(Continued)

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

HHER I EEEEHE (&)

EREEENKABRE:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease . HMEABENY LA ESE:
liability;
e any lease payments made at or before the commencement e REEHRABABKZAIZNTN
date, less any lease incentives received; TRIEERE  BREAMAEHEE
BESE:
e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and o  AKEEAMEWIBREENA:
P53
. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in . AEBFHEBRBBEEE - &

dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option;

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment; and

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
Except for Covid-19-related rent concession in which the Group

applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a lease
modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =—F = —F+=HA=+—HIF FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the

effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-

use asset. When the modified contract contains a

component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the
change is a lease modification if all of the following conditions

are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same

as, or less than, the consideration for the
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying IFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which the

event occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Company’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”).

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net investment
hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income
statement within ‘finance income or expenses’.

The results of operations outside the PRC are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation with a financial currency
other than RMB, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Current and deferred tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the jurisdictions where the Company and its
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill and deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Current and deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Company and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the foreseeable future and there is sufficient
taxable profit available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Current and deferred tax (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
“Income Taxes” requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the combined statements of comprehensive income over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

LONGHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

3.

EZEETBEBEE)

B3 K% 3 fE B 05 (A7)

AR EHEREERANEER
SN AEERERAEEENEESR
BEEBREABERETERFE2RAE
BIRE HEEHEEEMHERRE
MNEHRNEREZRIARNERYLA
RHMEMI RER - HEHHEMR
ERERMEETERUERAEEE
FHERENEEEETREECTM
EENTZMGERRCNERER
REHAELETEER -

BIE MR ETR H N RS R
B&

EENERAFENRAELENRZS
RATARER - (EEERIZBHENKA
SRR TSR (FABR R K AR) B 1
BEEENEAEZERERERNSER
EERNRERHFEEKRERANER -

EEFREAESOXZHMERNIE
AT ARIEFREINNERTIHE
RRBERHZHRA - EUIBERT %
ERBECERMERBELER - EX
BEPSRBTIZERRAAESSHE
MERHNBRLT ZERBERELXMER
MBESTRBOENK XREHEH
MEHEATAMH -

BRERRBAEGHERNSEHEE
EEEREPREED1N2M@EA - TRIE
ERWE D RRBEME -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs
Pension obligations
(i) Hong Kong

The Group participates in a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF scheme”), which is a defined
contribution scheme, for its employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the MPF scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independent administered
fund.

Both the Group and the employees are required to
contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant income,
subject to a maximum of HK$1,500 per employee per
month. The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they
are due and prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund is available.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =—F = —F+=HA=+—HIF FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)
Pension obligations (Continued)
(i) The PRC

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme. Payments to defined
contribution retirement plans are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs
are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the combined
statements of comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred. Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

—  Vehicles: 5 years

—  Machineries: 5 years

—  Furniture: 5 years

—  Equipment and computers: 3 years

—  Leasehold improvements: 5 years to 8 years (shorter of

remaining term of the lease and the estimated useful
lives of assets)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The assets’ residual values and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents machinery and leasehold
improvements under construction. It is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs
of construction and acquisition, and capitalised costs
attributable to the construction during the period of
construction. No provision for depreciation is made on
construction in progress until such time as the relevant assets
are completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are available for use, the costs are transferred to
property, plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as stated in above.

The cost of property, plant and equipment also includes the
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the asset and
restoring the site on which it is located (“decommissioning
costs”).

Decommissioning costs such as dilapidation expenditure arose
in connection with leasehold improvements are capitalised
when the leases start and will be recognized in the combined
statements of comprehensive income over the useful life of the
asset (generally the expected lease term) as part of the
depreciation charge. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =—F = —F+=HA=+—HIF FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible asset

Intangible asset acquired separately

Intangible asset with finite useful life that is acquired
separately is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
asset with finite useful life is provided on a straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible asset include computer software, and is measured at
cost. Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis

over the period of 5 years.

Impairment of tangible and intangible asset other

than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible asset with
finite useful life to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be

identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible asset other
than goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverse, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to make
the sale.

Related parties transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Company if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Company;
(i) has significant influence over the Company; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties transactions (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Company are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiaries is related to the
others);

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group which the other entity is a
member);

(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  he entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Company. If the Company is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employees are
also related to the Company;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in note (a);
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties transactions (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influence by, that person in their dealing with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources, or
obligations between the Company and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # &= ?:*i%:ﬁi%*ﬂﬁ FEF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EESHEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) LRI AE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE &)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial TR EERN DR EE(E)

assets (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: WEETIEN  BEeREEDHE
REPBEER:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling o  HNFERWEUNEHANHE:
in the near term; or 54

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified . RS HERE  HAEREEH
financial instruments that the Group manages together ﬁi@ZT‘%&%UﬁmﬁIﬂﬁﬂ/\ﬁ'}—
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit- o WEBEHEMNAIHE
taking; or BRiE sk

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a . HBUWFEERERAYHAIAA
hedging instrument. MEPTETA -

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial gL AN - 20 B FIOB B3k KR D & 3

asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost SR - BIARSE RSB IE A

or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or BRBHEKANIEATFEFAHLME

significant reduces an accounting mismatch. ARG ENEREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =—F = —F+=HA=+—HIF FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is

no longer credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, and bank balances and cash) which are
subject to impairment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk

since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Continued)

EZEETBEBEE)

Financial instruments (Continued) EMITE(E)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (B

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit HEREEEESND - FHDIRER
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the SENELERABELRET LR
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of BEBAFENREEZ  —MREEMRR

both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognized is based on significant
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

M

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instruments at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instruments at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

financial instruments’ external (if available) or
internal credit rating;
o significant deterioration in external market

indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread,;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

M

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, technological
environment of the debtor that results
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

economic, or
in a

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

M

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
one month past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

3)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =—F = —F+=HA=+—HIF FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(4)

Write-off policy

The Group writes-off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over one year past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written-off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EESTHEBEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SR ITE(E)

Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(5)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped into past-due status and nature, size and
industry of debtors.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
other receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, convertible bonds,
trade payables, other payables and accruals and lease liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis

and is included in finance costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bonds

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible
notes) issued by the Company are classified separately as
financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instrument is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar
non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a
liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest
method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option as equity is determined by deducting
the amount of the liability component from the fair value of
the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognized and
included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until conversion option
is exercised, in with case, the balance recognized in equity will
be transferred to share premium. When the conversion option
remains unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible
notes, the balance recognized in equity will be transferred to
retained profits. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the convertible notes using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue.
A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognized.

revenue.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and time deposits with original maturities of three
months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers.

Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Pension Obligations

The entities within the Group registered in the PRC make
employee benefit contributions based on certain
percentage of the salaries of the employees to a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan organized by
relevant government authorities in the PRC on a monthly
basis. The government authorities undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations payable to the existing
and future retired employees under these plans and the
Group has no further obligation for postretirement
benefits beyond the contributions made. Contributions to
these plans are expensed as incurred. Assets of the plans
are held and managed by government authorities and are
separate from those of the Group.

Housing Funds, Medical Insurances and Other
Social Insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to
participate in various government supervised housing
funds, medical insurances and other employee social
insurances plans. The Group contributes on a monthly
basis to these funds based on certain percentages of the
salaries of the employees, subject to certain ceiling. The
Group has no further payment obligation once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due.

Employee Leave Entitlements

Employees entitlement to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period. Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave is not recognised until the time of leave.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =—F = —F+=HA=+—HIF FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share options granted to directors and employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees and other providing similar services are measured at
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity
settled share-based transactions are set out in Note 30 to the

Group's consolidation financial statements.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). For
share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss. At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognized in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee

benefits reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognized in share options reserve will be transferred to share
capital. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognized in share options reserve will continue to
be held in share options reserve will be transferred to

accumulated profit.

When shares granted are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be transferred

to share premium.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties
and employee termination payments. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company'’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income, other gains and
losses, net”.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

4. KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible asset

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in estimating the recoverable amounts including
cash flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use
assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit to which the assets belongs,
including allocation of corporate assets when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, otherwise recoverable amount is determined
at the smallest group of cash generating units, for which
the relevant corporate assets have been allocated.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable
amounts. Furthermore, the cash flows projections,
growth rate and discount rate are subject to greater
uncertainties in the current year due to uncertainty on
how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress and evolve
and volatility in financial markets, including potential
disruptions in the Group’s restaurant operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

4. KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION

(a)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible asset
(continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets, subject to impairment assessment were
approximately RMB2,898,000 (2020: RMB22,879,000)
and RMB13,874,000 (2020: RMB48,778,000) respectively,
after taking into account the impairment losses of
approximately RMB11,358,000 (2020: RMB3,709,000)
and RMB7,660,000 (2020: RMB7,344,000) in respect of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
that have been recognised respectively. Details of the
impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are disclosed in Notes 16 and 17
respectively.

Determination on discount rates of lease
contracts

The Group applies incremental borrowing rates as the
discount rates of lease liabilities, which require financing
spread adjustments and lease specific adjustments based
on the relevant market rates. The assessments of the
adjustments in determining the discount rates involved
management’s judgment, which may significantly affect
the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets.

4. fAFTHEERIR

(a)

(b)

ME - BMERRE EHEER
EREFREEREHE)

R—F-_—F+-A=+—8"
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F:ARM22,879,000T) B AR
%1387400071(:%:?@/\
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A AN R #11,358,000 (ZE-F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 5. REEE I MWEMIA

2021 2020
—E_—F —EFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBF T
Financial assets at amortised cost: BHENAARSREE
— Trade receivables — B 5 EWRIA 2,883 2,269
— Other receivables and deposits — HEf W HRIE R IR &
(excluding rental and utilities (TEEHEEEKE
prepayments and value added TEAT SR IE R (B
tax inputs) EB) 9,136 24,496
— Cash and cash equivalents —ReEKBEEEY 2,196 3,177
14,215 29,942
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REENAARZEBEE:
— Trade payables — B ENKIE 29,551 44,366
— Other payables and accruals — HMERFRIE R EETKIE
(excluding staff costs and welfare (TEEEFEIRA
accruals and other tax liabilities) REf kEminEE
&) 61,444 83,694
— Convertible bonds — AR ES 3,178 3,001
— Lease liabilities — HEaE 29,953 66,162
— Borrowings — BB 4,800 3,000
128,926 200,223
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

Except as detailed in the following table, the Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements are approximate to their fair values:

5. REEE I WERMITAGA)

BRTRAHLEIN  AEZRREAY
BREATEHRRCREELRCHAR
ZHEREEHREQFEMEE:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-ETF
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
REE AFE REE ARSI
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTF T AR%T AR®EFT ARBFT

Financial liabilities ctRmas
Convertible bonds AR E S 3,178

3,026 3,001 2,739

There were no transfer between Level 1 and 2 in both years.
When a determination is made to classify an asset or liability
within Level 3, the determination is based upon the
significance of the unobservable inputs to the overall fair value
measurement.

EWEFE  F—RRE KL &N
B EE=MNETHBEELAR
B oOREDEET BRI EE
AFEHBOERREMER -

Valuation Unobservable
Financial liabilities Techniques inputs 2021 2020
=S =R (R WP TABEEnAZE —E_—F —EZFF
Convertible bonds Binomial model Discount rate 12.34% 12.79%
AmRES ZIHER Bh IR &=

As at 31 December 2021, the discount rate used to compute
the fair value is 12.34%. The higher the discount rate, the
lower the fair value.

RZFZ—F+ZA=+t—08 &R
SEEATAAELIE R A512.34%  BhIR &R
e AFEAR-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =—F = —F+=HA=+—HIF FZ

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
currently does not use any derivative financial
instruments to hedge certain risk exposures during the
years.

(i) Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group considers that there is no significant
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk as the Group does not have variable rate
borrowings. The Group’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. The Group
currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
deposit and other receivables. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

The credit quality of trade receivables, deposit and
other receivables have been assessed by reference
to historical information about the counterparty
default rates. The existing counterparties do not
have defaults in the past. The Group is exposed to
credit risk in relation to its trade and other
receivables and cash deposits at banks. The
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

The Group expects that there is no significant
credit risk associated with cash deposits at banks
since they are substantially deposited at state-
owned banks and other medium or large-sized
listed banks. Management does not expect that
there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

The Group has large number of customers and
there was no concentration of credit risk. No single
customer accounted for more than 1% of the
Group's total revenues during the year. The Group
has monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverability of
these receivables at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

ERE N = —hEge = o = g —(E] fE E

MR EE(E)

(a)

B EREEGE)
(i) EEEE

AEEEERBREZRER
e RREFEY  BHEK
HRIE -~ R & DA R HoAt U R
H e ZEBBOKREERAN
SEHRARSMEEN

RARERFER
BIRWGIE - e REAM

BUEFENEERERS
EUFHARERERBEER
FmE G - BBEEF
BEWEABRER - NEME
HE S 5 K H s 8 U R IE )2
RITAERARXEEGER
- B5 & H R R
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REASERATMEENR
REEERR -

AEEPEHY EEIRTRE
FREENEREERR
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
IFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected credit loss provision for all trade
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses
trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. The Group has
performed historical analysis and identified the key
economic variables impacting credit risk and
expected credit loss. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, trade receivables
that are individually significant have been
separately assessed for impairment. The Group
makes periodic assessments on the recoverability of
the receivables based on the background and
reputation of the customers, historical settlement
records and past experience. Credit sales are made
to selected customers with good credit history. The
Group has policies in place to ensure that
outstanding trade receivables are collected on a
timely basis.
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6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #; 2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

—EFC—Ff A=+ AU EE

B3 R ke B E (F)
(@) H¥EREEH)

(i) Credit risk (Continued) (i) EREE &)
The following table provides information about the TRIEMHBEBERAERE
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which fEEITEETENEIEK
are assessed on a collective basis by using FEFEERRHER - B8
provision matrix as follow: T
Past due

Current  31-60 days  61-150 days 151-360 days  Over 1 year Total

babelIld NBOK  GIEI0K  151E360% BB-& @

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
As at 31 December 2021 R=B=-%
t=AZ+-8
Gross carrying amount REAR 2,567 1 an 14 2,037 5,090
Expected loss rate BAEERE 3.0% 10.3% 18.0% 57.1% 100.0% 43.4%
Loss allowance BERE 7 = 85 8 2,037 2,207
As at 31 December 2020 WZZZZE
+-A=1-H

Gross carrying amount RERE 1783 137 370 140 2,115 5145
Expected loss rate BHERE 2.8% 73% 13.8% 35.7% 100.0% 55.8%
Loss allowance BEER 50 10 51 50 2,715 2,876

For trade receivables, a reversal of allowance for
expected credit loss of approximately RMB669,000
(2020: an allowance for expected credit losses
RMB1,742,000) was recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

RESEWHIEmMS  RNE
E-F-_—F+=-A=+—
HIEFEERREBEES
BREREBREDHARE
669,000C(ZE-_FT & ¥
HEEBERBEARE
1,742,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

Credit risk (Continued)

For deposits and other receivables as well as
amounts due from related parties, individual credit
evaluations are preferred. These evaluations focus
on the counterparties’ past history of making
payment when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the
counterparties as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the counterparties
operates. The Group does not obtain collateral
from the counterparties.

The Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit losses
on a timely basis. The Group has assessed that the
expected credit loss rate for these receivables, thus
a reversal of allowance for expected credit loss of
approximately RMB906,000 (2020: RMB715,000)
was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. EtiERE M EE (&)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued) () BMERBERE)
(ii) Credit risk (Continued) (i) EE@EFE &)
The Group uses below categories for those NEEEZEEBGRIBRA
receivables which reflect their credit risk and how TR - UREBREEER
the loss allowance is determined for each of those b N tn ] &5 E & FH R B B
categories. A summary of the assumptions BEE AEENEHEE
underpinning the Group’s ECL model is as follows: EHBERA KBNS REH
(I
Internal credit Other receivables
rating Description and deposits
RS B ot HttEWRERRS
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does 12m ECL
not have any past-due amounts
1K = B HFEFMENRRRE TEETFABHASHE REAEREEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually 12m ECL
settle in full
BRAE BEBAKLERINMAEER BERE2ENE REAEHEEESRE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since Lifetime ECL — not
initial recognition through information developed credit-impaired
internally or external resources
7 &E MBRNISIITERSEHOER  TRIBVNIHER 2HBEHEEEE
PASRAE B 2 b 78 & 12 0 — EBEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired
[ EEBRAZEECHBREERE >HEMAEEERE
— EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written-
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic off
prospect of recovery
g EEBXRABRBARRBENMBERELAEBTE MHSHE
BRI A=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =—F = —F+=HA=+—HIF FZ

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. B iEE K EE (&)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) M¥EEBREZEE)
(i) Credit risk (Continued) (i) EREE &)
The loss allowance for other receivables and RIEBE-—FR-F-_FTF
deposits as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was +-—A=+—H HMEK
determined as follows: REEERENEERBHE
FOT:
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZBZ—-F+ZA=+-—
H

Low risk Total

1% & k& Mot

RMB'000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Expected loss rate TEHR s 1B & 4.1%

Gross carrying amount RHEEE 9,528 9,528

Loss allowance &5 18 B 392 392
As at 31 December 2020 RZEBE_ZEF+_A=1+—

H

Low risk Total

15 & B o5t

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBET T ARETTT

Expected loss rate TEEAES 1R & 5.3%
Gross carrying amount BREAEE 24,496 24,496
Loss allowance &5 18 B R 1,298 1,298
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by regularly
monitoring current and expected liquidity
requirements and ensuring sufficient cash and cash
equivalent to meet the Group’s liquidity
requirements in the short and long term. In
addition, the management of the Group
continuously monitors forecast and actual cash
flows and matches the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The tables below have been
drawn up based on the contractual maturities of
the undiscounted financial liabilities including
interest that will accrue to those liabilities except
when the Group is entitled and intends to repay
the liability before its maturity.

M E ke EE(E)

(a)

B EREEGE)
(i) % EE % ER

AEEEERPDESRRZ
TAEREHEZREANR
BRRBESHRK  BREE
RRZRERREFEY
i R AN SR E 2 58 B M R
MBESHR - I A
BERERBEREHNR
ERREeRE U@ E
ENABEZ BB RETTE

TRHAVNAKERTESE
BEZFBRAOIBIBER -
TERREARFTZEMEE
(BREZEABERRFTZH
B MEARREEEMENE
HpEEZBERINZE
MBRBERAMAER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # & — 23:—557‘:/5'57“—51& FEF

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BIiE K EE (&)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued) () MERBEEE)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iii) TEEL R (&
Weighted
average Total
effective Less More than undiscounted Total carrying
interest rate  than 1 year 1-2 years  2-3 years 3 years cash flow amounts
% RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
MmEFLS KERRS
BEA= SR-F -EmE WEZF ZENE REAR BREE
% AR®Tn AR¥Tn AR¥Tr ARETR AR%Tn AR¥TR
As at 31 December 2021 S
t-h=1+-AR
Trade payables BHEMNTE = 29,551 = = = 29,551 29,551
Other payables and accruals M ERTRREH TR
(excluding staff costs and welfare ~ (FEEE TR AR E
accruals and tax liabilities) ARARBEAE) = 61,444 = = = 61,444 61,444
Convertible bonds TRRES 9.40 = 3,606 = = 3,606 3,178
Lease Liabilities HEEE 6.17 16,171 11,278 4,710 - 32,159 29,953
Borrowings {3 4.55 4,860 - - - 4,860 4,800
112,026 14,884 4,710 = 131,620 128,926
Weighted
average Total
effective Less More than  undiscounted ~ Total carrying
interest rate  than 1 year 1-2 years  2-3 years 3 years cash flow amounts
% RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
MEF AUBRE
VS PR—F —EWME WEZE “ENE nERE BREE
% ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT AREFTR ARET:R
As at 31 December 2020 S S 3:3
+ZA=1+-H
Trade payables ZHRNFE — 44,366 — — — 44,366 44,366
Other payables and accruals Hth R F0E R BT R
(excluding staff costs and welfare  (FEEETHARE
accruals and tax liabilities) FRARKBAR) - 83,694 - - — 83,694 83,694
Convertible bonds mARES 9.40 - - 3,704 - 3,704 3,001
Lease Liabilties HERE 474 17,393 21,561 28,626 67,580 66,162
Borrowings EES 455 3,034 - - - 3,034 3,000
148,487 21,561 32,330 — 202,378 200,223
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did RZEZ—FR=ZF=FTF
not have derivative financial liability. +ZA=+—H8 AFEL
BOTESREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. EtiERE M EE (&)

(b) Capital management (b) EXEE
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to AEBMNEREEFTEZEEERE
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in ERBECE A EEEEENRE
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for o ARRRREHERR AEM
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital BHERHANGZUR G EED
structure to reduce the cost of capital. BRBEE AR E AR »
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the AHFBAABRERNERE  KNEE
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to AEERABEINTRENRES
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new B mRREEER - FITHR
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. MALEEEURDERE -
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing REBEFABELRERELER -
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total ZLETIAEB FERABER
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings FTEGE - EBFEREBENEE
(including convertible bonds, borrowings, lease liabilities (BEAMRKES B8 HES
and loans from independent third parties included in f& DA B 5t A EAth 8 < FRIE K FE 5T
other payable and accruals) less cash and cash ERARABIE=ZFHNER) R
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as R RREEEWHE - BEX
shown in the consolidated statements of financial BREIREE M BARRRE I A
position plus net debt. EMEBFETE -
The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 RZBEZ—FRZZFZZF+=A
was as follows: —t—HHNEEBRELEMAT:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZT-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFR  ARBTFR
Convertible bonds (Note 29) AR E % (P 5£29) 3,178 3,001
Borrowings (Note 27) & & (Pt 5127) 4,800 3,000
Lease liabilities (Note 17) HE&EME17) 29,953 66,162
Loans from independent third parties REBLE=ZFHNER
(Note 25) (Mt 5£25) 15,856 28,200
Less: Cash and cash equivalent (Note 22) JE:IR& RIBELEEY
(Bt 5£22) (2,196) (3,177)
Net debt & 7% %5 51,591 97,186
Total equity B (138,681) (149,074)
Add: Net debt o ERERE 51,591 97,186
Total capital BENR (87.090) (51,888)
Net debt-to-capital ratio FEBERLE N/AT & H N/AZ i@ F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s chief operating decision maker (the “CODM").
Management has determined the operating segments based on
the information reviewed by CODM for the purposes of
allocating resources and assessing performance.

The CODM considers the business from both brand and
geographic perspective. The Group has a clear and distinct
focus on the market segments that it appeals to and thus it
creates the two brands of “Faigo” and “Xiao Faigo Hotpot”.
Faigo appeals to high-end market such as business clientele,
high-end fashion conscious and young clientele. Restaurants
operating under the brand Xiao Faigo Hotpot cater for the
mid-end market where a wide spectrum of guests are
targeted, principally families, friends and tourists.
Geographically, all of the Group’s operations are located in the
PRC and the management separately considers the
performance of Faigo in Shanghai and Beijing and Xiao Faigo
Hotpot in Shanghai, Beijing, Wuxi, Nanjing and Hangzhou.
Faigo and Xiao Faigo Hotpot in other cities have been
aggregated into two separate reportable segments,
respectively. The CODM assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on the revenue and operating
profits. The operating expenses of headquarters of Faigo and
Xiao Faigo Hotpot are common costs incurred for the Faigo
and Xiao Faigo Hotpot as a whole and therefore they are not
included in the measure of the segments’ performance, which
is used by the CODM as a basis for the purpose of resource
allocation, and assessment of segment performance. Finance
income and expenses, other gains/losses including government
grants and gain/loss of disposal of investment are not
allocated to segments, as these types of activity are driven by
the central treasury function of the Group.

There were no material inter-segment sales during the year.
The revenue from external customers reported to the CODM
are measured in a manner consistent with that applied in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

E_—Ff+-_HA=+—HIFFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #; 2 —

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WERkoHBER(E)
(Continued)
(A) Segment revenue (A) 2Pk

(B)

Year ended 31 December 2021

BECRC-FIAST-BLER

Faigo Xiao Faigo Hotpot Unallocated Total
53 MEFKE AE a3
Shanghai Beijing Others  Subtotal ~ Shanghai Beijing Wuxi Others  Subtotal
i} b33 £t Mt L& b33 4] Ett D
Revenue W 81,440 - 1,850 83,290 62,779 - 6,631 10,183 79,593 — 162,883
Depreciation, amortization, impairment and wiitten-off #1% + HER&(E - (£FE
of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible asset 18,439 = 1,967 20,406 26,252 = 2,349 2,598 31,199 - 51,605
Profit/loss) from operating activities AEEEHER 4,056 = (673) 3383 (17,902 = (2317) (2,355  (22574)  (10391)  (29,582)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BEEHAER/ (H]) 2,907 - (815) 2,092 (19,734) - (2,331) (2,552)  (24.617)  (10,652)  (33177)
Year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-TET-AST-BLEER
Faigo Xiao Faigo Hotpot Unallocated Total
BF PMEFAH FAE it
Shanghai Beijing Others  Subtotal  Shanghai Beijing Wuxi Others  Subtotal
i kR £l NGt Lig R &5 £l It
Revenue W 72,769 2,692 2,346 77,807 77133 3,684 9,688 16,066 106,571 - 184,378
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of property, %1% - BERH(E - (FFE
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible asset 15328 2912 2,750 20,990 41,764 1,223 1,456 4,620 49,063 26 70,079
Profit/(loss) from operating activities BEEHEN 5,866 (146) (2,009) 371 47,012) 2,280 (6,898) (6,034)  (57,664) (8,450) (62,403
Profit/(loss) before income tax BEEHAER /(BB 3970 (748) (2,176) 1,046 (50,002) 2,140 (6,966) (6,509 (61337) (8,707)  (68,998)

Geographical information

The Group's revenue from external customers by location
of sales and information about its non-current assets by
location of assets are detailed as below:

(B) HEEZEH

BEEFIWT:

Revenue from external

REBIZHEMB B D 2 IR
PlamhREEMESE N ZIFR

customers Non-current assets
SNEREF U ERBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-—% —E-FF —E-—fF —E-EF
The PRC Fh 162,883 184,378 47,994 107,544

2021 3 EEBEEEEZERERAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

2-FC

——#+= A+ AL FE

(C) Information about major customers

The Group are primarily engaged in the operation of a

hotpot restaurant chain.

The Group's customer base is diversified. No individual
customer (2020: nil) had transactions which exceeded
10% of the Group’s aggregate revenue for the year

ended 31 December 2021.

(D) Disaggregation of revenue

Revenue represents the sales value of goods supplied to
customers (net of value-added tax, other sales tax and
discounts). Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers by major product lines is as follows:

7.

Wz & 2 BBE R (AF)

©

(D)

TREFEHN

AEEIENELEEHANRE

AEEBMNEEEMRZ L - #
BEAAES(CE-TE  E)HS
SHBBAEEEE T -_—F+
—A=+—BLEERKFEZ
10% -

Wy 2% B 4

WamEfHETEPMNEREEE
BEMBFBER HHER K
i) - BEBEREADZIEFA
WU as AT

2021 2020
— B —E-FTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AR T T
Revenue from contracts with customers B Bl KB 7 & & %A
within the scope of IFRS 15 FISREENEFS
# U =
Disaggregated by major product lines BEEEZEEMBFE HHHA
A
— Hotpot business — NIRE 162,883 184,378

The timing of revenue recognition of all revenue from

contracts with customers is at a point in time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, 8.
NET

B A - A R
— B

2021 2020

—E=-—fF —T_THF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREF T

Government grants (Note (a)) SRR IELE) 1,019 570

Gain on lease modification HEET K 3,908 12,186
Reversal of allowance for/(allowance for) B REMBEWRKIEL
expected credit loss on trade and other BEHEEERERELD,

receivables (#E ) 1,575 (1,027)

Covid-19 related rental concession Covid-1948 8 & B & 1,808 4,325
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and % - BiELZHE L E

equipment W (E18) 205 (706)

Others (Note (b)) H (Bt 5% (b)) 902 2,557

9,417 17,905

Notes:

(a) The amounts RMB1,019,000 (2020: RMB234,000) represent the subsidies
received from PRC governments for the Group’s local business
developments during the year ended 31 December 2021. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, RMB336,000 (equivalents to
HK$378,000) in respect of COVID-19 Employment Support Scheme
provided by the Hong Kong government. There were no unfulfilled
conditions in the years in which they were recognised.

(b) Others mainly included the tips income.

it o

H T BB NERA -

=

ANER#1,019000 (T - F: ARK
234,0007T) 5 &
—BIEFE - ANE B R BT RE &R
WEBEREY BE_T-_ZTF+=-A
=+—HIEFEN - AR%¥336,0007T (18
H 378,000 70) - IR & B BT IR #
#JCOVID-19{R Bt 25T &l - REZEMER
FE - BERTHRGN -

—FtZA=+

2021 3 EEBEEEEZERERAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AND RELATED 9. EEBARMEBERAX
EXPENSES
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZFTF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE T AR T T
Wages and salaries TERF D 9,127 11,512
Defined contribution plan (Note i) AEHET B (KD 1,953 1,779
Other social security costs and housing HEmitgRERKAREE
benefits & 727 1,300
Other employee benefits Hit g 5B A 3,231 3,925
Employee share-based payment expenses 1B B AR 19 /3 B 5T 30 AY
(Note 30) M = (Ff5E30) 3,199 —
Labour outsourcing expenses (note ii) 25 %% o ¥ 7 2 (B =) 39,886 47,689
58,123 66,205
Notes: B 5 -
(i) Employees of the Group established in the PRC are required to participate (i) ERBER IO AEENEEELEHF

in a retirement benefit scheme administered and operated by the PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute 14.0% to 22.5% of
payroll costs as determined by respective local government authorities to
the designated pension fund. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to retirement benefit scheme is to make the specific
contributions under the scheme.

(ii) The Group entered into certain human resources agency agreements.

Pursuant to these agreements, the Group outsourced a portion of its
low level positions, such as waiter or waitress, kitchen assistants etc.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AND RELATED 9. EEEARHEBERZ(E)

EXPENSES (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals EEEeHAL

AEBRAFENRAUZ® F E
EMEEE(ZE_TF MAE)
MEMFBEEHAM 4 R T=(L
FARBNEFTHIFTETRAEZEE
ZEZTF =) RAFEREH N

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included two directors (2020: two), details of whose
remuneration are set out in Note 14. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2020: three)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

A

i
® @

RN
X+

executive of the Company are as follows: BEHINT
2021 2020
—E- T oTH
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARET T
Salaries, allowances and other benefits T& - ZEh M HEAMEF 1,035 834
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R RTE B &8 3k 101 53
1,136 887

WIARREEMHFMER AT EHE
ZREHEENHRBEIHMT

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

2021 2020

—E-—fF ZTZTF

Number of Number of

individual individual

AE A

Nil-HK$1,000,000 % -1,000,000/% 7T 3 3

2021 3 HEREBEZERERLE 165
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =—F = —F+=HA=+—HIF FZ

10. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 10. X8

REZHNER

2021 2020
—E-—F —EZFTF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Loss from operating activities has been arrived & 1% (5t A) 51 & 1B
at after charging/(crediting): EHREHE:
Directors’ emoluments? EEHM
— Fees — e 1,169 1,385
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions — &K & F| 5 2l it 7% — —
Employment payment expenses? 1% 1% 1~ 3R 323
— Directors —%=% 693 —
— Employee — EB8 2,506 —
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BEREZETE
equipment? 7,583 13,628
Amortisation of intangible asset? | A E S 4 96
Depreciation of right-of-use assets* CREEERTE 22,231 42,598
Impairment of property, plant and equipment* ¥ % « [ 5 & 5% & & B* 11,358 3,709
Impairment of right-of-use assets* = AEEERE 7,660 7,344
Written-off on property, plant and equipment* #fl $5 %) % - B & & & &4 2,769 2,704
Short-term lease payment REAENR 437 14
Low-value asset lease payment KEBEEEMEENK 351 933
(Reversal of allowance for)/allowance for B REMEWHRIEZ
expected credit loss on trade and other BHEEEB@EE),
receivables’ B (1,575) 1,027
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BENEREZ
equipment! Wz) /BB (205) 706
Cleaning fee? B R B2 1,633 1,444
Auditors’ remuneration? 1% 4 Bib % B2 1,200 1,600
Transportation expenses? AR X2 1,141 1,634
Promotion and marketing expenses? HE B R AT 88 22 1,269 3,573
Repair and maintenance fee? BERREB? 2,032 4,533
Legal and professional fee? EERBEREE? 3,913 4,140
Foreign exchange gain SN E W 25 (22) (15)

! These items were included under “other income, other gains and losses, !

net”.
2 These items were included under “other operating expenses”. 2
3 These items were included under “employee benefits and related 3
expenses”.
4 These items were included under “depreciation, amortisation, impairment 4

and written-off of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

1.

12.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

FINANCE EXPENSES, NET 1. BBEXZFRE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Finance income: R N
— Interest income on cash and —BekBAZFEDHN
cash equivalents B A 8 14
Finance expenses: B R X
— Imputed interest on convertible bonds — AR EFHTE A E
(Note 29) (Bt 5£29) (260) (257)
— Interest expense on borrowings — EBROFERX (142) (104)
— Interest expense on lease liabilities — HEBEMEMX
(Note 17) (K &E17) (3.201) (6,248)
(3,603) (6,609)
Finance expenses, net BB X F R (3,595) (6,595)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES 12. FAIBHBIRAX

The income tax expenses of the Group for the years are
analysed as follows:

AEEFAMBHAHITMT

2021 2020
—EZ—F —T-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTFT

PRC Enterprise Income tax PRI EMRER
— Current tax — BHEAR I8 54 —
— Over provision in prior years — BAFEHEERE = 3)
Deferred tax (Note 28) i 3E B 1E (B 55 28) 1,014 719
Income tax expenses FriS B X 1,068 716

2021 3 EEBEEEEZERERAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 12. FRGBiEX(A)
Taxation for the years is reconciled to loss before taxation per FABHEEGEER R EME2E K
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other KFTE RN ATEEEERAT

comprehensive income as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —EZFTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBT T

Loss before tax R Bt Al B 18 (33,177) (68,998)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable #2483 B % 5 18 & A &) &

to loss in the respective countries AR EFTERTIA (7,389) (16,510)
Tax effects of: NTEENB BT E -
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes — AN A =X 6,844 7,284
— Income not taxable for tax purposes — HEARBWA (1,392) (4,522)
— OQver provision in prior years — UAFE 2 BEEH — 3)
— Tax losses not recognised — KR EEE 3,005 14,467
Tax expenses #5818 i X 1,068 716
(a) Cayman Islands () FHEHE

Entities incorporated in the Cayman Islands as exempted
companies with limited liability.

(b) British Virgin Islands income tax (b)

Entities incorporated in the British Virgin Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Company Law of British Virgin Islands and, accordingly,
are exempted from payment of British Virgin Islands
income tax.

168 LONGHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Hong Kong Profits Tax

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2020:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits in
Hong Kong for both years.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Entities incorporated in the PRC are generally subject to
income tax rates of 25% (2020: 25%) throughout the
years.

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of its
operations in the PRC has been calculated at the
applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable profits
based on existing legislations, interpretations and
practices.

13. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share

12. BB (&)

(c)

(d)

ERENEH

BEBFNESHRNZWMEFENGE
JE SR T % R 3R16.5% (ZE T -
16.5%) BB Kt & o

HRAEERZMEFELEERE
I AL A JE R A - 8RR AF
hEBNSHEE -

hERERER

RABEZMAZNERRNFR—
MIR25% (ZZZFF : 25%) HIFL
KBS -

RIERITAD - RIERIER &
S5 8 51 P L T R 2 S B
8 TV I R B0k R 2 18 AR
LR

13. ZARFAEBABEEBRER

ARBGEANBEERERNLEEE

attributable to owners of the Company is based on the BRI AT U8 -
following data:
Loss: B
2021 2020
—E_—F —EZFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the A 5+ & &A% H A& # %
Company for the purpose of basic and BEZANAREB AE
diluted loss per share HEANEE 33,954 69,058

2021 £ 3R

EEEEEZERERA A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

13. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

13. ARRIFEEBAELEREE

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (&
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZFTF
Weighted average number of ordinary shares F R st E &M% & A K
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss BEEBEBE o TAR
per share N < 15 B 617,148,208 330,563,109

The weighted average number of ordinary shares of
617,148,208 (2020: 330,563,109) in issue during the year, as
adjusted to reflect the effect of the share consolidation and
the rights issue as disclosed in Note 23. Comparative figures
have also been adjusted on the assumption that the Share
Consolidation and the Rights Issue had been effective in the
prior year.

The calculation of the weighted average number of ordinary
shares amounting to 617,148,208 (2020: 330,563,109) in issue
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

FRNEEHTEBEROMEFTSE A
617,148,208/ (= & = T 4H:
330,563,109/%) - LB B2 LHE - U
RS E R Z W - LR E
FHREEME23MEENR G A K
HBEEREFERZBERTUAE -

HE—_E-—F+-_A=+—HILEE
BEITERNRG617148, 208k (ZE = F
F :330,563,109% ) My N # F 9 H T &

(N

2021 2020

—E--F el 3

Number of issued shares on 1 January R—A—BE#{TKRHEAE 6,373,602,437 6,373,602,437
Effect of the Share Consolidation Kih &g E (6,054,922,316) (6,054,922,315)
Effect of Rights Issue &0 284,289,010 11,882,987
Exercise of share option 171 B ik 14,179,077 -
617,148,208 330,563,109

For the vyears ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume that
the conversion of the outstanding convertible bonds and share
options, since their conversion would result in a decrease in
loss per share.
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14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS 14. EEM S

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the emoluments paid
or payable to the directors of the Company were as follows:

BT —Ft+_A=t+—HIFE -
DRENKEMNAARESTOH S W

T
For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020: HEZZTZ-—FR-ZE-ZEF+=-A=
T—HILFE:
Salaries, allowance and Retirement benefits
Fees benefits in kind scheme contributions  Share-based payments Total
ne e ZMRENEAN RAFEAGEMEN URBAERFR @zt
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
SR--f "T-%F ZB--F “T-%F ZR--F “T-FF ZR--F “T-TF ZBC-F “T-RF
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARMTRT ARETRT ARTR ARBTT ARBTRE AR¥TR ARETR ARETR
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Hung Shui Chak HinExE = — = - = - - - - -
Mr. So Kam Chuen BRFRE 374 402 = — = - 347 - 721 402
Mr. Yuan Mingjie RAREE 298 320 = — = - 346 - 644 320
Mr. Chen Jun’ RELA - 129 - — - — - — - 129
Independent BYHTES
non-executive
directors
Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene’ B £ 7 7 42 = 119 = — = - = - — 19
Mr. Chan Chun Yiu B R o A
Thomas® - 89 - - - - - — - 89
Mr. Tam Bing Chung ERBEE
Benson 166 178 - - - - - — 166 178
Mr. Johnson Wan* ERERE 110 59 = — = — = — 10 59
Mr. Cheung Ting Pong®  RE % 4° 166 89 = — = - = - 166 89
Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel® jf £ 18 % 4£¢ 55 — - — — — - — 55 —
1,169 1,385 — — — — 693 — 1,862 1,385

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
of the Company or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Company, or as
compensation for loss of office for the both years.

RMEFE  AEEHESERANE

FTRAREEROEAZSHFAL

(3]

MARRBHIMARRBRG 2 RS - =X

ERRERMOFHE -

2021 3 EEBEEEEZERERAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

14. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

15.

Notes:

1. Mr. Chen Jun resigned as an executive director with effective from 8 May
2020.

2. Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene resigned as an independent non-executive
director with effective from 31 August 2020.

3. Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas resigned as an independent non-executive
director with effective from 30 June 2020.

4. Mr. Johnson Wan was appointed as an independent non-executive
director with effective from 31 August 2020 and resigned as an
independent non-executive director with effective from 31 August
2021.

5. Mr. Cheung Ting Pong was appointed as an independent non-executive
director with effective from 30 June 2020.

6. Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel was appointed as an independent non-executive
director with effective from 31 August 2021.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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16. PROPERTY,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. W% BERRE

Equipment
and Leasehold Construction
Vehicles  Machineries Furniture ~ Computers improvements in progress Total
3] B HE REREKE BEUEHEB ERIR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Cost B
As at 1 January 2020 RZB-ZF-A-A 6,440 33,594 18,494 19,611 137,227 1,271 216,637
Additions NE — 3,158 1,156 68 645 — 5,027
Disposals e (637) (10,001) (2,631) (785) - (659) (14,713)
written-off i (969) (9,463) (6,311) (7,248) (6,789) — (30,780)
As at 31 December 2020 and RZZB-ZE+-A=+t-BR
1 January 2021 “E=-%-f-H 4,834 17,288 10,708 11,646 131,083 612 176,171
Additions RE 12 1,547 877 133 3,183 — 5,852
Disposals HE (180) (5,976) (201) (524) - — (6,881)
written-off b @) (3,768) (2,262) (2,639) (19,511) (612) (28,796)
As at 31 December 2021 R=-E--%+-fA=+-8 4,762 9,091 9,122 8,616 114,755 — 146,346
Accumulated depreciation and ~ Eit T EREE
impairment
As at 1 January 2020 RZE-ZF-A-AH 4,974 26,675 15,453 16,387 11414 — 177,603
Charge for the year FRMK 328 3,134 1,716 220 8,230 — 13,628
Impairment B 1 1,523 651 606 928 — 3,709
Disposals L& (568) (9,71) (2,629) (664) - — (13,572)
Elimination upon written-off HEEREE (475) (8,755) (6,301) (7,205) (5,340) — (28,076)
As at 31 December 2020 and RZZ-TFE+-A=T-HR
1 January 2021 “Z--%-f-H 4,260 12,866 8,890 9,344 117,932 — 153,292
Charge for the year ERMK 300 504 440 260 6,079 - 7,583
Impairment A — 670 1,240 1,707 7,141 — 11,358
Disposals e (71) (2,084) 92) (a11) - - (2,758)
Elimination upon written-off MeERHE @) (3.353) (1,729) (2,507) (18,436) - (26,027)
As at 31 December 2021 KZE=Z-%+=ZA=+-H 4,387 8,603 8,749 8,393 113,316 — 143,448
Carrying amounts BEE
As at 31 December 2021 WZZEZ-#+-A=1—H 375 488 373 223 1,439 . 2,898
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZZE+ZA=1-H 574 4,422 1,818 2,302 13,151 612 22,879
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # &= ?:*i%:ﬁi%*ﬂﬁ FEF

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Impairment tests for property, plant and equipment

and right-of-use assets

Due to the significant loss during the year ended
31 December 2021, the management of the Group concluded
there was indication for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on certain property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets with carrying amounts of approximately

RMB14,256,000 and RMB21,534,000 respectively.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at each store level for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). An impairment loss was
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is estimate based on a value in use calculation. These
calculations used pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering the
following 5 years with a pre-tax discount rate is 12.08% as at
respectively. The key
assumptions used for impairment tests for property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2021
and 2020 are the revenue growth rates which are based on
the estimated growth rate of each restaurant store unit taking
into account the industry growth rate, past experience and the

31 December 2021 (2020: 13.12%),

medium term growth target of restaurant business.

The Group recognised impairment loss of approximately
RMB11,358,000 (2020: RMB3,709,000) and RMB7,660,000
(2020: RMB7,344,000) to property, plant and equipment and
for the year ended 31
December 2021 by comparing each store’s recoverable amount

right-of-use assets, respectively,

with its carrying amounts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

17. ERAEEE HEAE

2021 2020
—E_—F —EZFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARBFT
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
Shops JE 4 7,083 38,970
Offices PN 6,791 9,808
13,874 48,778
Lease liabilities payables: EAEEEE:
— Within one year — —FR" 14,755 16,976
— More than one year but not more than — —&F I LETBBME
two years 10,632 21,432
— More than two years but less than five years — WA HBT BB AF 4,566 27,754
— More than five years — AFME — —
29,953 66,162
The Group obtains right to control the use of various shops AEEFRBEELHR —RERANE

and offices for a period of time through lease arrangements.
As at 31 December 2021, rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 1 to 5 years (2020: 1 to 5 years). Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, total cash outflow
for leases of approximately RMB28,681,000 (2020:
RMB46,222,000) was included in net cash used in financing
activities.

Extension options are included in a number of property leases
across the Group. These terms are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts.

BERZHEEMBASTHTESE -
RZE-_—F+=-A=+—H HES
ABEEAEEHIESF (ZE-BF:
1254F) c HEKK T ERZERE REE
% I8 [R5k R g 1 o

HE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—HILEE -

HEMBIE LML ARY28,681,000

T(ZE T F: AR %46,222,0007T)
ERFABEEHMARS F5E -

K%Iyﬁ%%ﬁﬁ BELERE - %
FHRAEEREEGNTEFREA
,%%*éi/ﬁf‘é* °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 =% =

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

(Continued)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement

— 4+ A=+ —ALER

of financial position and profit or loss

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities and the movements during the years ended 31

EREEE HESEM@A)

REEMBRRARBHERTEIN

MIE

AEBFEFABREEMMEAERER
TR —FR-IFEF+ZRA=1+—

December 2021 and 2020 are as follow: AEFEMNREMAELRESNOT
Right-of-use Lease
assets liabilities
FEREEE HEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR TR
As at 1 January 2020 R-E-_ZFF—H—H 123,444 152,997
Additions NE 22,283 22,283
Depreciation expense WERX (42,598) —
Impairment A (7,344) —
Lease modification HEEE (47,007) (64,819)
Interest expense F B X — 6,248
Rent concession HER R — (4,325)
Payments INE:N — (46,222)

As at 31 December 2020 and RZZEZZEF+_A=1+—HK

1 January 2021 —E-—%—H—H 48,778 66,162
Depreciation expense TMEMX (22,231) —
Impairment BE (7,660) —
Lease modification HEBE (5,013) (8,921)
Interest expense AR — 3,201
Rent concession HERE — (1,808)
Payments INE:N — (28,681)
As at 31 December 2021 RZEBEZ—F+=-_HA=+—8H 13,874 29,953

For the details of impairment of right-of-use assets, please
refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSET

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

18. BILEE

Computer Software

B H
RMB’000
AR TR
Cost: AN
As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, R-ZTE-FF—-—H—A8"
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —E-FEF+-_A=+—8"
S i =D
T —F+=ZAR=+—H 627
Accumulated amortisation: Eg: £
As at 1 January 2020 RZTZEHF—H—H 527
Amortisation for the year F N 96
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZEZZEF+_A=+—HBK
—E-—%®—H—H 623
Amortisation for the year F N 4
As at 31 December 2021 RZE_—F+=ZA=+—H 627
Carrying amounts: fREE:
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=A=+—H —
As at 31 December 2020 N—B_TF+-A=+—H 4

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of

amortisation:

Computer software 5 years

The above intangible asset is amortised on a straight-line

basis.

FHEBHEBERA T RAFH:

B i BX 1 HF

&

LB EEREREER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. EZEWFIE
2021 2020
— B —E-TH
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARETT
Trade receivables =070 3 & 5,090 5,145
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss BCTREEEEERE (2,207) (2,876)
2,883 2,269

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the fair values of the
trade receivables of the Group approximated their carrying
amounts.

(@) The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the
invoice date and net of allowance for expected credit
loss, were as follows:

RIEBE-_—FR-_ZE-_FTF+_A=+
—H AEBEEZEWRRBNQTEHSE
HEmEMRE -

(a

BEZZAH LW IBIERE
EEBREENE S EIRFERE
DT

2021 2020

—E_—F —EZFEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T ARBF T

0-30 days 0-30H 2,490 1,726
31-90 days 31-90H 1 134
91-180 days 91-180H 386 319
181-360 days 181-360H 6 90
2,883 2,269

The Directors consider trade receivables mainly derived
from sales through shopping malls or billed settled with
credit cards, wechat or alipay, which are generally
collectible within 1 month from sales date and no past
due history.

No interest is charged on the trade receivables. The long
aging balances are due from certain frequent customers
and the management considers that these receivables are
recoverable.
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

19. ESEWRRIE(E)

(b) Movement in the allowance for expected credit loss of by EBFERKRFBEHEEBERE
trade receivables: o)

2021 2020

—E_—F —EZFF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBF T

As at 1 January ®—H—8 (2,876) (1,134)

Reversal of allowance for/(allowance for) 8 2 {5 & k5 18 B &
expected credit loss B E () 669 (1,742)
As at 31 December BR+=—A=+—H (2,207) (2,876)

The impairment losses recognised

is the estimated

ERRBREBERESK TS E

amount of the trade receivables that will not be BRI IBEGET S8 -
collected.
20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. BARIE - ZERHEMER
RECEIVABLES 15
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Included in non-current assets: ETAFERBE E
Rental deposits — non-current portion HEES —ERBHD 6,889 10,494
Included in current assets: STARB A E
Rental and utilities prepayments e R AHZEEMNHIEAE 2,608 6,069
Raw materials procurement prepayments R B R B T 3R 584 10,827
Rental deposits — current portion HEZE: — RBHD 1,437 2,338
Value added tax inputs HWENEAE 19,937 15,622
Staff advances BT R 420 275
Other receivables and prepayments due from & Ui B B 75 &9 £ #th 3B &
related parties (Note 32(c)(ii)) TE A5 FIE (M 7 32()(ii)) 187 410
Others Efth 11 152
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss B TEEBEEBERE (392) (1,298)
24,792 34,395

2021 £ 3R

EEEEEZERERA A
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

21.

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables were primarily
denominated in RMB and approximated their fair value. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at each of the reporting
dates is the carrying value of each class of prepayment,
deposits and other receivables mentioned above. The Group
does not hold any collateral as security. The amount reported
in the impairment losses recognised on other receivables is the
estimated amount of the accounts receivable that will not be
collected.

Movement in the allowance for expected credit loss of other
receivables:

20. FARF

RIE - BB R A B
IE (/l‘ *)
#_2:—¢& ToTF+-A=T

CTENREREMERKERA
ﬁz%%AE%ﬁ@ WHEHHERFE
HE REZREAHAZHEREER
[BL B = b Al 58 A 3R B I E Ath FE Uk
HENEREE ASETEFZEEIM
EIRRIERR - L H A B U TERER
MREBENRESEA T REDE
WEER R BT 5 -

Hit R BRREEBEREES

2021 2020

:g:— ﬂi — 7 — $

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR TR AREFT

As at 1 January m—A—H (1,298) (2,013)

Reversal of allowance for expected credit loss %[0l 38 8 (= & &5 18 & (& 906 715

As at 31 December Rt=-—A=+—H (392) (1,298)

Details of assessment for expected credit loss was disclosed in BHEEE BN M ERMTe@) 5B

Note 6(a). B e

INVENTORIES rE

2021 2020

s —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBFT

Foods and beverage B &8 12,051 12,906

Other materials consumables H fth A B FEM 607 1,180

12,658 14,086

The cost of inventories recognised and included in “Raw
materials and consumables used” in 2021 and 2020 amounted
to approximately RMB55,020,000 and RMB76,698,000,
respectively.
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

22. BERBREEEY

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETIT
Cash at banks RITIRSE 2,196 3,177
Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following RERBITEBRIETINEEE:
currencies:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETIT
RMB AR 1,292 2,927
HKD A IT 904 250
2,196 3,177
SHARE CAPITAL 23. B
Share capital of the Company RRATRA
Amount
Number of &5
shares HK$'000 RMB’000
B4 EE FET ARETF T
Authorised EE
As at 1 January 2020, W_E-_ZFF—H—A8"
31 December 2020 —E-FEF+-_A=+—H
and 1 January 2021 of RZFT=-—F—H—H
HK$0.00002 each (7 1%0.000027% 7T) 19,000,000,000 380 306
Share consolidation & & (Bt 5Ea)
(note a) (18,050,000,000) — —
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+_-HA=+—H
of HK$0.0004 each (# 1%0.00047% 1) 950,000,000 380 306
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =—F = —F+=HA=+—HIF FZ

23. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 23. R (&)
Share capital of the Company (Continued) KRB RA ()
Amount in Amount in
Number of Kop | k-]
shares HK$'000 RMB’000
13 & B FHET ARET T

Issued and fully paid E%TR&HAR
As at 1 January 2020, R_ZEZFEF—H—8 -

31 December 2020 —E-FEF+__A=+—H

and 1 January 2021 —E-—F—HF—H 6,373,602,437 128 109
Share consolidation &5 & of (Bt sEa)

(Note a) (6,054,922,316) — —
Issue of share upon B By 3217 IR 1D (M9 5Eb)

rights issue (Note b) 318,680,121 127 106
Exercise of share option 77 {F BE I 4 51 2178 T &Y

under share option B A (Bt 3 o)

scheme (Note ¢) 44,615,200 18 15
As at 31 December 2021 RZZE=—F+=A=+—H 681,975,442 273 230

Note: Bt -

(a) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the extraordinary general @)
meeting of the Company on 12 January 2021, every twenty issued and
unissued shares of HK$0.00002 each were consolidated into one
consolidated share of the Company of HK$0.0004 each with effect on
14 January 2021 (the “Share Consolidation”).

(b) On 22 February 2021, the Company completed a rights issue (the (b)
“Rights Issue”) on the basis of one rights share for every one share
held on 26 January 2021 at the subscription price of HK$0.142 per
rights share and allotted and issued 318,680,121 shares. Gross Rights
Issue proceeds of approximately HK$45,253,000 (equivalents to
RMB37,774,000) of which approximately HK$127,000 (equivalents to
RMB106,000) was credited against share capital and the remaining
proceeds of approximately HK$44,250,000 (equivalents to
RMB36,937,000) after offsetting the share issuance costs of
approximately HK$876,000 (equivalents to RMB731,000) were credited
against the share premium account.

(c) On 6 September 2021, 44,615,200 ordinary shares were issued in (0)
relation to exercise of share options under the share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) approved and adopted by the Company on 2 June 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

24. TRADE PAYABLES 24. ES EARE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR® TR ARBETTT

Trade payables B 5 RENRIE 29,551 44,366
The credit period on trade payables is generally 30—180 days. B ENFIERNEER®EE A30£180
E o

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis of the RZEBEZ—FRZZFZTFF+ZA=+

trade payables (including amounts due to related parties of —B - RBREBEZZAMHESNEZENK

trading in nature) based on invoice date were as follows: BEREERNM(BEEZESMENENE
BT IR R

2021 2020

—®-—fF —E-FTF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥®TR ARBTTT

0-30 days 0-30H 4,893 7,145
31-90 days 31-90H 5,489 8,144
91-180 days 91-180H 8,444 15,221
181-360 days 181-360H 5,580 7,387
Over 1 year il — 5 5,145 6,469

29,551 44,366
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amount of RZEZ—FRZZFZTFF+ZA=+
the Group's trade payables were denominated in RMB. —B - AEREEBEZENFBENEREEIN

ARBETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. HENRIERETER
2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBF T
Staff costs and welfare accruals BETIRARBFEEZER 52,126 57,836
Leasehold improvements payable HENEEEBRNIE 2,059 11,898
Payable to payroll related services (Note i) &t T & 48 8 BR 75 FE 1~ 3k 1B
(PR 3£ 1,028 3,606
Rental payable HE EN IR 7,489 5,320
Professional service expenses EERBHAZ 9,536 10,153
Utility payable N FRER e E T IR 212 501
Business tax and other tax liabilities PERRAMIIEEGE 2 99
Amount due to a related party FE — 2B 5 B
(Note 32(c)(iii)) (B 5 32(c)(iii)) 1,149 1,149
Amounts due to former shareholders (note ii) & {< 51l A% 5= 2% 28 (K 5Eii) 23,228 23,859
Amount due to the controlling shareholder — J& {<f 22 J& A% 58 2k 78 (B % ii)
(Note ii) 1,634 —
Loans from independent third parties REBILEBE=FHEK
(Note iii) (B 3 iii) 15,856 28,200
Others HAh 281 2,614
114,600 145,235
Notes: B o
(i) The Group engaged payroll services companies, the third party (i) REBEEIERBRAR(BILE=H)MA

companies, for salary and wages distribution services for certain junior
position staffs (such as waiters/waitress, kitchen assistants, etc.). On
monthly basis, the payroll services companies distributes salary and
wages to relevant individuals after receiving payments from the Group.

(i) The amounts due to former shareholders, the controlling shareholder, (ii)
and a related party do not bear any interest and are repayable on
demand.
(iii)
(iii) The loans from independent third parties are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

26. SN AEE

2021 2020
—E_—F —EZFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTF T ARBFT

Advance received from online group B LEEAEEED
purchasing websites (Note a) 2R (M 5Ea) 167 699
Prepaid cards (Note b) SEENRN ) 45,138 46,221
Cash coupons and others (Note b) I 75 & H A (M5t b) 60 902
45,365 47,822

Notes: B 5%

(a) The Group collaborated with online group-purchasing websites in the (a) REBFRPEE FEBEALSE EEE
PRC, which acted as the sales channels of the Group through which AEBERNHEERE RRAAEPAER
ultimate individual customers can purchase prepaid coupons to redeem EEERMNSF  URAKENERLER
goods and services at the Group’s restaurants. The online group- MmERT - M EEEEM R EREALEE
purchasing websites make lump-sum payments to the Group in advance EFRBEFNETHNMGEE BL
for the estimated value of electronic coupons that the websites would MAEEEE—ZBHR - AEEEZE
resell to end customers. The Group recognised such receipts as contract WHERRENEE MEMERENF
liabilities and when the relevant catering services are rendered to the (NEFEAB LS B)BENTPRHE
customers who use the prepaid coupons in electronic form distributed HAERRGR  BHEcEBER Rk -
online for settlement, the amount will be recognised as revenue and an WEEHEEMNKRIEESRE -
equivalent amount will be deducted from the contract liabilities.

(b) Prepaid cards and cash coupons and others issued by the Group, which (b) REBFHOERFRRBAEHFREMmAH
can be utilised in the future consumption in restaurants by the BEEAREEREEERGH BRAREH
customers, are recognised as contract liabilities. The prepaid cards and BfF AEBEWENRRREFRARD
cash coupons of the Group are refundable. However, no refund AT FRABRERRCLEE ARES
liabilities were recognised during the years since the Directors expect TR RRBEHABMEFREEHLEILT
that amounts to be refunded in the future reporting periods is EKe
insignificant.

() Included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year of (© RBE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—BILFE "
approximately RMB43,072,000 (2020: RMB38,627,000) were recognised AAFEVA L ARBEN LA RA43,072,000
as revenue during the year ended 31 December 2021. T(ZZEZTF : AR¥38,627,0007T)

iu\ﬁq&(ﬁ °

(d) The contract liabilities will be recognised as revenue when the Group (d) EHBEERAEERETENETRER

fulfil the contract’s obligation. R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

ts

27. BORROWINGS 27. B&

2021 2020
—E_—F —EFF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBETTT

Unsecured and guaranteed bank borrowings 4 38 [ ¥ (R R 1T & X
(Note a) (Fff 3% a)

The carrying amounts of the above borrowings _+ it f& & &) B H (& /8

are repayable RUATREER
— Within one year shown under — —FRNGEIARH
current liabilities Bf&E)
Note:
(a) The bank borrowing was bearing 4.55% fixed interest rate per annum

and repayable on or before 16 April 2022. The carrying amount of the
borrowing approximated the fair value because the interest rate
appropriates the market rate.

As at 31 December 2021, the bank borrowings with carrying amount of

RMB4,800,000 (2020: RMB3,000,000) is unsecured and guaranteed by
Mr. Hung, the controlling shareholder of the Company.
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. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

28. IEEFREH

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is EEMEEERELEHBAGS T

as follows: T
2021 2020
—EB-—F —EFTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
Deferred tax assets: FEERHIBEE
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered after — +—1{E A% U EH
12 months BLEHIEEE 24,333 25,389
Deferred tax liabilities: FEEFRIBEE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after — +-AABEEH
12 months FEEHIBEEE (75) (116)
Deferred tax assets, net R IBE = (F5) 24,258 25,273
2021 2020
—g——F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T T ARETTT
At the beginning of the year F 1) 25,273 25,984
Charge to the consolidated statement of profit WéR & kR EM 2 M
or loss and other comprehensive income W A F AR (B 5E12)
(Note 12) (1,014) (719)
Exchange alignment P& 5 & 1) 8
At the end of the year FAR 24,258 25,273
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 =% =

—FF+-A=+—HIFE

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets are as follows:

28. IEFEFRSH (F)

BEEFRGREEZFHMT

Allowance for ~ Accelerated Rein-
Accrual Rental Fee expected tax statement
staff costs  accruals  Tax loss credit loss  depreciation costs Others Total
st 5t BAHEEER
BIRZ HeHER HEES B MEHERE BERAE Hity st
As at 1 January 2020 RZZE-_EF—-f—-H 12,741 2,713 10,076 800 (3,300) 1,809 1,311 26,150
(Charge)/credit to the Rt BRaEkEMEZAE
consolidated statement WHERENR),/
of profit or loss and AEE
other comprehensive
income 553 (258) - 91 - (1,147) - (761)
As at 31 December 2020 WR=-Z-T &
and 1 January 2021 +-fA=+-ER
- 13,294 2,455 10,076 891 (3.300) 662 1311 25,389
(Charge)/credit to the RiZABEaEkEMEZAE
consolidated statement WHERGR),/
of profit or loss and AE
other comprehensive
income (410) (502) - (73) - (71) —  (1,056)
As at 31 December 2021 NZE-—%
+-A=1+-H 12,884 1,953 10,076 818 (3,300) 591 1,311 24,333
The movements in deferred income tax liabilities are as BLEMSEHAEESHOT :
follows:
Convertible
bonds
R E S
RMB’000
ARB T
As at 1 January 2020 WZEZTFE—-H—H (166)
Credit to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and RérAEZE R EM2mE W SR A AR
other comprehensive income 42
Exchange alignment [ 8
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 KRB ZEF+_A=+—BKk=ZZ=—F—H—H (116)
Credit to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and RérAERE R EME2E W ARAAE
other comprehensive income 42
Exchange alignment ME 5, 8 & (1)
As at 31 December 2021 WZZE-—F+-A=+—H (75)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2 = F = —4F + = A=+ —HIFZ

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not
recognise deferred tax assets of approximately RMB35,331,000
(2020: RMB34,482,000) in respect of losses amounting to
approximately RMB141,323,000 (2020: RMB129,928,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 4 July 2018, the Company issued the convertible bonds,
which is 5-year, zero coupon and in the aggregate principal
amount of approximately HK$129,470,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB109,388,000) to the vendors, including Mr.
Hung, Ms. Hung Ying, Mr. Ho Roy Poon Kwong, Mr. So Kam
Chuen and Ms. Szeto Yuen Man (collectively the “Vendors”),
as part of the consideration of the Acquisition. Pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the acquisition agreement, the
convertible bonds are convertible into the Company’s shares at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.1025 per conversion share
(subject to adjustments). The conversion period is 5 years from
the date of issue of the convertible Bonds.

The bondholder could convert the principal amount
outstanding under the convertible bonds registered in its
names into the Company’s ordinary shares (the “Shares”)
subject to the terms and conditions.

Any amount of the convertible bonds which is converted will
forthwith be cancelled. Certificate in respect of the convertible
bonds cancelled will be forwarded to or to the order of the
Company and the convertible bonds may not be reissued or
resold. Any amount of the bonds which remains outstanding
on the maturity date shall be redeemed at its then
outstanding principal amount. The Company shall not be
entitled to redeem any part of the convertible bonds prior to
the maturity date.

The convertible bonds contained two components, liability and
equity component. The fair value of the liability component
was calculated using an effective interest rate of 9.41% per
annum for instruments of comparable credit status. The
residual amount, representing the value of the equity
component, has been included in the convertible bonds
reserve under the consolidated statement of change in equity.

28.

29.

IEFEFR S B (&)

WEREERBBRERTANBEEIRA
HEHEBEER IS E T EEERE
RELEHIBEE - HEZ-_—F+=
A=+—BLEFE AEBTEFLHA
R#141,323,000 (Z2E=_FF : AR
129,928,0007T) W E IEFERIE LR A &
EHANERE#35,331,000 0 (ZE-T 4 :
A R #34,482,0007T) °

A2 IR (8 2

RZZE—NFLAWB  ARRBEEH
(BFEL e 8t - A8 A -
BIRTLERAERELL)(HREE
FBETABREBES  ARF - TE@A
BRI R4 48 50 49129,470,0005%8 7T )(4R
B4 A R#109,388,0007T) © 1EA I
BEBEHRE - RIFKREHEOKER
Mg ATRREFAUNSEBRES
PS4 #2 AR 19 0.102558 7T (7] T 22 ) t 4
BARNRKRG - BRI ARIRRE
HFBRTEHEFAE -

BEFHBEAUSAERRELNABRE
BEFrMABRASEEBRRIARAE
A (TBRAD ) 1 S PR A AR B f 1 -

A 460 IR 105 35 2 33 340 60 1 10 % 5 45 B D
N FEEHBTRRES SR
X ERATREAATEE - MRz
TRBRESELTEEFRTRES -
REBMENALROTRBESE T
AeEAREERLAASET NS
B - REBAR - AT REREE AR
B 5 B (AT 25 -

AgEESFeEEmERS - NAEHS
Kz D - BEID A FETIZA
BHBREEMARNNTANERERNX
9.41%:HE - REGIEZH O NEE)
EfAGEEDEHRNTBREKES
&1
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

29.

30.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The liability and equity components of the convertible bonds

iR E S (E)

RERE PRI RER AR RES

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position WEERESISE TXFE:
were calculated as follows:
Liability Equity
component component
8BRS XD
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT
As at 1 January 2020 RZE-EF—H—H 2,942 1,069
Imputed interest recognised (Note 11) BRI S (1) 257 —
Exchange alignment IR (198) —
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R=ZE-ZEF+=-A=+—HK
—E-—%—F—H 3,001 1,069
Imputed interest recognised (Note 11) BRI B (FE11) 260 —
Exchange alignment 0 5P (83) —
As at 31 December 2021 RZB-—%+-A=+—H 3,178 1,069
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 30. URGOAERSRK

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

The Company’s Scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 2 June 2021, the purpose of the Scheme is to
enable the Company to grant options to selected eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group and to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group. In determining
whether a person has contributed or will contribute to the
Group, the Group will take into account, among other things,
whether contribution has been made to or will be made to the
Group in terms of operation, financial performance, prospects,
growth, reputation and image of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was 19,120,800 (2020: Nil), representing
2.80% (2020: Nil) of the shares of the Company in issue at
that date. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option. All the
share options granted shall vest to the grantees on the date of
grant. The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii)
the average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

30. URODAERNRKZ (&)

FRRAWRESEBERES S (F)

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=1+—H8 BEZ
AEEREEMRITENERERS
&W%T%E%wuomwﬂfvfy
F 8 HERARBIRZADEITR
1 #)2.80% _ﬁz_yff 7)o REAK

AR EBLAE  BIBZTEIATRER
EHEREMSRNBRDBETEE
BAARRTEANBEEBETRMDH
10% ° REARRNGREELIE - BRI
Al —FEETAEAD R E RAT R
BREMSERNBETRETETR
DHEETERBEARARRITMNERE
BEITIRMDM1% o

BEARREBRENRE - FAEEER
HBRESRELAHEBE TARA -
TEERARBESETE  EETF
ERATz8EE  )ARBBRHNE
HEBHOETE: (HRONREERLH
Hi R F(E & X A e Fg U T E ¢ R i) A
RERMDEOEE -

AR EEANFBOT

Closing price

immediately

Remained Vesting Exercisable Expiry Exercise before the

Series number period date date price  date of grant

RERL A

#5 HBTEHE BES WAERH =p=p fTEEE Kl THE

HK$ HK$

BT B

Granted on 20 July 2021 — Nil 20 July 2021 19 July 2031 0111 0.1
RZBZ—FtAZ+AEN & —T-—%+A-+B —E=-FLAt+AH

Granted on 19 October 2021 19,120,800 Nil 19 October 2021 18 October 2031 0.1014 0.101
RZEZ-FTATABEE # —Z--Ff+A+tNhB ZZ=—F+AtNH
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— 4+ A=+ —ALER

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

(Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Scheme during

30. URHBEBRBMNRXK

& (&)

FRRAWRESEBERES S (F)

TREBEFAZTENES:

the year:
As at 1 January
2020,
31 December As at
2020 and Granted during  Exercised during 31 December
Series 1 January 2021 the year the year 2021
Y| RZZZZF
—-A—H8"
gt 353
TZA=t—-Rk
“To—F RZB_—%F+=
—-A—-AH FARHE ERTHE A=+-H°
Granted on 20 July 2021 WoE--FLAZtEEY - 44,615,200 (44,615,200) -
Granted on 19 October 2021 RZZE-_—F+A+NBRE — 19,120,800 — 19,120,800
— 63,736,000 (44,615,200) 19,120,800
Exercisable at the end of the year FEXRATE 19,120,800
Weighted average exercise price MEFHTRE — 0.10812 011 0.1014
In respect of the share option exercised during the year, the MEFARNEITENERE  RITEBHD

weighted average share prices at the dates of exercise was

HK$0.099.

During the year ended 31

December 2021,

options were

granted on 20 July 2021 and 19 October 2021. The estimated
fair values of the options granted on those dates are
approximately HK$2,710,000 and HK$1,154,000 respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(Continued)

These fair values were calculated using Binominal Option
Pricing Model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Date of granted

30. URODAERNRKZ (&)

ARFANREEEBRESTE (H)
ZEANTEDER AR EEERL
AHE - R ABENT:

20 July 2021 19 October 2021

=—%tA=tA =FB=—-%tAThA

g =R

Weighted average share price niEFH R E
Exercise price T8
Expected volatility 8 HR % B X
Expected life T8 B F HA

g2 L [ 2
¥ A AR 5. 01 9

Risk-free rate
Expected dividend yield

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 10
years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on the valuer's best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The Group recognised the total of approximately
HK$3,864,000 (equivalents to RMB3,199,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil) in relation to share
options granted by the Company.

The Binominal Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are
based on the valuer's best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

HK$0.0997% JT
HK$0.10147% JT

HK$0.1007% JT
HK$0.1117 7T

102.02% 99.89%
10 years®F 10 yearsF
0.85% 1.31%
0% 0%

BN EEBARRRBEI0FAKR
ENELRBERETE - REFEAN
BHFHEERNGEEMOKEMGE
AAAEREGE  TERVIRTSERER
ENFEERFE -

BE—T-—5+-A=+—RLFE"
AEBERARAIBENEREERR
¥ 493,864,000 T(HH &8 W A R %
3,199,000 (= ZE =T F : @) o

"R EEELD AR A RE
MRAFE-FTEBRERFEMBN
BERERIDERGEMNRER -
BEREEERETIEBRRNITRAE
EMAMTRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

31. COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the years but
not yet incurred are as follows:

1. &IE

BEAREE

FREFTOEREENEARFEMT:

2021 2020
— B —E TR
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR ARETT

Property, plant and equipment W BELEZE

— 4,346

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. EXRBEE AR S

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to
be related if they are subject to common control, common
significant influence or joint control.

Mr. Hung, members of key management and their close family
members of the Group are also considered as related parties.
In the opinion of the Directors, the related party transactions
were carried out in the normal course of business and at
terms negotiated between the Group and respective related
parties.

The following companies are related parties of the Group that
had balances and/or transactions with the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =F =—F+=-HA=+—HI FZ

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. EXBEB AR R (&)
(Continued)

(a)

Names and relationships with related parties

() HWKERBLHEE

Name Relationship

=x ZRES

Mr. Hung Controlling shareholder
HEE R R

Shanghai Zhaorong Investment Consulting Co., Ltd.

("Zhaorong”)
FEREREEZABRAB(KE])

Shanghai Zhipeng Food & Beverage Management
Co., Ltd. (“Zhipeng”)
FEBBEREEGRAA (M

Shanghai Tao Huayuan Food & Beverage Management

Co., Ltd. (“Tao Huayuan”)
FERIEREREEBRAB (IR

Zhenwei (Shanghai) International Trading Co., Ltd.

("Zhenwei”)

BR(LBBERESZAERAE(EK])

Ma Shuaixiang
5 B0 A

Shanghai Tai Yeye Food & Beverage Management
Co., Ltd. ("Grandpa Tai")
FEEMEEREEARAR([RMER])

Controlled by the controlling shareholder

F 22 PR AR R A

Controlled by the controlling shareholder

F 22 PR AR R A

Controlled by Ms. Hung (Mr. Hung's elder sister)
Rt OREE 2R ) ZH

Controlled by Ms. Hung (Mr. Hung's elder sister)
Rt OREE 2R ) ZH

Shareholder of a non-wholly owned subsidiary

FEEMBRARMKRE
Controlled by Ms. Hung (Mr. Hung's elder sister)

LT OREEZ R ZH

2021 3 EEBEEEEZERERAH

195



196

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 =—F = —F+=HA=+—HIF FZ

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. EXBEB AR R (&)

(Continued)
(b) Significant transactions with related parties (b)
(i) Key management compensation

Key management includes the executive director,
Mr. Hung, and certain executives of the Group
who have important role in making operational
and financial decisions. The compensation paid or
payable to key management for employee services
is shown below:

g

(i)

EBATNERRS
BREEASFH

AREEASEEAEEHN
TEEHREERETITRA
B WEEEERVBRER
EETER - SLEERBE
e B RS EIEA BN
&5 T

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARBTT

Wages and salaries IERF® 1,118 851
Share-based payments VA B 1 7 B AN 3R 693 —

Defined contribution plan and AEHERETE R At e
other social security costs IRBE X A 41 —
1,852 851
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c) Balances with related parties

(i)

(i)

Included in trade payables — (trade

32. EXEABEXRZ (&)

(c)

ELBA B 5 B9 45 AR

(i) FAEZEMNZE — (B

related) ZHE)
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEZTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETT
Zhenwei R 2 2
Zhipeng B s 118 118
120 120

Included in prepayments and other
receivables

Other receivables and prepayments due from
related parties — other receivables (non-trade
related) (Note 20)

(i) FTABRNFERAMEK

mE

JEW G BT B e 10R K 7R
IR — A ER KA
(FFEZ 168 (K i£20)

2021 2020

—B-—F —EB_FF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR AR¥EF T

Tao Huayuan Bk TE R 37 33
Zhenwei FER 70 70
Zhaorong JK & 4 226
Zhipeng e 76 76
Grandpa Thai Zx P &8 = 5
187 410
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. EXBEB AR R (&)

(Continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (Continued) (c) HEBIBAMEER(E)
(ii) Included in prepayments and other (i) FAFTHEAREMEY

receivables (Continued) FIE (#E)

JE Uk [28 Bt 5 LAt FNIB A R
BT EREBRTER
BR o LA BIEE 5 2 X
TE 1E o

Other receivables from related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. No provisions were made against
receivables from related parties.

(iii) FTA B AT 7B R ET
EF —(#EZHB) K
i£25)

(iii) Included in other payables and accruals —
(non trade related) (Note 25)

N — 2@ BE KA

Amount due to a related party

198

2021 2020

—E_—F —E-E2F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T ARETTT

Mr. Ma Shuaixiang BN %k A& 1,149 1,149
Amount due to the controlling shareholder EBAERRRMRE

2021 2020

—E_—F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB TR ARETTT

Mr. Hung i ive s 1,634 —

The payables due to a related party and amount
due to the controlling shareholder are unsecured,
interest-free and are repayable on demand.
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company acquired the entire equity interest in the
Longhui International Catering Management Limited (the
“Accounting Acquirer”) on 4 July 2018 (the “Acquisition
Date”) was accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements as reverse acquisition of the Company by the
Accounting Acquirer (the "Reverse Acquisition”). The Group
recognised deemed listing expenses of approximately
RMB399,670,000 upon the application of the Reverse
Acquisition on the Acquisition Date (“Deemed Listing
Expenses”).

On the Acquisition Date, the Group applied the Reverse
Acquisition method of accounting and recognised the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the Company as at that
date, including the recorded accrued expenses and other
payables of approximately RMB37,578,000 as disclosed in Note
32 to the consolidated financial statements in the annual
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2019.

These recorded accrued expenses and other payables do not
include any of the unknown liabilities of the Company brought
forward from 1 January 2018, which included the amount due
to a deconsolidated subsidiary of approximately RMB882,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,028,000) and unknown
other payables of approximately RMB15,182,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$17,694,000) (collectively, the “Unknown
Liabilities”).

The Company had used its best effort to identify the nature of
the Unknown Liabilities including publishing a public notice
which invited any potential creditors to inform the Company of
any debts or claims.

With the legal advice provided to the Company, according to
Section 4(1)(a) of Cap. 347 provides that actions founded on
simple contract shall not be brought after the expiration of 6
years from the date on which the course of action accrued
whereas s.4(3) states that an action upon a specialty shall not
be brought after the expiration of 12 years from the date on
which the cause of action accrued.

33.

HAREE

BT N\FtAmMB(WERH]
AArREEEREEREEIERE
AR E(ESFTWES]D R
AU BRERINEASTRESHAR
AEHMREE ((RKE]) - REER
WEAHEARKBRZEREELD
FA s 49 A R#399,670,000 T ([R4ELET
Xl -

RREBE  ~EEEARKESHE
MERARNRNZANAIEIEERE
& BRESKSETEAREMENK
B AN ERBE37,578,0007T (RARAREE
—E-hE+-A=t—-BILEEZH
WAERE T RE M FEI2H FE) o

ZEMBBEGTERAR M EMNRIE
W ArABEARABE_ZE—/\F—AF—H
AN EAARMNARE (BERMIUSER
AARWEB A FRIELHARKSS2,000
7T (FRE 72 491,028,000 7T) & E fh K 4N
FEAH FEA A R¥15,182,0007T (FEE R
#917,694,0008 70 (B[R ANBE]) -

ARBER2NHBARNAENEE -
BREANEAHBERFEAEEED
ARARBHAEETAEHEEAR -

BRAQBERENZEZRZER  RE
FITEFAN@E - AEERBES
MARETROFR  TERFREA
MESHN B BB meFRIESL - MH
AQVIRH AR N EHXEMHFR - TF
REFAEREENBHESm2FRIE
& oo
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

The directors of the Company considered that the origin of the
Unknown Liabilities is unlikely to be created under a deed and
given actions founded on simple
contract shall not be brought after 6 years from the date on
which the cause of actions accrued pursuant to the Limitation
Ordinance (Laws of Hong Kong Chapter 347), any potential
creditors would be statutorily barred from taking action
against another person 6 years after the date when the
liabilities were due, unless such liabilities was created under
deed, in which case, the limitation period shall be 12 years
from the date of the liabilities were due. As the unknown
liabilities were incurred during the year ended 31 December
2012 and 2013, if the amount was created under simple
contract, the payment obligation is expired as at 31 December
2019, if the liabilities was created under deed, the payment

among other reasons,

obligations will be expire as at 31 December 2025.

Besides, the Company had entered into a debt assignment
agreement with Global Courage Limited (“Global Courage”),
pursuant to which Global Courage agrees to undertake all

outstanding Unknown Liabilities.

Subject to the above matters, the possibility of outflow of
economic resources in the settlement of Unknown Liabilities by

the Group is not probable.
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RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
noncash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

34.

METHELRABENYER

TR ANEEE @ E LM E LD
BEEY BRRASNIFRED -
REZHELANBEENAKTES H
BEREXRTBECHER/IERE
DEARBRERDEENRESRENR
ERBHRTRE -

Convertible Loan from

Interest bonds Lease independent
Borrowings payable liabilities liabilities third parties Total

TRRES REBIY
tE ERFE 2 HERRE S=HER @i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARTR AR®Tn AR%Trn AR%Tn ARETR AR%Tx
As at 1 January 2020 R-ZE-TF—-f—H — — 2,942 152,997 — 155,939
Addition to lease liabilities HEBERE - - - 22,283 — 22,283
Proceeds from borrowings BEMBRE 3,000 — — — 28,200 31,200
Lease modifications HEEXR — — — (64,819) — (64,819)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HERBENAEAX — — — 6,248 — 6,248
Repayment of lease liabilities EBREREAR — — — (46,222) — (46,222)
Rental concession HeER — — — (4,325) — (4,325)
Imputed interest recognised EHREHE — — 257 — — 257
Interest accrued A — 104 — — — 104
Interest paid BAF & — (104) — — — (104)
Exchange alignment EHAR - - (198) - - (198)

As at 31 December 2020 and R-B-_EE+-A=+-AK

1 January 2021 —Z-—-%—-f—H 3,000 = 3,001 66,162 28,200 100,363
Proceeds from borrowings EEMREHRE 4,800 = = = 10,247 15,047
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEARNFASHY = = — 3,201 — 3,201
Imputed interest recognised BHRER A = = 260 = — 260
Interest accrued RIS — 142 — — - 142
Repayment of borrowings BERE (3,000) — — — (22,591) (25,591)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEMES = = = (28,681) — (28,681)
Lease modifications HEBK — — — (8,921) — (8,921)
Rental concession HeER — — — (1,808) — (1,808)
Interest paid BTF & = (142) — — — (142)
Exchange alignment [ERAC R = - (83) = = (83)
As at 31 December 2021 R-B--%+=-A=+-H 4,800 — 3,178 29,953 15,856 53,787

2021 £ 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 = F = —F+ = A=+ —HIFZF

35. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 35. EB@AARHMBRRAERNER
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Statement of Financial Position Bt % AR R &
2021 2020
B —fF —ZT-THF
RMB’000 RMB'OOO
As at 31 December 2021 R=-FE-—F+=-A=+—8H AR¥ T AR F T
Assets

Non-current asset

=
gD S5 it
I
ey
X T

Investment in subsidiaries & — —

Current assets RBEE

Prepayments TES R IE 99 564

Cash and cash equivalents RERREFEDY 866 169

965 733

Total assets EE#E 965 733

Capital and reserves EXRGEE

Share capital & 7 230 109

Reserves ki (37.378) (38,622)

Total equity R (37,148) (38,513)

Liabilities a81&

Non-current liabilities FRBEME

Convertible bonds CIEN = 3,178 3,001

Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 75 116
3,253 3,117

Current liabilities REBEE \

Other payables and accruals HENKIERETER 34,860 36,129

Total liabilities BEHRE 38,113 39,246

Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 965 733

Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (33,895) (35,396)

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved AREINTBRAKRIR T —F =

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 A=THEESSHERKIETE I

March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: HUTEEREES:

Hung Shui Chak Yuan Mingjie
Prgiop:= =EAE
Director Director
EFE EFE
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

35. BEAARTRMBRARNER

— —
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (#&
(Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves AREREENE B
Share
based-
Convertible payments
Share  bond reserve reserve Other Exchange  Accumulated
premium (Note 29) (Note 30) reserve reserve losses Total
TR IR 5B
E5HE ERCRERE
RBEE (F£29) (K30 HtbfE ERFE B ] @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARETT AR¥TT ARETT AR¥TT ARETT ARETT
As at 1 January 2020 RZF-ZF—-A-H 566,637 1,069 — (118,137) 3,370 (488,218) (35,279)
Loss for the year FNEE - - - - - (4,871) (4,871)
Other comprehensive income £t 2 T 4 & - - - - 1528 - 1,528
Total comprehensive income/ FR2E Wz ,/(H#E)
(loss) for the year et - — — — 1,528 (4,871) (3,343)
As at 31 December 2020 HRZZ=ZTF
and 1 January 2021 +ZA=t-BR
—Z-—-%-f—-H 566,637 1,069 — (118,137) 4,898 (493,089) (38,622)
Loss for the year FRER s = s - - (41,664) (41,664)
Other comprehensive loss ~ Et 2 E 1 = = = = (1,793) — (1,793)
Total comprehensive loss for &A% 5 8 4%
the year = = = = (1,793) (41,664) (43,457)
Recognition of equity-settled &2 MRELEIUR R A
share-hased payments ERAR = = 3,199 = = = 3,199
Issue of share upon rights 4 & B %47 f 3
issue 36,937 - - - - - 36,937
Exercise of share options 77 { B [ 1 6,768 - (2,203) - - - 4,565
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZF=-F
+=A=+-H 610,342 1,069 996 (118,137) 3,105 (534,754) (37,378)

2021 F %R

EEEEEZERERA A
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36.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

December 2021 and 2020 are set out below:

Place of
incorporation

registration and  Registered paid

36. B LAFE

AEBR_E-_—FR_F_FTF+=

B=+—RMEEZWEATHEN RN

T

Proportion of equity interest and
voting power held

Name of subsidiary operations up capital by the Company Principal activities
EMAYL ZME
WEAREM EEWE 412 R A ARARRENEERREELH TEED
Directly indirectly
BE# &
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZB_-F “ZT-%F _B--% “Z-%
Longhui International Catering Cayman Island usD1 100.0 100.0 = — Investment holding
Management Holdings Limited
ERARERERZRERLAT HEES 1% 100.0 100.0 = — REER
Billion Express International Limited Hong Kong HKD1,000 = — 100.0 100.0  Investment holding
BEERERAR &R 1,000% 7T = - 100.0 1000 REER
Billion Great International Limited ~ Hong Kong HKD10,000 = — 100.0 100.0  Investment holding
EREBRERAT BiE 10,0007 7 = — 100.0 1000 ®REERK
Shanghai Qiaowei Investment The PRC UsD2,160,000 = — 100.0 100.0  Investment holding
Consulting Company Limited'
LEBRREFAFGRAF H 2,160,000% 7 = — 100.0 1000 ®REZRK
Shanghai Longhui Catering The PRC RMB10,000,000 = — 100.0 100.0  Provision of food and
Management Company Limited' beverage service
LEEBERERERDA I AR #10,000,0007C = - 100.0 1000 RE|EKRE
Beijing Huige Catering The PRC RMB1,000,000 = — — 100.0  Provision of food and
Management? beverage service
ERBEFEREBERRA? HE AR #1,000,0007C = — = 1000 REEKRS
Shanghai Huige Seafood Hotpot The PRC RMB3,000,000 = — 100.0 100.0  Provision of food and
Catering Company Limited' beverage service
LERFEGRNAERERAF TH A K #3,000,0007C = - 100.0 1000 REERRH
Hefei Huige Catering Management  The PRC RMB2,000,000 = — 100.0 100.0  Provision of food and
Company Limited? beverage service
AEEFERERERRA? I AR %2,000,0007T = - 100.0 1000 RE|EKRE
Shanghai Jinhong Catering The PRC RMB500,000 = — 100.0 100.0  Provision of food and
Management Company Limited' beverage service
LEREERERBRLA HE AR #500,0007T = — 100.0 1000 REEKRS
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group that have material non-controlling interest:

Proportion of

36. BRI (AE)

ERISESEAR/EIEZFEAKHEE
BAEENARAMBRR - EERS
REEMHELATANFBREHAR
U=

TRINSEEAEAFZEREROAE
BEZEMEAF :

ownership interests

and voting rights held
by non-controlling

Loss allocated to

non-controlling Accumulated non-

Name of subsidiary - N interest interest controlling interest
FEREBFENETRE
BERRERELSG PTREFEZREZNER REFERER
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
—B-—F ZF-FF ZB-—F —T-TF —B--F ZFT-FF
% % RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
% % ARMTRT ARETT AR¥TR ARKTET
Hefei Huije Catering AEETFERERR
Management Company NGRS
Limited? 30.0 30.0 291 656 (1,637) (1,346)

! Registered as wholly-foreign owned enterprises under the PRC Law.

2 Limited liability company established in the PRC.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interest is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

! REPEEZEIMAIEBELE -

? RABERKZHERAT o

BRAHER B ARIFE I =m0 A & B
BABMMBEMEZINEMT - AT
MBERMERRTEERN QA HHH
A& R ©
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36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. K{EB AT 15 (&)

Hefei Huige Catering Management Company

SEEFEREEFTRLT

Limited
2021 2020
-2 —F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ART AR T
Current assets REEE 1,162 1,160
Non-current assets EREEE 820 952
Current liabilities mEBE (6,628) (5,788)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (811) (811)
Equity attributable to owners of the RABIHEAEANEHER
Company (3,820) (3,141)
Non-controlling interest FEVE AR 5 (1,637) (1,346)
Revenue Wz 1,834 2,346
Expenses 3 (2,804) (4,532)
Loss for the year FREIE (970) (2,186)
Loss attributable to the owners KRG B AELER
of the Company (679) (1,530)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interest  3F 1% A% % 25 fE (5 /&5 18 (291) (656)
Loss for the year FANEE (970) (2,186)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to the ARXRBEAAEEEZE
owners of the Company &5 18 42 %8 (679) (1,530)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to the FF3EARHE X FEE 2 E &
non-controlling interest 184258 (291) (656)
Total comprehensive loss PHEEES (970) (2,186)
Net cash outflow from operating activities 4 & E IR & 7 1 F 58 (4) (40)
Net cash outflow from investing activities BREESRE R FE — —
Net cash outflow from financing activities BEEESE ML FE = (15)
Net cash outflow WemLFE (4) (55)
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 21 January 2022, the Company allotted and issued
19,120,800 ordinary Shares pursuant to the exercise of the
Share Options.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to be
consistent with the current year’s presentation.

37.

38.

WREHREER
RZEZ—_F—A=+—8 ARFIR

BEITHE 2 B BB BT
19,120,800 % & i@ f% °

b &g B 7

ETHEHBFELEHRIE  UEX
FEMEZHAN -
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Financial Summary

B % B2

RESULTS E 4
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-—A=+—-BLEFE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B-—F —_T-FTF —_FT-hE —B-NF —_B—+#F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&5 (&5
Revenue Wz 162,883 184,378 418,565 624,707 700,432
(Loss)/profit before tax B FL AT (E 1),/
S (33,177) (68,998) (130,481) (462,253) 37,799
Income tax (expenses)/ Fri5H (FIsz),/
credit Ei (1,068) (716) 2,234 10,625 (12,147)
(Loss)/profit FR(EE) & F
for the year (34,245) (69,714) (128,247) (451,628) 25,652
Attributable to: T &H EL:
Owners of the ViN/NCIE =N
Company (33,954) (69,058) (127,513) (451,095) 25,675
Non-controlling FEVE IR A
interests (291) (656) (734) (533) (23)
(Loss)/profit FR(EBE),/EF
for the year (34,245) (69,714) (128,247) (451,628) 25,652
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E-—F ZZE-2F ZT-NF ZTE-N\F ZT—LtF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Total assets B EBRE 90,523 161,471 305,324 323,450 388,873
Total liabilities BERE (229,204) (310,545) (387,295) (360,083) (338,509)
Non-controlling interest 3F % A% ## %5 (1,637) (1,346) (690) 44 577
Total equity attributable ZANAR]#EH A &L
to owners of the R
Company (137,044) (147,728) (81,281) (36,677) 49,787
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